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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

COMPLIANCE REPORT 

SUl\1MARY 

The compliance testing perfonned during this exm.nination was conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and in accordance with the Illinois State Auditing Act. 

INTRODUCTION 

Our scope as special assistant auditors to the Auditor General for the compliance examination 
consists of State co1npliance testing of the Departlnent for the two years ended June 30,2012, 
except for Illinois Correctional Industries (ICI), which was examined by other special assistant 
auditors. State co1npliance schedules contained in this report generally do not contain 
information for ICI. 

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 

The Independent Accountants' Report on State Co1npliance and on Inten1al Control Over 
Compliance does not contain scope limitations or disclanners, but does contain report 
qualifications for compliance and internal control. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

Nu1nber of 

Findings 
Repeated findings 
Prior recommendations imple1nented or not repeated 

Current 
Report 

39 
25 
9 

Prior 
Report 

34 
24 
23 

Details of findings are presented in a separate section of this report. The findings in this report 
are a result of our testing of the Depart1nent, except for Illinois Correctional Industries (ICI), 
which was examined by other special assistant auditors. Findings at ICI related to financial 
reporting 1natters and findings regarding procedural or administrative 1natters relating to all or 
1nultiple institutions of the Depart1nent of Corrections are included in this report. Other state 
compliance findings specific to ICI are reported in the separate ICI co1npliance exm.nination 
report. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

Item No. Page Description Finding Type 

FINDINGS (GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS) 

12-01 17 Weaknesses in preparation of GAAP reporting Material Weakness 
forms submitted to the Illinois Office of the 
Comptroller and preparation of year-end 
Department financial statements 

12-02 21 Weaknesses in the financial accounting for, Material Weakness 
and inaccurate and inadequate recordkeeping 
of property/fixed assets 

12-03 26 Inadequate controls over inventory Significant 
Deficiency 

12-04 29 Inadequate administration of locally held funds Significant 
at the Correctional Centers Deficiency 

12-05 33 · Weaknesses in administration of locally held Significant 
funds at the General Office Deficiency 

12-06 36 Inadequate controls over accounts receivable Material Weakness 

12-07 38 Lack of collection efforts over farm leases Material Weakness 

12-08 40 Lack of control over computer systems Significant 
Deficiency 

FINDINGS (STATE COMPLIANCE) 

Item No. Page Description Finding Type 

12-09 42 Operation and maintenance of "cash box" Significant Deficiency 
funds at Correctional Centers and Noncompliance 

12-10 45 Noncompliance with Uniform Disposition of Significant Deficiency 
Unclaimed Property Act and Noncompliance 

12-11 47 Failure to properly transfer unclaimed imnate Significant Deficiency 
cash account balances and N oncon1pliance 
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FINDINGS (STATE COMPLIANCE)- Continued 

Item No. Page Description Finding Type 

12-12 50 Inmate commissary goods marked up more Significant Deficiency 
than allowed by statute and Noncompliance 

12-13 53 Noncompliance with the Illinois Procurement Significant Deficiency 
Code and Non compliance 

12-14 55 Adult Transition Center records not properly Significant Deficiency 
maintained and Noncompliance 

12-15 58 Weaknesses in Adult Transition Center Significant Deficiency 
(ATC) food services contract and Noncompliance 

12-16 60 Weaknesses in contract, lease, and grant Significant Deficiency 
administration and Noncompliance 

12-17 64 Noncompliance with the Fiscal Control and Significant Deficiency 
Internal Auditing Act and Noncompliance 

12-18 65 Lack of project management for computer Significant Deficiency 
systems development and Noncompliance 

12-19 67 Weaknesses in change management Significant Deficiency 
procedures and Noncompliance 

12-20 69 Lack of disaster contingency planning or Significant Deficiency 
testing to ensure recovery of computer and Noncompliance 
systems 

12-21 71 Failure to comply with the Identity Significant Deficiency 
Protection Act and Noncompliance 

12-22 72 Employee performance evaluations not Significant Deficiency 
performed timely and Noncompliance 

12-23 74 Payroll timekeeping system not automated Significant Deficiency 
and Noncompliance 

12-24 75 Inadequate documentation of employee Signific;ant Deficiency 
training and Noncompliance 

12-25 77 Inadequate controls over computer inventory Significant Deficiency 
and Noncompliance 
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FINDINGS (STATE COMPLIANCE)- Continued 

Item No. Page Description Finding Type 

12-26 79 Computer equipment not installed in a timely Significant Deficiency 
manner and Noncompliance 

12-27 80 Policies and procedures regarding operation Significant Deficiency 
of State vehicles not followed and Noncompliance 

12-28 84 Failure to adequately maintain documentation Significant Deficiency 
related to personally assigned vehicles and Noncompliance 

12-29 85 Failure to maintain control over Significant Deficiency 
telecommunication devices and Noncompliance 

12-30 87 Cash receipts and refunds not paid into the Significant Deficiency 
State treasury on a timely basis as required and Noncompliance 
by State law 

12-31 89 Failure to develop a formal fraud risk Significant Deficiency 
assessment pro gram and Nonco1npliance 

12-32 90 Failure to update Administrative Directives Significant Deficiency 
and Noncompliance 

12-33 92 Failure to properly notify appropriate parties Significant Deficiency 
of impending release of inmates and N onco1npliance 

12-34 94 Failure to properly establish mechanism to Significant Deficiency 
track access to inmate master· records and Noncompliance 

12-35 96 Noncompliance with inmate grievance Significant Deficiency 
procedures and Noncompliance 

12-36 98 Weaknesses over issuance of temporary Significant Deficiency 
identification cards and Noncompliance 

12-37 99 Failure to properly provide addiction recovery Significant Deficiency 
services and Noncompliance 

12-38 101 Failure to prepare and submit reports as Significant Deficiency 
required by State statute and Noncompliance 

12-39 103 Noncompliance with applicable portions of the Significant Deficiency 
Arsonist Registration Act and Noncompliance 
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FINDINGS (STATE COMPLIANCE)- Continued 

Item No. Page Description Finding Type 

In addition, the following findings which are reported as current findings relating to Government 
Auditing Standards also meet the reporting requirements for State Compliance or internal control 
over State Compliance. 

12-01 17 

12-02 21 

12-03 26 

12-04 29 

12-05 33 

12-06 36 

12-07 38 

12-08 40 

A 105 

B 105 

c 105 

Weaknesses in preparation of GAAP reporting Material Weakness 
forms submitted to the Illinois Office of the and Material 
Comptroller and preparation of year-end Noncompliance 
Department financial statements 

Weaknesses in the financial accounting for, Material Weakness 
and inaccurate and inadequate recordkeeping and Material 
of property/fixed assets Noncompliance 

Inadequate controls over inventory Significant Deficiency 
and Noncompliance 

Inadequate administration of locally held funds Significant Deficiency 
at the Correctional Centers and Noncompliance 

Weaknesses.in administration of locally held Significant Deficiency 
funds at the General Office and Noncompliance 

Inadequate controls over accounts receivable Material Weakness 
and Material 
Noncompliance 

Lack of collection efforts over farm leases Material Weakness 
and Material 
Noncompliance 

Lack of control over computer systems Significant Deficiency 
and Noncompliance 

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED 

Improper calculation and reporting of liabilities at year end 

Weaknesses in the financial accounting for, and reporting of, capital 
assets 

Failure to formally document support for GAAP reporting and 
maintain and monitor awards and grants 
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PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED- Continued 

Ite1n No. Page Description Finding Type 

D 106 Inadequate controls over travel 

E 106 Payment of another State agency's permanent ilnprove1nents and 
failure to allocate joint postage expenses 

F 106 Failure to report required bilingual e1nployee needs infonnation 

G 106 Noncompliant General Education Develop1nent (GED) program 
ad1ninistration and reporting 

H 107 Noncompliance with the Sex Offender Registration Act 

I 107 Correctional Center exceptions 
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EXIT CONFERENCE 

The findings and reco1mnendations appearing in this report were discussed with Depart1nent 
personnel at exit conferences on February 20, 2013 and June 12, 2103. Attending were: 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Salvador A. Godinez 
Gladyse Taylor 
Bryan Gleckler 
Ron Faith 
Jared Brunk* 
Tara Kessler* 

Director 
Assistant Director 
Chief Fiscal Officer/Chief of Staff** 
Acting Chief Internal Auditor 
Chief Fiscal Officer 
Assistant Deputy Director Fiscal 

Accounting Cotnpliance 

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

Paul Usherwood 
Kathy Lovejoy* 

Amy L. Sherwood 
Matthew Maynerich 

SIKICH LLP 

* Present at the June 12, 2013 conference only 
**Title as of June 12, 2013 conference 

Audit Manager 
Audit Manager 

Partner 
Senior Accountant 

Responses to the reco1n1nendations were provided by Ron Faith in correspondence dated 
March 1, 2013 and June 19, 2013. 
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www.sikich.com 

320i W. White Oaks Dr., Suite i 02 
Springfield, Illinois 62704 

Certified Public Accountants & Advisors 
Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

Honorable William G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of illinois 

Compliance 

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have exaJ.nined the State of Illinois, 
Departlnent of Corrections' (the Departn1ent) co1npliance with the require1nents listed below, as 
1nore fully described in the Audit Guide for Fina11cial Audits and Co1npliance Attestation 
Engagements of Illinois State Agencies (Audit Guide) as adopted by the Auditor General, during 
the two years ended June 30,2012. The 1nanage1nent of the Department is responsible for 
compliance with these require1nents. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Depart1nent' s co1npliance based on our exaJ.nination. 

A. The Department has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds of the State in 
accordance with the purpose for which such funds have been appropriated or otherwise 
authorized by law. 

B. The Depart1nent has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds of the State in 
accordance with any limitations, restrictions, conditions or 1nandatory directions i1nposed 
by law upon such obligation, expenditure, receipt or use. 

C. The Departlnent has co1nplied, in all1naterial respects, with applicable laws and 
regulations, including the State unifonn accounting syste1n, in its fmancial and fiscal 
operations. 

D. State revenues and receipts collected by the Depart1nent are in accordance \:vith 
applicable laws and regulations and the accounting and recordkeeping of such revenues 
and receipts is fair, accurate and in accordance with law. 

E. Money or negotiable securities or snnilar assets handled by the Depart1nent on behalf of 
the State or held in trust by the Depart1nent have been properly and legally ad1ninistered 
and the accounting and recordkeeping relating thereto is proper, accurate, and in 
accordance with law. 
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Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the standards applicable to attestation 
engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Co1nptroller General of 
the United States; the Illinois State Auditing Act (Act); and the Audit Guide as adopted by the 
Auditor General pursuant to the Act; and, accordingly, included exaJ.nining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Depart1nent' s co1npliance with those requirements listed in the first paragraph 
of tins report and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circu1nstances. We believe that our exaJ.nination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Department's co1npliance with 
specified requirements. 

As described in ite1ns 12-01, 12-02, 12-06 and 12-07 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, 
the Departlnent did not co1nply with requirements regarding applicable laws and regulations, 
including the State uniform accounting system, in its fmancial and fiscal operations. Co1npliance 
with such require1nents is necessary, in our opinion, for the Department to co1nply with the 
requirements listed in the first paragraph of this repo1i. 

In our opinion, except for the nonco1npliance described in the preceding paragraph, the 
Depart1nent complied, in all material respects, with the co1npliance require1nents listed in the 
first paragraph of this report during the two years ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of 
our procedures disclosed other instances of noncomplia11ce with the require1nents, which are 
required to be reported in accordance with criteria established by the Audit Guide, issued by the 
Illinois Office of the Auditor General and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings as i~ems 12-03 through 12-05 and 12-08 through 12-39. 

Internal Control 

The 1nanage1nent of the Depa1i1nent is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
inten1al control over compliance with the require1nents listed in the first paragraph of tins report. 
In planning and perfonning our exaJ.nination, we considered the Department's internal control 
over co1npliance with the require1nents listed in the first paragraph of this report as a basis for 
designing our exmnination procedures for the purpose of expressing our op1nion on co1npliance 
and to test and repo1i on internal control over co1npliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, 
issued by the Illinois Office of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over co1npliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Depmi1nent' s internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding pm·agraph a11d was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
co1npliance that 1night be significant deficiencies or 1naterial weaknesses and therefore, there can 
be no assurance that all deficiencies, sigtnficant deficiencies, or 1naterial weaknesses have been 
identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
vveaknesses and other. deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
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A deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation 
of a control over compliance does not allow manage1nent or e1nployees, in the non11al course of 
perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with the 
require1nents listed in the first paragraph of this report on a tilnely basis. A material wealawss in 
an entity's internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control.such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 1naterial noncompliance with a 
requirement listed in the first paragraph of this report will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over co1npliance as 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as items 12-01, 12-02, 12-06 and 12-07 to 
be 1naterial weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or co1nbination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over co1npliance that is less severe than a 1naterial weakness in 
internal control over co1npliance, yet l.mportant enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over co1npliance as described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings as ite1ns 12-03 through 12-05 and 12-08 through 12-39 to 
be significant deficiencies. 

As required by the Audit Guide, i1mnaterial findings excluded fro1n this report have been 
reported in a separate letter to your office. 

The Department's responses to the findings identified in our exmnination are described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings. We did not examine the Department's responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the respo1_1ses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General 
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Co1mnission, the Governor, and Depart1nent 1nanagement, and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Springfield, Illinois 
June 24, 2013 
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3201 W. White Oaks Dr., Suite 102 

Springfield, Illinois 62704 

www.sikich.com 

Certified Public Accountants & Advisors 

Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITlllG STANDARDS 

Honorable Willimn G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of Illinois 

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial state1nents 
of the govermnental activities, the 1najor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections (the Department), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Departlnent's basic financial state1nents and have 
issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2013, except for Note 13 for which the date is 
June 24, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Alnerica and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Co1nptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial state1nents of 
theW or king Capital Revolving Fund (Correctional Industries), as described in our report on the 
Department's financial state1nents. Our report on the Depart1nent' s financial. statements was 
qualified based upon the audit performed by the other auditors of Correctional Industries. The 
other auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting accounts 
receivable and revenues at June 30, 2012; nor were they able to satisfy the1nselves as to the 
accuracy of the balances by other auditing procedures. This report includes our consideration of 
the results of the other auditor's testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. However, tllis report, insofar as it relates to the results of the other auditors, is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Manage1nent of the Depart1nent is responsible for establishing and 1naintaining effective inten1al 
control over financial reporting. In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the 
Departlnent's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial state1nents, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opi11ion on the effectiveness of the Depart1nent's inten1al control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Departlnent' s internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the li1nited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the 
inte1nal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or 1naterial 
weaknesses a11d therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, 
or 1naterial weaknesses have been identified. Ho-vvever, as described in the acco1npanying 
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schedule of findings, V\re and the other auditors identified certain deficiencies in internal control 
over financial repo1iing that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that 
we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allo'v 
1nanagement or e1nployees, in the no1mal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect and correct 1nisstatements on a ti1nely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a 1naterial1nisstatement of the Department's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We and the other auditors consider the 
deficiencies described in the acco1npanying schedule as ite1ns 12-01, 12-02, 12-06 and 12-07 to 
be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or cmnbination of deficiencies in internal control that is 
less severe than a 1nate1ial V\7eakness, yet nnportant enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. We and the other auditors consider the deficiencies described in the 
accompanying schedule as items 12-03, 12-04, 12-05, and 12-08 to be significant deficiencies. 

Co1npliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Departlnent's fmancial state1nents 
are free of 1naterial misstate1nent, we performed tests of its co1npliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agree1nents, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and 1naterial effect on the detennination of financial state1nent amounts. Ho\\rever, 
providing an opinion on co1npliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests and those of the other 
auditors disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Govenunent Auditing Standards. 

The Depart1nent' s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
acco1npanying schedule of findings. We and the other auditors did not audit the Departn1ent's 
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

Tllis report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Auditor General, the General 
Asse1nbly, the Legislative Audit Cormnission, the Governor, and D~partment 1nanage1nent, and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~LLP 
Springfield, Illinois 
March 20, 2013, except for Note 13 

for which the date is June 24, 2013 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

CURRENT FINDINGS 
(GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS) 

12-01 FINDING: (Weaknesses in preparation of GAAP reporting forms submitted to the 
Illinois Office of the Comptroller and preparation of year-end Department 
financial statements) 

The Department of Correction's (Department's) year-end financial reporting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to the Illinois Office 
of the Comptroller contained inaccuracies. These problems, if not detected and 
corrected, could materially misstate the Department's financial statements and negatively 
impact the financial statements prepared by the Illinois Office of the Comptroller. 

During the audit of the Department's June 30, 2012 financial statements, the auditors 
noted the following errors in the GAAP Reporting forms and financial statements: 

• The Department filed a Quit Claim Deed with the Carroll County, Illinois Clerk and 
Recorder to transfer the Thomson Correctional Center to the Department of Central 
Management Services (DCMS) effective August 1, 2010. The transfer of the Thomson 
Correctional Center to DCMS was in preparation of the sale of the property to the 
federal government. At this point in time, the Thomson Correctional Center was the 
legal property ofDCMS. Effective August 1, 2010, the Department should have 
stopped depreciating the building andiriiprovements and all related equipment and not 
reported it in subsequent fmancial statements. However, the Department included the 
Thomson Correctional Center in the initial drafts· of the June 30,2012 financial 
statements provided to the auditors. After being brought to the Department's and 
DCMS attention by the auditors, the Department removed the activity of the Thomson 
Correctional Center from its fmancial statements for the year ended June 30,2012, and 
revised its capital asset SC0-537 and 538 fo!ms for fiscal year 2012. The total cost of 
the assets (both capital and non-capital assets) transferred to DCMS was $120,687,000. 
The revisions to the fmancial statements and related GAAP Reporting forms totaled a 
decrease in $120,313,000 to capital assets, and $24,209,000 of accumulated 
depreciation. Depreciation expense decreased $2,243,000. See also finding 12-02. 

• Weaknesses were identified in the financial accounting for, and reporting of, capital 
assets. In addition to the errors in accounting for the Thomson Correctional Center, 
the Department's Automated Property Control System (APCS) did not allow for 
testing of depreciation by asset (see finding 12-02). 
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• The Department understated the cash and liability balances by $603,000 in the GAAP 
packages submitted for the DOC Resident's T1ust Fund (1131) because it omitted the 
activity of the contractually administered Adult Transitional Centers (ATCs ). However, 
the Departt.nent subsequently became aware of this error and mnended its originally 
subnritted Report of Receipts a11d Disburse1nents for Locally Held Funds (C-17) for this 
fund. The Deparhnent attempted to revise the GAAP packages for this fund, but 
1nanagen1ent stated it was instructed not to do so by the illinois Office of the 
Comptroller due to the materiality of the adjustlnent on a statewide basis. The 
Department included the $603 (in thousands) cash and liability balances of these ATCs 
in its financial state1nents. As a result, the DepartJ.nent' s GAAP package for Fund 1131 
and its financial state1nents containdifferences in the mnount of$603 (in thousands). 
See also Finding 12-05. 

• Auditors noted the Depamnent had not established a practice of analyzing the nature of 
the accounts payable balance by Correctional Center within the DOC Resident's T1ust 
Fund 1131, to detennine the portion of the balance which was owed to vendors that 
would be liquidated within a short period of time, nonnally 30 to 60 days in the course 
of ordinary business sales terms, and which was accrued because it could not be 
liquidated due to the negative balances within the individual inmate trust fund accounts. 
In addition, the Depamnent had not detennined why certain Correctional Centers had 
debit balances in this general ledger account which should be reported as a credit 
balance. 

• Auditors noted the Departt.nent had not developed a 1nechanis1n to ens-qre the 
completen.ess of its accounts receivable and deferred revenue. $442,000 of telephone 
cormnissions related to June 2012 \Vere received in Septe1nber 2012 m1d not recorded as 
of June 30, 2012 because, the Deparhnent stated, it does not file a Quarterly SUlllinary 
of Accounts Receivable Activity (C-97) fonn because it was not aware it was supposed 
to file the report for receivables within the Department of Corrections Reimburse1nent 
Fund (0523). Chapter 26 of the SAMS Manual requires State agencies to report 
quarterly using the C-97 form for each fund in which they deposit 1noney and have 
outstanding receivables at the end of the quarter. The Depmtment did not consider this 
error to be n1aterial to the financial state1nents and it has not been corrected as of June 
30,2012. 

In addition, auditors of the DepartJ.nent's- Conectional Industries noted the Depart:I.nent did 
not maintain adequate and accurate records related to the customer accounts receivable of 
the Working Capital Revolving Fund (0301). The Departlnent's- Correctional Industries 
reported $10,043,000 in custo1ner accounts receivable for the Working Capital Revolving 
Fund at June 30, 2012. Auditors selected a sample of 30 custmner accounts receivable to 
confirm the balance owed to the DepartJ.nent at June 30,2012. Of the 16 con:finnations 
returned, the custmners indicated they owed the Department's - Correctional Industries 
$4,641,000, whereas the Depart1nent's- Correctional Industries' records stated the 
custmners owed $5,082,000, for an overstate1nent of$441,000. See also Finding 12-06. 

Auditors of the Deparhnent' s -Correctional Industries also noted the Departlnent failed to 
pursue collections of past due mnounts owed frmn fann leases in Fund 0301. The 
Depmi1nent entered into 12leases totaling 3,619 acres and mn1ual rent of $602,000 for fiscal 
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years 2011 and 2012. According to DepartJ.nent records, accounts receivable at June 30, 
2012 related to the fann leases was $209,000. See also Finding 12-07. 

In response to the prior finding, the Department stated it would continue to devote resources 
within the llinitation of the current teclmology and budget constraints to c01nplete the GAAP 
reporting as required. ·In addition, the Deparhnent had developed a follow-up control 
1nechanis1n to ensure imple1nentation occurred. Deparhnent manage1nent indicated that 
implementation of the reconunendation fro1n the previous fmding \Vas not fully 
accomplished due to a lack of tilne re1naining in the fiscal year once new pers01mel were 
placed in financial reporting positions. 

Upon discussion with the Department's- Correctional Industries' 1nanagement concenring 
the Worki11g Capital Revolving Fund custo1ner accounts receivable and payrnent posting 
errors, it was detennined the Working Capital Revolving Fund custo1ner accounts receivable 
syste1n contained payrnent posting errors. According to the Department's- Correctional 
Indust1ies' 1nanage1nent, between 2006 and 2012, payrnents had been posted at the custo1ner 
level, rather than the invoice level, resultil1g in open i11voices. In addition, 1nanage1nent 
indicated there were payments which had been posted twice. Manage1nent also stated they 
did not have all of the supporting detail to ensure the posting of payrnents to the proper 
invoice. TI1e Departlnent's- Correctional Industries' 1nanagement stated, regardi11g the 
lack of collection efforts over fann leases, in prior years, the Departlnent attempted to 
monitor and track the1n. Upon a letter dated January 2, 2012, from DCMS, Bureau of 
Property Manageinent, it was determined that DCMS has the role of administrator for these 
leases. In regards to the Departlnent' s procedures for 1nonthly statements on accounts 
receivable, proposed language for mnending the procedure was provided. 

Depart1nent manage1nent indicated the re1naining fmancial reporting errors noted during the 
audit period were due to a lack of resources and c01npeting priorities for personnel. 

The Co1nptroller requires State agencies to prepare GAAP Reporting Packages for each 
of their funds to assist in the annual preparation of the statewide fmancial state1nents and 
the Department fin.ancial state1nents. GAAP Reporting Package instructions are 
specified in the Comptroller's Statewide Accounting Manage1nent Syste1n (SAMS) 
Manual, Chapter 2 7. 

In addition, the Fiscal Control and Inte1nal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 1 0/3001) requires all 
State agencies to establish and 1naintain a syste1n of internal fiscal control to provide 
assurance that revenues, expenditures and transfers of assets, resources, or funds 
applicable to operations are properly recorded and accounted for to permit the preparation 
of reliable financial reports. 

Because of the significm1ce of the exceptions noted, we consider tllis to be a 1naterial 
weakness in the Depart1nent' s internal control over financial and fiscal operations. A 
material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in inten1al control, 
such tl1at there is a reasonable possibility that a 1naterial misstate1nent of the entity's 
financial state1nents or material nonco1npliance will occur and not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a tilnely basis. 
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Due to the noted differences in theW or king Capital Revolving Fund custo1ner account 
balances and the payment posting errors within the accounts receivable system, the 
infonnation related to the accounts receivable and revenues for this fund included in the 
financial state1nents could not be verified. Auditors of the Department's - Correctional 
Industries issued a qualified opinion on those financial state1nents, which led to a 
qualification in the opinions on the Deparhnent' s financial state1nents. 

The remaining exceptions noted, if not detected and corrected, also have the potential to 
1naterially misstate the Departlnent' s financial state1nents. Accurate preparation of the 
Department's financial information for GAAP and financial reporting purposes is nnportant 
due to the lin pact adjustments have on the statewide financial state1nents. (Finding Code 
No. 12-01, 10-01, 08-01) 

RECOl\il\1ENDATION: 

We recormnend the Departlnent outline and i1nple1nent procedures to ensure GAAP 
Reporting Packages and financial statements are prepared in an accurate manner. 
Internal reviews should be included in those procedures as a 1nethod to identify and 
correct errors prior to the submission of financial infonnation to the Illinois Office of the 
Co1nptroller and other external parties. Additionally, the Department should ensure 
compliance \:vith quarterly reporting to the Illinois Office of the Co1nptroller as required 
bySAMS. 

Concen1ing the inaccurate records related to custo1ner accounts receivable, we 
recoffilnend the Department's - Correctional Industries work with its custo1ners to 
detennine the accurate receivable balance. In addition, the Depart1nent' s - Conectional 
Industries should ensure all invoices and paytnents are properly posted in a tilnely and 
accurate 1nanner. Finally, the Depart1nent's- Correctional Industries should work with 
DCMS regarding the ad1ninistration of the fann leases and ensure all infonnation is 
accurately reflected in the financial state1nents for theW or king Capital Revolving Fund. 

DEPARTl\iENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Department will continue devoting the resources 
necessary to complete the GAAP reporting as required by i1nple1nenting procedures and 
to take all possible steps to ensure the GAAP Reporting Packages and financial 
state1nents are prepared in an accurate 1nmmer. The Assistant Deputy Director position 
responsible for Fiscal Accounting Co1npliance was filled effective February 1, 2012. 
Adequate resources have been added which 1nay enhance 1naking i1nprovements to 
ensure the GAAP Reporting Packages and financial statements are accurately prepared. 
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12-02 FINDING: \VVeaknesses in the financial accounting for, and inaccurate and inadequate 
recordkeeping of property/fixed assets) 

The Department of Corrections (DepartJ.nent) did not maintain accurate and adequate 
property/fixed asset records and did not accurately record all capital asset infonnation in 
its financial records. 

The auditors identified the following inadequacies in the Depart1nent' s property I fixed 
asset recordkeeping process: 

• The Departlnent' s Automated Property Control Syste1n (APCS) does not provide 
infonnation for the auditors to test depreciation by asset. For exrunple, a specific 
facility 1nay have thirty buildings in APCS with varying dates placed in service. 
APCS reports provide a total cost of all buildings co1nbined, along with total 
depreciation con1bined at the end of the quarter. However, according to Department 
personnel, APCS does not allow for a breakdown of each capitalized asset's 
depreciation. Once a new asset is entered into APCS, it beco1nes a portion of the 
grand total, and the depreciation is theoretically calculated fro1n that date, but a repo1i 
by asset carmot be generated. As a result of this inherent limitation of APCS, the 
auditors were unable to perform detailed testing by asset of the additions to 
accu1nulation depreciation (depreciation expense) reported on the SC0-538 for fiscal 
year 2012. 

• As 1nentioned in Finding 12-1, the Department filed a Quit Claiin Deed with the Cruroll 
County, illinois Clerk and Recorder to transfer the Tho1nson Correctional Center to the 
Depruiment of Central Manage1nent Services (DCMS) effective August 1, 2010. The 
DepartJ.nent should have reported this action as a transfer to DCMS on the Agency 
Report ofStatePropertyFonn (C-15) for the quarter ended Septe1nber 30,2010. 
However, the Department included the Th01nson Correctional Center in its Fonn C-15 
sub1nissions for all eight quarters of the audit period. After being brought to the 
Department's and DCMS attention by the auditors, the Deparhnent re1noved the activity 
of the Thotnson Correctional Center and revised its Fonn C-15 reports for fiscal years 
2011 and 2012. The ending cost of assets initially reported on C-15 for June 30, 2012 
was $120,687 (in thousands), causing the C-15 to be overstated by that runount. 

• The Depart1nent utilizes a sutmnary worksheet to prepare its quarterly Agency Report 
of State Property Fonn (C-15) for sub1nission to the Co1nptroller's Office. Tlris 
worksheet contaip.s summarized activity by division and category (land, site 
i1nprove1nents, bull dings and itnprovements, equip1nent, and capital leases). The 
worksheet does not provide individual transaction detail to support the summarized 
totals. The Departinent provided the auditors with the su1mnary worksheets for 5 of 8 
(63%) fiscal year 2012 and 2011 quarterlyFonn C-15 sub1nissions. TI1e Depmiment 
could not provide the auditors with the smmnary worksheets for the first three quarters 
of fiscal year 2011 F onn C-15 subtnissions. Due to this lack of detailed reports, auditors 
were unable to test the co1nposition of the transactions reported on the F om1 C-15s in 
fiscal year 2011. In addition, the Departlnent failed to titnel y file 1 of 8 (13%) required 
quarterly F onn C-15 s with the illinois Office of the Co1nptroller. 
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During testing of equipment additions, deletions, transfers, location testing and voucher 
testing the following exceptions were noted: 

• Auditors selected 40 equip1nent additions for testing and identified 3 (8%) exceptions, 
one of the ite1ns noted did not include freight cost in the total asset value and two of the 
ite1ns could not be supported by invoices, receiving reports, or other documentation 
because, according to Department personnel, the infonnation was not available. 

• The auditors, during location testing at the Deparhnent' s Concordia Court campus, were 
unable to locate 1 of 10 (10%) of the iterns selected for testing. TI1e ite1n that could not 
be located was an office panel for a cubicle. 

• Auditors found one of 40 (3o/o) ite1ns was listed with the incorrect transaction code to 
indicate the type of transfer. 

• Auditors noted one of 40 (3°/o) ite1ns was deleted in an untimely manner from the 
unlocated property report. The Deparhnent's Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.70.120 
establishes procedures for re1noving missing property fro1n the Deparhnent' s inventory 
records. 

• Auditors selected 60 equipment vouchers for testing and identified 8 (13°/o) exceptions. 
Five of the vouchers tested contained equip1nent ite1ns that could not be traced to the 
property control listing in the Department's APCS. Two of the vouchers tested 
contained purchases 1nissing evidence that proper bidding procedures were followed. 
One of the vouchers contained an itern with a price which did not match the item's price 
on the property control listing in APCS. TI1e invoice indicated a price of $8,870 for the 
asset, wmJe $8,950 was listed in APCS, as well as an incorrect description for the asset. 

In addition, the auditors tested a sample of 317 equip1nent iterns from 17 Departlnent 
divisions (all 7 Adult Transition Centers and 10 Correctional Centers) for fiscal years 2011 
and 2012 to detennine whether the equipment was in the correct location and/or was 
properly recorded in the Deparhnent's APCS. As a result of the testing, numerous 
exceptions were noted, a su1nmary of some of the exceptions noted are: 

• Six ite1ns could not be located at the location listed on the APCS report or at all, the 
ite1ns that could not be located at all were a conveyor toaster, a dvd/vcr, a file cabinet, 
printer stand, co1nputer n1onitor, and a gas 1nask. Two ite1ns transferred-in could not be 
located at the location listed on the APCS report or at all, the items that could not be 
located at all were a filing cabinet and steel storage cabinet. Seven ite1ns were noted to 
be obsolete to the operational needs of the Centers, but were still maintained in the 
APCS property listing, some of the items considered obsolete were a tank processing 
cascade, x-ray inspection system, screw cutting lathe, VCR, diesel engine trainer, diesel 
mechanics, and 1neat chopper. 
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• During testing, two e1nployees were identified with privileges to add, change, and delete 
equip1nent records in APCS who no longer had job duties that required those privileges. 
In addition, 6 individuals no longer e1nployed with the Depart111ent were noted to still 
have full access to APCS. 

• Auditors identified 49 transferable equip1nent ite1ns had not yet been transferred to the 
Depamnent of Central Manage1nent Services (DCMS). The Hill Corr-ectional Center 
(Center) co1npleted the paperwork to transfer the iterns to DCMS in 2008, but the 
Depart1nent had delayed the transfer because it was considering reopening the 
auto1notive services vocational program at the Center in the future. In addition, 62 
co1nputer equipment ite1ns identified as obsolete in 2008 were not disposed of after the 
property was identified as scrap at that time by the Center. Another 106 cmnputer 
equipment ite1ns which were replaced in October 2011 and May 2012 were still being 
stored in the Center's Business Office during the engage1nent fieldwork rather than 
being transferred to DCMS Surplus Property. 

• Auditors identified 83 ite1ns that were listed under incorrect detail object codes. 79 were 
listed under a detail object code designed to identify ite1ns exceeding $100, when the 
ite1ns did not exceed $100, and 4 ite1ns not exceeding $100 were assigned detail object 
codes designed to identify assets exceeding $100. · 

• One transfer-in fro1n the Capital Develop1nent Board was recorded as belonging to the 
Shawnee Conectional Center when it actually occurred at the Menard Correctional 
Center. The activity involved emergency hot water piping repair totaling $77,453 in 
fiscal year 2011. 

The State Property Control Act (30 ILCS 605/6.02) states, "Each responsible officer shall 
maintain a pennanent record of all items of property under his jurisdiction and control. .. " 
The Co1nptroller's Statewide Accounting Manage1nent Syste1n (SAMS) procedure 
29.10.10 provides agencies with guidance on how to 1naintain such records and states, 
" ... detail records are to be organized by 1najor asset category and include the following 
information for each asset: (1) Cost (or other value); (2) function and activity; (3) 
reference to acquisition source document. .. (8) location ... (13) date, 1nethod and 
authorization of disposition ... This list is not exhaustive. An agency 1nay include 
additional infonnation for its own needs." SAMS procedures 03.30.30 and 27.20.38 
outline the instructions for capitalizing assets and the preparation of the SC0-538. This 
reporting process is necessary for the Co1nptroller to co1nplete the Statewide financial 
state1nents in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 

The illinois Adnlinistrative Code (44 ill. Admin. Code 5010.620(a)) requires the 
Department to regularly survey its equipment inventory for transferable equip1nent and 
report such equipment to the Departrnent of Central Manage1nent Services' Property 
Control Division. In addition, the Fiscal Controf and Internal Auditing Act (3 0 ILCS 
10/3001) (FCIAA) states, "All State agencies shall establish and maintain a syste1p, or 
syste1ns, of internal fiscal and ad1ninistrative controls, which shall provide assurance that: 
... (3) funds, property, and other assets and resources are safeguarded against waste, loss, 
unauthorized use, and 1nisappropriation." 
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In response to this finding frmn previous years, the Deparhnent stated it ·would continue to 
devote the resources necessary within the linritations of the existing APCS to ensure the 
property and equip1nent information is properly recorded and 1naintained. TI1e Deparhnent 
would also reevaluate the capabilities of the existmg APCS to detennine whether it could 
produce the type of data necessary for the Department to ensure accurate recordkeeping to 
prepare detailed capital asset infonnation, as well as accountability for all State assets. If 
necessary the Deparhnent would then research other property control syste1ns and their 
availability. In addition, the Deparhnent had established a follow-up 1nechanis1n to ensure 
adequate and appropriate i1nple1nentation occurred. 

Despite these efforts, the above weaknesses occurred during the audit period. The 
Deparhnent attributed the exceptions to hu1nan error, employee oversight, cmnpeting 
priorities and inherent li1nitations of the Deparhnent' s APCS. Specifically concernmg the 
obsolete ite1ns noted by the auditors, the Department stated the ite1ns were being 1naintained 
to be possibly utilized as replace1nent parts or for another auto1notive services class in the 
future at those specific Correctional Centers. Concenlillg the failure to transfer the 
Tho1nson Correctional Center to DCMS, the Deparhnent stated the length of the sale 
process caused the transaction to initiate ill one fiscal year and not to be completed until 
subsequent years. As a result, the accounting for the transaction did not occur as intended. 

Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, we consider this to be a 1naterial 
weakness in the Departlnent's mtemal control over financial and fiscal operations. A 
1naterial weakness is a deficiency or a combmation of deficiencies in internal control, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a 1naterial1nisstatelnent of the entity's financial 
state1nents or material noncompliance will occur and not be prevented or detected and 
corrected in a timely basis. 

The Departlnent had property and equip1nent totaling approxi1nately $1.6 billion as 
reported on the Fonn C-15 at June 30,2012 decentralized throughout the State~ Failure 
to 1naintain adequate fixed asset records is nonco1npliance with the State Property 
Control Act, FCIAA and SAMS ·and increases the risk of equipment theft or loss 
occurring without detection, and has resulted in inaccurate property I fixed asset 
reporting. (Finding Code No. 12-02, 10-04, 08-07) 

RECOl\11VIENDATION: 

We reco1runend the Deparhnent: 

• Strengthen its procedures over property and equip1nent to ensure accurate 
recordkeeping and accountability for all State assets. 
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• Incorporate internal revie'v procedures within its financial accounting function that 
ensures the capital asset infonnation is properly recorded and accounted for to pennit 
the preparation of reliable financial infonnation and reports to the Illinois Office of 
the Co1nptroller. 

• Continue to research 1nechanis1ns to allow the Depart1nent to prepare and utilize 
detailed capital asset infonnation. 

DEP ARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will continue devoting the resources 
necessary, within the li1nitations of the current technology and budget constraints of the 
existing Auto1nated Property Control System (APCS), to ensure that capital asset 
information is properly recorded and 1naintained. The Department will also re-evaluate 
the capabilities of the existing APCS to detennine whether it can produce the type of data 
necessary for the Depart1nent to prepare detailed capital asset infonnation. 
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12-03 FINDING: (Inadequate controls over inventory) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Departlnent) failed to 1naintain adequate controls over its 
inventory. 

The inventory balance reported by the Deparhnent at June 30, 2012 totaled $14.3 1nillion, 
not including the inventory balance of the Departlnent's- Correctional Industries. Each 
Correctional Center 1naintained at least a portion of that invento1y balance in the way of 
co1mnodity and/or co1mnissary inventory. 

As part of performing the fmancial audit of the Department, auditors perfonned tests of 
co1mnodity and/or co1mnissary inventory at 10 of the Department's 27 Conectional Centers. 
The detennination of those 10 Correctional Centers was 1nade based upon an analysis of the 
Correctional Centers' :invento1y, capital asset, and locally held fund balances. 

Auditors identified nmnerous exceptions and weaknesses related to the controls over 
conunodity and co1mnissary inventory operations. A smm11ary of smne of the exceptions 
identified are as follo-ws: 

• Auditors noted at 5 Correctional Centers the inventory counts co1npleted by Center 
personnel did not agree to. accounting records in The Inventory Manage1nent Syste1n 
(TIMS) or the Fund Accounting and Co1mnissary Trading Syste1n (FACTS). The 
exceptions were noted at Dixon, East l\1oline, Hill, Shawnee, and Stateville Correctional 
Centers. 

• Auditors identified access control weaknesses associated with The Inventory 
Management System (TIMS) at Grahmn, Hill, and Stateville Correctional Centers. 
Retired eniployees and e1nployees whose job responsibilities did not require access to 
the application vv-ere noted to have access to TIMS. 

• Auditors noted weaknesses in segregation of duties for :inventory procedures at Hill 
and Lawrence Correctional Centers. 

• Auditors found Pinckneyville Correctional Center understated its end of year 
co1mnissary inventory balances to the General Office by $70,942. The Center did not 
record invoices in FACTS for inlnate commissary goods totaling $70,942 until fiscal 
year 2013, although the items were received prior to June 30, 2012, during or after the 
Center was conducting its year-end inventory com1ts. The Deparhnent did not adjust its 
financial state1nents at June 30, 2012 for this error as it was considered limnaterial to the 
Departlnent' s overall financial state1nents. 

• Auditors noted stockpilli1g of li1ventory totalii1g $120,650 at Stateville Correctional 
Center. Stockpiling is defined as 1nali1taining a supply greater than the level needed for 
a twelve month period. 
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• Auditors identified Stateville Correctional Center n1ade a large quantity of adjustments 
to agree its records within TIMS to its year end physical inventory counts. The 

· adjushnents ru11ounted to decreases in TIM:S of$116,568 at June 30,2011 and $94,187 
at June 30, 2012. 

• Auditors found Hill Correctional Center did not co1nplete a full inventory of 
commodities at June 30, 2012 by not reporting $76,565 of donated ha1n; counting, 
reporting or determining. a value of donated pizza rolls; and did not count or report the 
value of new offender clothing ite1ns forw-ard-stocked in the Center's clothes warehouse. 
New items had been removed fro1n the ite1n's packaging and intennixed with used 
offender clothing ite1ns the Center pla1n1ed to redistribute to offenders at the Center. 
The forward-stock ite1ns appeared to be 1nore tha11 one week's worth of offender 
clothing issues. 

In response to tlus finding fro1n the previous audit, the Department indicated it had 1nade 
so1ne revisions in 1naintaining a11d accounting for inventory with the nnple1nentation of 
TIM:S and would strive to contmue making nnprove1nents in the Deparhnent' s centralized 
oversight fw.1ction a11d the inventory accounting and maintena11ce within the facilities. 
However, despite those colTective action activities, the above exceptions still occurred 
during the audit period. 

The Deparhnent attributed the exceptions noted in the current audit to human error, 
employee oversight, co1npeting priorities, and/or shortages of staff. Furthermore, the 
Deparhnent stated it was unaware of the requiranents to record the receipt of donated items 
in its inventory. Deparhnent manage1nent stated difficulties and confusion occurred at the 
Correctional Centers concerning processing receipts of inventory shipments close to the end 
of its fiscal year, specifically once the inventory counts had begun. Finally, backorders and 
group purchases smneti1nes led to stockpiling of certain invento1y ite1ns. 

The Department has established several A&ninistrative Directives (A.D.'s) concerning · 
inventory procedures and the above noted weaknesses. A.D. 02.82.101 requires inventory 
records to be maintained to reflect co1mnodity usage and consu1nption to help ensure 
account records are 1naintained correctly. A.D. 02.82.103 requires the Department's 
Receiving Officer and Storekeeper (or designated alternates) complete a Store Receiving 
Report to record each individual's receipt and independent review of goods delivered to the 
Correctional Centers. A.D. 02.82.108 requires the Deparhnent limit tl1e forward stock of a 
supply of goods to expected usage over one week. A.D. 02.82.114A-J reiterates tl1e 
ilnportance of reconciling the inventory records to the accounting records to verify the 
accuracy and value on hand of co1mnodity items. It also requires inventory to be properly 
priced and addresses adjushnents to i11ventory. A.D. 02.85.103 requires the Depa1i1nent' s 
Cmnn1issary Supervisors to 1naintain strict control over inventory. 

The Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS) Procedure 03.60.20 requires the 
Depart1nent perfonn an annual physical count of inventory on hand and to reconcile the 
results to inventory records to ensure the co1npleteness and accuracy of those records. 
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The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (3 0 ILCS 1 0/3 001) requires the Deparhnent 
establish and maintain a syste1n of inten1al fiscal and ad1ninistrative controls to provide 
assurance State property is safeguarded against loss or misappropriation and assets are 
properly recorded and accounted for to 1naintain accountability ov~r the State's resources. 
In addition, generally accepted accounting principles require the proper valuation and 
control over annual physical inventory processes to ensure cmnplete and accurate 
inventories for financial reporting purposes. An unproved oversight function would allow 
the Departlnent to reduce deficiencies in internal control over 1naintaining inventory. 

The illinois Procure1nent Code (30 ILCS 500/50-55) requires every State agency to stock no 
more than a 121nonth supply of inventory. 

GASB State1nent 33, Paragraphs 24 and 30, requires the Department nnmediatelyrecognize 
as·sets and revenues from voluntary non-exchange transactions (transactions where a 
govennnent receives resour.ces without having to directly give equal value in exchange) 
without a11 eligibility require1nent at the tilne of receivu1g the donation. 

Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, we consider this to be a significant 
deficiency in the Depamnent' s inten1al control. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in inte1nal control that is less severe than a 1naterial weakness, 
yet nnportar1t enough to lnerit attention by those charged with governance. 

Strong internal controls require an improved centralized oversight function related to 
inventory. Failure to nnplement such controls could lead to theft and loss of assets and 
nonco1npliance with Department and statutory guidelines as Vt7eJ1 as not accurately reporting 
the fiscal year end inventory balances which would, in tum, reduce tl).e reliability of 
Statewide financial reportll1g. (Finding Code No. i2-03, 10-06, 08-09) 

RECOl\1l\1ENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Depart1nent lin prove its centralized oversight function related to 
inventory to allow for improved·controls. · 

DEP ARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Department has made so1ne revisions in 1naintaining 
and accounting for inventory witl1 the ilnplementation of The Inventory Manage1nent 
Syste1n (TIMS) and Fund Accounting and Co1nmissary Trading Syste1n (FACTS). 
During an absence of sufficient resources, the Depart111ent contracted with an accounting 
fmn to assist in meeting the necessary fiscal require1nents. The Assistant Deputy 
Director position responsible for Fiscal Accounting Co1npliance was filled effective 
February 1, 2012. Adequate resources have been added, striving to continue n1aking 
ilnprove1nents in the Depart1nent's centralized oversight function and to the inventory 
accounting and lnaintenance within the facilities. 
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12-04 FINDING: (Inadequate ad1ninistration of locally held funds at the Correctional 
Centers) 

The Department of Corrections' (Department) Correctional Centers inadequately 
ad1ninistered locally held (bank accounts) funds during the audit period. 

As part of perfonning the financial audit of the Departlnent, auditors perfonned tests of the 
locally held funds at 10 ofthe Deparhn~t's 27 Correctional Centers. The detennination of 
those 10 Correctional Centers was 1nade based upon an analysis of the Correctional Centers' 
inventory, capital asset, and locally held fund balances. The specific locally held funds 
tested included the DOC Co1mnissary Funds (Co1nmissary Fund), DOC Resident's Trust 
Fund (Trust Fund), and the DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund {Resident 
Benefit Fund and E1nployee Benefit Fund). 

Auditors identified several exceptions and weaknesses related to the controls over the 
Conectional Centers' locally held funds as follows: 

• Exceptions were noted at Dixon, East Moline, Graham, Hill, Jacksonville, 
Pinckneyville, and Shawnee where adequate controls over the Resident Benefit Fund or 
the E1nployee Benefit Fund were not exercised. Auditors noted instances where the 
Centers could not provide 1ninutes from the cominittee meetings; cmmnittee meeting 
1ninutes did not include approval of the expenditures; and a Center did not appoint an 
Assistant Chief A&ninistrative Officer to serve on the co1mnittee. Auditors noted 
exceptions where expenditures exceeded the approved limits established by the 
cormnittees without docmnentation or subsequent approval provided; Centers could not 
provide auditors with invoices to support disburse:tnents frmn the funds; Centers were 
unable to access the online banking feature of the benefit account to properly monitor 
their account balance; and auditors noted docrunentation for expenditures did not obtain 
all the required approvals, such as frmn the Leisure Time Activities Supervisor or the 
Chief Administrative Officer. Finally, auditors noted ilnproper expenditures were 
processed frmn the funds, such as for repair expenses for the Center that should have 
beeri paid frmn the General Revenue Fund. 

DepamnentAd1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.43.102 establishes written guidelines for 
expenditures fro1n both of the Resident Benefit Fund and the E1nployee Benefit Fund, 
includii1g the creation of a committee at each Center for the benefit funds it a&ninisters. 
The benefit fund cmnmittees review and approve the purchase requests. A.D. 02.43.102 
specifies the types of expenditures which can be 1nade out of the benefit funds. A.D. 
02.43.103 states a check shall be prepared and processed for paYJnent of the authorized 
invoice. A.D. 02.95.105 requires records to be properly identified for ready access and 
to be stored and safeguarded at the facility. 
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• Auditors noted disbursements from the Commissru.y Fund at East Moline Vi'ere not 
supported by purchase order docutnentation. A.D. 02.95.105 requires records to be 
properly identified for ready access and to be stored and safeguarded at the facility. 

• East Moline and Grahru.n did not properly perfonn 1nonthly reconciliations of their 
locally held funds. Auditors noted reconciliations where deposits were 1narked as 
cleared when they had not yet cleared. A.D. 02.40.104 requires reconciliation of the 
locally held fund, general ledger, and subsidiru.y accounts to occur 1nonthly after the 
fund checking account has been reconciled and the General Ledger posting is 
cmnpleted. When cotnpleted, the reconciliation is to be submitted to the Business 
Adtninistrator ru.1d Chief Adtninistrator for review and signature. 

• Auditors noted Dixon, East Moline, GrahaJ.n, and Hill did not properly report accounts 
payable at June 30,2011 and 2012. Auditors noted the Centers were unable to provide 
supporting documentation to determine whether or not the Center properly excluded the 
ite1n or included the ite1n in its accounts payable listing at June 30 of each respective 
fiscal year. Additionally, auditors noted one Center failed to transfer an offender's 
negative trust fund balance to the offender's successive State correctional facility 
causing additional accounts payable. Another Center incorrectly classified a credit as an 
accounts payable instead of a prepaid expense. 

• Grahrun, East Moline, Dixon, Menard, and Shawnee did not deposit locally held fund 
receipts tlinely. In addition, East Moline, Gral1am, and Shawnee did not 1naintain a 
bank verification slip; therefore, auditors were unable to detennine if other receipts were 
deposited timely. A.D. 02.40.110 requires the Departlnent to deposit cash accumulated 
in the ru.nount of $1,000 or 1nore on any Business Office working day no later thm1 
12:00 mn the next working day. The A.D. also requires deposits to be made at least 
once a week. 

• Auditors noted Shawnee, East Moline, and Grahmn did not properly sign the Monies 
Received List indicating the batches Vi' ere in balance. A.D. 02.42.102 requires the 
1nailroo1n etnployee to sign the DOC 0167 or the Monies Received List at the titne of 
delivery to the Cashier.. The Cashier then tnust sign on the appropriate line of the 
DOC 0167 or the Monies Received List Report. 

• Weaknesses i11 segregation of duties Vi'ere noted at East Moline, GrahaJ.n, and Dixon. 
Specific incmnpatible duties noted by the auditors included: 

- Signature cards were not updated with proper signature authority with the finm1cial 
institution. The only signatures noted on file were of inactive etnployees. 

- E1nployees had the authority to vvithdraw cash from the cash to card 1nachine and 
obtaining and retaining the machine's smmnary data for the mnount of cash which 
should be present in the machine. 

- The sru.ne etnployee was responsible for reconciling the 1nonthly bank statements 
and approving checks. 

- The smne etnployee was responsible for perfonning the bank reconciliation and 
approving the bank reconciliation. 
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- Mailing of locally held fund checks was perfonned by the same individual who was 
responsible for writing the checks. 

- The same employee was responsible for the 1nonthly bank reconciliations and was 
the custodian of cash. 

A.D. 02.40.101 establishes the Depa1i1nent' s guidelines for segregation of duties for 
its locally held funds. The A.D. states any exceptions to the policies within the A.D. 
must be stated in writing frmn the Chief Ad1ninistrative Officer and approved by the 
Deputy Director of the Division of Finance and Ad1ninistration. 

• Auditors noted Dixon, East Moline, Graham, and Shawnee did not generate checks fro1n 
the Trust Fund for paytnent of offender cmmnissary purchases in a tilnely 1nanner. 
According to A.D. 02.4 2.1 05, a check payable is to be \Vritten to the Connnissary Fund 
for the total aJ.nount of daily purchases at least weekly. 

• At East Moline, auditors noted disbursements were not supported by docmnentation to 
substantiate a proper disbm·se1nent. In addition, atDixon and Gral1mn, the lack of 
adequate supporting docmnentation prevented auditors fro1n deterrnilung whether 

. amounts deposited \Vere reasonable m1d complete. 

• Auditors noted Dixon did not accurately calculate vending machine co1nmissions. As a 
result, an understate1nent of the receipts owed to the Department occurred. The Blind 
Vendors Act (20 ILCS 2421/30(e)) requires the Center's vending 1nachine operator 
re1nit a conunission of 25% of the net proceeds fro1n the Center's vending 1nachines 
.designated for offenders' benefit to the Center. The Center's contract with the 
Depart1nent ofHu1nan Services' Business Enterprise Program defmes the 
co1mnission as 25o/o of net sales after taxes and cost of goods. 

• Auditors noted Jacksonville failed to perfonn monthly cash reviews for 18 of24 (75%) 
1nonths during the audit period, which resulted in a large liability due to the Resident 
Benefit Fund frmn the Cmmnissary Fund at June 30,2012. Additionally, the Center 
failed to transfer excess cash fro1n the Co1mnissary Fund to the Resident Benefit Fund 
for all6 of the months tested by the auditors. The Unified Code of Corrections (730 
ILCS 5/3-4-3(c)) states forty percent ofthe profits on sales from co1mnissary stores shall 
be expended by the Departlnent for the special benefit of co1nrnitted persons m1d 
e1nployees. Additionally, A.D. 02.44.110 requires the Business Adrnilustrator to 
determine the excess cash available in the Inmate Co1nmissary Fund once a month and 
authorize paytnent to the Inmate Benefit Fund. 

• Auditors noted Dixon vending 1nachine cmnrnissions, donations, and unspent monies 
fro1n the Resident Benefit Fund were incorrectly deposited in the Commissary Fund. 
Additionally, auditors noted that contraband receipts were incorrectly deposited in the 
Resident Benefit Fund instead of the General Revenue Fund. A.D. 02.13.101 requires 
the Departlnent deposit donations and vending machine com1nissions into the applicable 
Center's Inmate Benefit Fund. The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-4-
3(d)) requires the Depart1nent tra11smit currency confiscated fro1n offenders to the 
State Treasurer for deposit into the General Revenue Fund. 
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In addition to the specific Deparhnent Achninistrative Directives and statutes referenced in 
the exceptions, the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires the 
Deparhnent establish and 1naintain a system of internal fiscal and administrative controls to 
provide assurance that revenues, expenditures, and transfers of assets, resources or funds 
applicable to operations are properly recorded and accounted for to pennit the preparation 
of accounts and reliable financial reports and to 1naintain accountability over the State's 
resources. The State Records Act (5 ILCS 160/8 & 9) requires the Depart1nent preserve 
records containing adequate and proper docmnentation of its essential transactions to 
protect the legal and financial rights of the State as well as to establish and maintain a 
progrmn for agency records 1nanagernent, which includes effective controls over 
maintenance of records .. 

In response to tllis finding fro1n the previous audit, Department 1nanagement stated it \Vould 
re1nind facility staff of the requirements related to the operation m1d 1naintenance of locally 
held funds. Deparhnent 1nanagement indicated the exceptions noted during the current audit 
\Vere due to e1nployee oversight, human error, co1npeting priorities, and staffing lnnitations 
at the correctional facilities. 

Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, we consider this to be a significant 
deficiency in the Deparhnent' s internal control. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
co1nbi11ation of deficiencies, in inten1al control that is less severe than a 1naterial weakness, 
yet nnportant enough to 1nerit attention by those charged with governance. 

It is important to properly administer locally held funds as they are not subject to 
appropriation and are held outside the State Treasury. In addition, failure to adequately 
administer locally held funds could lead to fraud, theft, or the use of unavailable 1nonies in 
the funds causing overdraft charges. Inadequate administration also represents 
noncompliance with statute. (Finding Code No. 12-04, 10-07, 08-14) 

RECOlVIJVIENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Depart1nent remind Center staff of the require1nents set forth within 
the Ad1ninistrative Directives and statutes related to the operation and 1naintenance of the 
locally held funds. A training curriculmn which includes how to apply the 
Administrative Directives specific to the locally held funds could assist in this endeavor. 
In addition, we reCOlmnend the Departlnent' s Internal Audit Division nnplelnent a plan to 
pe1iodically perfonn internal audits of the locally held funds at the Centers. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Reconunendation accepted. The Department will re1nind facility staff of the 
requirements related to the operation and 1naintenance of locally held funds. The 
Assistant Deputy Director position responsible for Fiscal Accounting Co1npliance was 
filled effective February 1, 2012. Adequate resources have been added, striving to 
continue making i1nprovements in the Department's centralized oversight function and by 
the training of facility staff. 
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12-05 FINDING: (Weaknesses in a&ninistration of locally held funds at the General Office) 

Weaknesses were noted in the Department of Corrections' (Depart1nent) General Office 
ad1ninistration of its locally held (bank accounts) funds during the audit period. 

During the audit period, the Department's locally held funds were managed independently 
at each individual Correctional Center, Adult Transitional Center (ATC) or tl1e General 
Office, with the exception of the residents portion of the DOC Resident's and E1nployee' s 
Benefit Fund. The resident benefit fund bank accounts in the DOC Resident's and 
Employee's Benefit Fund are managed at the Depart:t.nent's General.Office by the Public 
Safety Shared Services Center (PSSSC). TI1e individual facilities provided financial 
infonnation related to each of their other individually 1nanaged locally held funds and bank 
accounts to the Deparhnent' s General Office for consolidation and financial reporting for 
the Deparhnent a.S a ·whole. 

In response to the previous finding concerrling weaknesses in ad1ninistration oflocallyheld 
funds at the General Office, tl1e Department stated it would separate the Depart:t.nent of 
Juvenile Justice funds and the Deparhnent's funds, which had previously been comingled 
within the same account at a financial institution. TI1e Depart1nent accmnplished tllis during 
the audit period. The Depart1nent also stated it would nnplement controls to 1naintain 
adequate source docmnentation to support receipts deposited iJ?.tO the DOC Resident's and 
En1ployee' s Benefit Fm1d. Tins was also sufficiently i1nple1nented during the audit period. 

Despite the linprove1nents described, the auditors noted the following weaknesses during the 
testing of the Department's locally held funds a&ninistered at the G~neral Office for the two 
years ended Jm1e 30, 2012: 

• $11,981,510 related to the statutory transfers of profits fro1n the Inmate Cmrunissary 
Funds (1127) that should have been deposited into the Department of Corrections 
Rei1nburse1nent Fund (0523) was deposited into the residents portion of the DOC 
Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund during all of fiscal year 2011 and for a portion 
of fiscal year 2012. The residents portion of the DOC Resident's and Employee's 
Benefit Fund contains one 1nain operating account with- sub accounts for each 
Correctional Center and ATC. The $11,981,510 was deposited into the subaccount for 
the Joliet Correctional Center which was closed in 2002 and had not been utilized for 
any Department needs since tl1at tune. 

• $10,000 was loaned, and subsequently repaid in fiscal year 2011, frmn the residents 
portion of the DOC Resident's and E1nployee's Benefit Fund to the Deparhnent's Field 
Services Division for postage at the Adult Field Services locations throughout tl1e State. 
A.D. 02.43.102 outlines the specific uses of the residents portion of the DOC Resident's 
and E1nployee's Benefit Fund. The purchase of postage for the resale through the 
inmate's co1m11issmy fund is allowed, but a loan to support the Deparhnent's operations 
is not. 
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• Auditors noted smne Correctional Centers utilize gift cards that were purchased through 
locally held funds to tnake purchases frmn vendors as opposed to the vendors billing the 
Correctional Center. The Department has an infonnal process for handling gift cards 
but does not have a written administrative directive relating to the use, reporting, and 
safeguarding of purchasing (gift) cards. 

• The Departlnent could not provide requested copies of the Report of Receipts and 
Disbursetnents for Locally Held Funds (C-17) for the first three quarters of fiscal year 
2011. As such, testing could not be perfonned to detennine if those reports were filed 
on a tunely basis. The C-17s tested for the remainder of the audit period were 
detennined to be filed by the required deadlines. However, the C-17 due on July 31, 
2012 for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 for the DOC Resident's Trust Fund was 
resubtnitted on October 26, 2012. $603 (in thousands) of cash balances and related 
liabilities for the contractually a&ni11istered ATCs was otnitted fro1n the originally 
subtnitted C-17. The State Records Act (5 ILCS 160/8) requires the Depruiment 
preserve records contailung adequate and proper docmnentation of its essential 
transactions to protect the legal and financial rights of the State. The State 
Co1nptroller Act (15 ILCS 405/16) allows the Comptroller, by rule, to prescribe the fonn 
and require the filing of quarterly fiscal reports by State agency. The Con1ptroller' s 
Statewide Accounting Managetnent System (SAMS) procedures 33.13.10 and 33.13.20 
sets forth the Agency requirements for locally held fund financial infonnation. 

• Auditors noted the Departlnent allowed a tax exe1npt organization, Wmnen in 
Corrections, to utilize its Federal Etnployer Identification Number (FEIN) to open a 
checking accom1t at a financial institution. The tax exe1npt organization intended to 
change the FEIN on the checking account once it received its assigned FEIN fi·om the 
Internal Revenue Service. However, ac~ording to Departlnent personnel, the tax exempt 
organization failed to do so due to oversight. As a result, the Departrnent controlled an 
unintended locally held fund with a balance of$449 at June 30,2012 which was never 
authorized or reported to the Comptroller. The State Officers and Etnployees Money 
Disposition Act (30 ILCS 230/2A.2) states, ''No officer or e1nployee of this State shall 
create or maintain or participate i11 a trust fund or bank or savings and loan association 
deposit of any 1noney received by hiln by virtue of his office or etnploytnent except as 
provided by law." The Comptroller's Statewide Accounting Managetnent System 
(SAMS) procedures 33.13.10 and 33.13.20 sets forth theAgencyrequiretnents for 
locally held fund financial infonnation. 

In addition to the specific Department administrative directives and statutes referenced in 
the exceptions the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires the 
Depart1nent establish and 1naintain a syste1n of internal fiscal and a&ninistrative controls to 
provide assurance that revenues, expenditures, and transfers of assets, resources or funds 
applicable to operations are properly recorded and accounted for to pennit the preparation 
of accounts and reliable financial reports and to maintain accountability over the State's 
resources. 

The Departtnent attributed the above weaknesses to conflicting priorities and etnployee 
oversight. 
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Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, we consider this to be a significant 
deficiency in the Deparhnent' s mtemal control. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
co1nbination of deficiencies, in inte1nal control that is less severe than a 1naterial weakness, 
yet unportant enough to lnerit attention by those charged with govenlance. 

It is iJ.nportant to properly ad1ninister locally held funds as they are not subject to 
appropriation and are held outside the State Treasury. Failure to adequately ad1ninister 
locally held funds could lead to fraud, theft, or the use of unavailable 1nonies in the funds 
causing overdraft charges. Furthermore, failure to deposit 1noney into the statutorily 
required fund on a ti1nely basis prevents 1nanage1nent from 1naking judicious decisions. 
Finally, inadequate ad1ninistration also represents noncompliance with statute. (Finding 
Code No. 12-05, 10-08, 08-08) 

RECOl\flVIENDATION: 

We reco1nmend the Depart1nent take the following actions to improve its adn1inistration 
of its locally held funds: 

• The Departlnent should comply with the statutory require1nents of depositing receipts 
into the funds in which they belong. 

• The Department should follow the guidelines explained in the Aillninistrative 
Directives for the uses of the DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund and not 
utilize the fund as a means to circumvent its appropriation for operating purposes, 
such as postage as described above. 

• If the Departlnentwishes to allow the use of purchasing (gift) cards at its Correctional 
Centers as a 1nethod of disburse1nent in its locally held funds, the Department should 
develop official procedures for their use and fonnalize those in the Administrative 
Directives. 

• The Department should abide by the State Records Act and preserve the records 
necessary to docmnent its financial activities. In addition, the Departlnent should 
abide by the guidelines of the State Comptroller Act and SAMS regarding the 
co1npleteness of the infonnation included on the Report of Receipts and 
Disbursen1ents for Locally Held Funds (C-17). 

DEPARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will ensure the following of Ad1ninistrative 
Directives for the uses of locally held funds and also preserving and 1naintain records 
necessary to docu1nent its financial activity. The Assistant Deputy Director position 
responsible for Fiscal Accounting Compliance was filled effective February 1, 2012. 
Adequate resources have been added to nnprove its ad1ninistration of locally held funds 
at the General Office. 
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12-06 FINDING: (Inadequate controls over accounts receivable) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections' (Depart1nent)- Correctional Industries did not maintain 
adequate inten1al controls over its accounts receivable. 

During their testing of ~ccounts receivable, auditors of the Depart1nent' s- Correctional 
Industries noted: 

• The Depart1nent's- ColTectional Industries did not send out 1nonthly state1nents to its 
custo1ners. According to the Depart1nent's- Correctional Industries' Accounts 
Receivable Collection Procedures, custo1ner state1nents are to be sent on a monthly 
basis in order to provide a re1ninder of outstanding runounts. 

• The Department's - Correctional Industries did not take actions to bill and collect 
receivables within the fiscal year in which the debt was incuned. According to the 
records of the Department's - Correctional Industries, accounts receivable due over­
one year totaled $1,135,000 at June 30, 2012. The Correctional Industries Code (20 
Ill. Ad1n. Code 117.50e) states, "Correctional Industries shall1nak:e reasonable efforts 
to bill and collect receivables in the fiscal year which the debit was incurred." 

• The Departlnent did not issue catch up billings in the subsequent fiscal year for 
accounts with balances fro1n the prior fiscal year. According to Depart1nent records, 
accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 totaled $10,043,000. The Correctional 
Industries Code (20 Ill. Ad1n. Code 117 .50£) states,· "Correctional Industries shall 
issue catch-up billing in the subsequent fiscal [year] for those accounts that show a 
balance for the prior fiscal year." 

• The Quarterly Suffilnary of Accounts Receivable Reports (C-97) filed with the 
illinois Office of the Co1nptroller for fiscal years 2011 and 2012 were not signed by 
1nanage1nent for 7 of the 8 (88%) filings. The C-97 filed with the Illinois Office of 
the Co1nptroller for the period ended June 30, 2011 was runended three ti1nes. 
Chapter 26 of the SAMS Manual requires State agencies to report quarterly accurate 
information related receivables, collections, write-offs, uncollectible accounts and the 
nu1nber of accounts for gross receivables. In addition, the report is to contain the 
signature of a "responsible agency official." 

Depart1nent 1nanagement stated the accounting software used for accounts receivable 
requires specific posting of custo1ner paJlnents with the actual invoice being paid. 
Between 2006 and 2012 the payments were not always posted properly to the 1natching 
invoices. As a result, the custo1ners' detailed statement became lengthy and was no 
longer sent. Manage1nent stated the majority of the receivables are fro1n State agencies. 
The Department also noted the responsibility for reviewing the receivable aging trial 
balance is the task of the Depart1nent' s - Correctional Industries' Chief Financial Officer, 
tlus position was not pennanently filled during the engagement period. 
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Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, tllis is considered a material 
weakness in the Department's internal control over financial and fiscal operations. A 
1naterial weakness is a deficiency, or a co1nbination of deficiencies, in internal control, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstate1nent of the entity's 
financial state1nents will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a tilnely basis. 

Failure to have adequate docmnentation for accounts receivable increases the chances of 
errors occuning in reporting the accounts receivable and the likelihood of accounts 
recei.vable not being accurately tracked for collection. (Finding Code No. 12-06) 

RECOlVlJVlENDATION: 

We recotnmend the Depart1nent' s - Correctional Industries 1naintain adequate controls 
over accounts receivable to ensure: 

• Montlliy state1nents are sent out; 
• Reasonable efforts are put forth related to the billing and collection of accounts; 
• Catch up billings are sent out; and, 
• Quarterly Smmnary of Accounts Receivable Reports are accurate and signed by an 

appropriate official. 

DEPARTlVlENT RESPONSE: 

Recoffilnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will ensure that the Illinois Correctional 
Industries fiscal staff takes all possible steps to work towards accurate andtnnely 
reconciliations. Ensure the recordings of all customers' accbm1ts receivable are 
maintained at the invoice level. In addition the Department of Corrections will ensure the 
Illinois Correctional Industries fiscal staff sends out custo1ner statements; effotis will be 
put forth to ensure proper. invoicing and collection of accounts; Co1nptroller' s Quarterly 
Su1mnary of Accounts Receivable Report is accurate and approved by an appropriate 
official. 
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12-07 FINDING: (Lack of collection efforts over fann leases) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections' (Depart1nent) ~Correctional Industries failed to pursue 
collections of past due amounts owed frmn fann leases. 

The Depart1nent's- Correctional Industries had entered into 12 leases totaling 3,619 acres 
and annual rent of$602,000 for fiscal years 2011 and 2012. According to Depart1nent 
records, accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 related to fann leases was-$209 thousand. 

During testing of the farm lease progrmn, auditors of the Departlnent's- Correctional 
Industries noted: 

• Per correspondence dated January 2, 2012, as the lessor on behalf oflllinois 
Correctional Industries, the Department of Central Manage1nent Services (DCMS) i~ 
responsible for the collection of any delinquent accounts. However the lease 
agree1nent states 1nonthly payments are to be sub1nitted to the illinois Correctional 
Industries for deposit into the Working Capital Revolving Fund (Fund 0301). 
Auditors inquired with the Depmi1nent's- Correctional Industries regarding the 
co1mnru1ications to DCMS related to delinquent accounts; however, docu1nentation 
was not provided. 

• DCMS sent out two notices for collection. Both tenants paid; however, one tenant did 
not 1nake paytnent of interest totaling $9,000. Additionally, the Depart1nent's­
Correctional Industries did not record the outstanding interest as an accounts 
receivable on its fmancial statements at June 30, 2012. 

• The Department's - Correctional Industries did not follow its internal procedures for 
accounts receivable, whereby 1nonthly state1nents are required to be sent on all 
delinquent accounts. According to the Depart1nent' s - Correctional Industiies, 
1nanage1nent relied upon the lease as the tenant's notification of the mnounts owed. 

• The lease agree1nents state 1nonthly finance charges of 1.5% (18% annually) are to be 
assessed. However, interest was not assessed on past due accounts, totaling 
approxilnately $90,000. In addition, the Departlnent' s - Correctional Industries did 
not record the outstanding interest as an account receivable on its fmancial state1nents 
at June 30, 2012. 

• The fann lease accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 included $210,000 which had 
been outstanding over one year, and 90o/o past due for 1nore than five years. However, 
the Department's- Correctional Industries had not reviewed the accounts for 
collectability and had not established a11 allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Manage1nent from the Depart1nent's- Correctional Industries stated, in prior years, the 
Depart1nent attempted to 1nonitor and track fan11leases. Upon a letter dated January 2, 
2012 from the Department of Central Manage1nent Services' Bureau of Property 
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Managetnent, it was determined that the Departlnent of Central Managetnent Services has 
the role of adtninistrator of these leases. In regards to the Department's procedures for 
monthly statetnents on accounts receivable, proposed language for mnending the 
procedure was provided. 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires, "All State 
agencies shall establish and tnaintain a systetn, or systetns, of internal fiscal and 
administrative controls, which shall provide assurance that: ... ( 4) revenues, expenditures 
atld transfers of assets, resources, or funds applicable to operations are properly recorded 
atld accounted for to pennit the preparation of accounts and reliable financial and 
stati~tical reports and to maintain accountability over the State's resources." 

Because of the significance of the exceptions noted, this is considered a tnaterial 
weakness in the Departtnent' s internal control over financial and fiscal operations. A 
tnaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a cmnbination of deficiencies, in inten1al control, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materialtnisstatetnent of the entity's 
financial statetnents will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a titnely basis. 

Revenue frotn the fann leases represented 40% of the net incotne of the \Vorking Capital 
Revolving Fund (Fund 0301). Failure to follow up on delinquent accounts increases the 
chances of receivables not being collected and accurately tracked~ (Finding Code No. 12-
07) 

REC01Vll\1ENDATION: 

We recotmnend the Department's - Correctional Industries work with DCMS regarding 
the adtninistration of the farm leases. In addition, the Department should ensure all 
infonnation is accurately reflected in the financial statetnents. 

DEPARTJ\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recotmnendation accepted. The Departtnent will ensure that the Illinois Correctional 
Industries fiscal staff will take necessary steps to ensure farm lease financial infonnation 
is accurately reflected in the financial state1nents and will work with the Department of 
Central Managetnent Services regarding the adtninistration and collection of farm leases. 
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12-08 FINDING: (Lack of control over cotnputer systetns) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Departlnent) had not implemented or documented the 
contt·ols over its con1puting environtnent to ensure the controls provide sufficient 
protection. 

In order to meet its mission of "protecting the public from criminal offenders," the 
Depatiment utilizes a 1nyriad of cotnputer syste1ns such as the Offender Tracking, 
Juvenile Tracking, Fund Accounting and Cotmnissary Trading Syste1ns atld A·ccounting 
Infonnation Syste1n. The Department utilizes these systems to track offender's location, 
infonnation, and 1naintain accounting of offender's finances. 

As part of the auditors standard audit procedures, policies, procedures, recovery plans, 
and various logs are requested fro1n the Department in order to detennine the controls 
over the cotnputing enviromnent. However, the Department was either unable to provide 
or did not tnaintain such infonnation. In addition, as the auditors perfonned other testing 
procedures it was noted Departlnent e1nployees and former employees had inappropriate 
access to the various syste1ns. 

The Department's inability to provide detailed infonnation prevented the auditors from 
perfonning required.tests to detennine the adequacy of the control enviromnent. For 
exatnple, the auditors were unable to detennine the effectiveness of controls over chm1ges 
to applications or co1nputer security controls. 

Depart1nent tnanagetnent stated that changes in staffing levels and the retirements of IS 
tnanagetnent was the cause for such information to be overlooked and not 1naintained. 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires "All State 
agencies shall establish and 1naintain a syste1n, or systems, of inten1al fiscal and 
adtninistrative controls, which shall provide assurance that: (3) funds, property, and other 
assets and resources are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, and 
1nisappropriation." 

Because of the significance of the issues noted, we consider tlus to be a sigruficm1t 
deficiency in the Department's internal control. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 1nate1ial weakness, 
yet i111portant enough to 1nerit attention by those charged with goven1ance. 

Without adequate controls over the co1nputing enviromnent, there is a great risk of 
unauthorized access, unauthorized or lin proper changes and the inability to recovery in 
the event of a disaster. The lack of control increases the risk that the confidentiality, 
integrity and availability of syste1ns and data will be cmnprotnised. (Finding Code No. 
12-08) 
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RECOl\11\ffiNDATION: 

We recotnmend the Departlnent implement and docutnent the controls over its computing 
enviromnent and ensure the controls provide sufficient protection. 

DEPARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recotmnendation accepted. The Depmitnent will ensure that IT internal controls are 
i1npletnented and docutnented over its cotnputing environment to provide for sufficient 
protection. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

CURRENT FINDINGS 
(STATE COMPLIANCE) 

12-09 FINDING: (Operation and tnaintenance of"cash box" funds at Correct1onal Centers) 

Each of the Department of Corrections' (Deparhnent) Correctional Centers tnaintains a 
"cash box" which consists of cash frmn two sources. Cash is 1naintained in the cash box 
from the Inmates' Trust Fund to pay either all or a portion of an imnate's trust account upon 
their parole or release. In addition, cash is provided through a General Revenue Fund 
appropriation to provide gate 1noney and to purchase the imnate' s transportation upon parole 
or release from a Correctional Center. 

Auditors noted numerous exceptions with the operation of the Depart1nent "cash box;' funds 
at the Correctional Centers, specifically: 

• The Correctional Centers are inappropriately using the Imnates' Trust Fund and 
Inmates' Benefit Fund to supply the "cash box" funds pending reimbursement fro1n 
the General Revenue Fund for gate and transportation1noney. In order for the 
Correctional Centers to have cash to provide gate. and transportation money, the 
Correctional Centers write a check out of the locally heldlninates' Trust Fund bank 
account and obtain cash to use in the "cash box". The Inmates' Benefit Fund central 
bank account periodically reitnburses the Imnates' Trust Fund via check for the 
mnount "loaned" to the "cash box" funds. The Correctional Centers forward the 
General Revenue Fund warrant of vouchered in1nate gate and traveltnoiley to 
rennburse the In1nates' Benefit Fund. For fiscal years 2011 and 2012, the total 
appropriated mnount expended frotn the General Revenue Fund at all Correctional 
Centers for travel allowances for cotmnitted, paroled and discharged prisoners 
(reilnburseinents for ''cash box" disburse1nents) was approximately $601,630 and 
$599,959, respectively. 

• Auditors noted 7 out of27 (26o/o) Correctional Centers (Decatur, Sheridan, Dwight, 
Danville, Viem1a, Hill, and Pontiac) tested \vhere there was either a lack of 
segregation of duties while reconciling the "cash box" and/or the "cash box" was not 
counted or reconciled to supporting docutnents tilnely. 

• 1 of 27 (4%) Correctional Centers (Hill) did not properly prepare and subtnit 
vouchers to the Illinois Office of the Comptroller (Cmnptroller) for all gate and 
transportation tnoney paid fro1n the Center's "cash box" for reimbursetnent frotn the 
General Revenue Fund. 
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Departlnent Administrative Directive 02.42.105 requires all paYlnents :frmn the Imnates' 
Trust Fund other than paytnents to the Inmates' Co1nmissary Fund and payments of 
restitution shall be authorized by the offender, or as the result of a court order. In addition, 
Departlnent Aillninistrative Directive 02.40.108 states loans 1nay only be 1nade to the Travel 
and Allowance Revolving Fund, "cash box" fund, when an emergency exists fro1n the 
Irnnates' Benefit Fund and Imnates' Co1nmissary Fund. 

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-14-1) states the Travel and Allowance 
Revolving Funds shall be used for advancing travel and expense allo\\rances to coilllnitted, 
paroled and discharged prisoners. The Fiscal Control and Inten1al Auditing Act (30 ILCS 
10/3001) requires the Depart111ent establish and 1naintain a syste1n, or syste1ns, of inten1al 
fiscal and amninistrative controls which provide assurance that funds, property, and other 
assets and resources are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, and 
lnisappropriation. Tllis includes the establismnent of proper segregation of duties so that 
"cash boxes" are reconciled by smneone other than the individual who is assigned custody 
of that "cash box". 

In response to this finding fro1n the previous audit, the Departlnent stated it would work 
with the Comptroller regarding the establismnent of the "cash box" funds and 'vould re1nind 
facilities of the requirements of maintaining good internal controls over the "cash box" 
function. In addition, they would review the uses of the Imnates' Trust Fund and the 
Imnates' Benefit Fund. The Department reiterated in its prior year response that it was 
mandated by law to provide travel· and allowance funds to inmates at the ti1ne of their 
release. During the audit period, the Departrnent inquired with the Comptroller to 
detennine whether the "cash box" funds should be classified as "imprest funds~" The 
Co1nptroller provided an analysis of Section 21 of the State Co1nptroller Act (15 ILCS 
405/21) and indicated the Depart1nent should not cite that section of the State Co1nptroller 
Act as the statutory authority for its Travel and Allowances Fund expenditures. Based upon 
this analysis, auditors determined that the portion of the prior fmding stating the Departn1ent 
had never officially requested with the Comptroller to establish "cash box" nnprest funds for 
the Correction Centers was not repeated. 

Department manage1nent indicated the continued exceptions noted at the facilities in the 
current finding were due to insufficient resources and conflicting priorities. T11e Departlnent 
is mandated by law to provide funds to i1nnates upon their release. In addition, Department 
manage1nent noted that the General Office was in the process of establishing the Travel and 
Allowance Revolving Fund during the engagement period. The Department officially 
requested to establish the Travel and Allowance Revolving Fund (Fund) with the 
Co1nptroller on Decen1ber 8, 2011. However, the Fund was not operational at any of the 
Depart1nent's Correctional Centers as of June 30, 2012. 

By using the hunates' Trust Fund to loan 1noney to support the "cash box" until the General 
Revenue Fund reimbursement is received, the Correctional Centers are using inmate's 
personal accounts to fund a Conectional Center operation which is not a proper or 
authorized use of the Inmates' Trust Fund and against Departtnent Admnlistrative 
Directives. It is imperative that good i11temal controls be 1naintained at all tunes \\'hen 
significant mnounts of cash are 1naintained. (Finding Code No. 12-09, 10-09, 08-16) 
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RECOlVIMENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Deparhnent discontinue using the Imnates' Trust Fund or Imnates' 
Benefit Fund as a 1neans to provide cash to pay for travel alloVirances for connnitted, paroled 
and discharged prisoners while waiting for rehnburse1nent from the General Revenue Fund. 
The Deparb.nent should utilize its newly established Travel and Allowance Revolving Fund 
at the Correctional Centers to pay for imnate travel allowances and re1nind Correctional 
Center staff of the need to mai11tain good internal controls over any cash function. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Department has established the Travel and Allowance 
Revolving Fund and is working towards full i1nplementation at each Correctional Center. 
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12-10 FINDING: (Noncompliance with Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act) 

The Department of Corrections (Department) has an established Administrative Directive to 
add back to locally held bank accounts outstanding checks as opposed to sending 
outstanding amounts and information to the Treasurer's Unclaimed Property Division, in 
violation of the Uniform Disposition ofUnclaimed Property Act. 

DepartmentAdnUnistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.40.104 requires that after checks written 
from a locally held bank account have been open (outstanding) for a period of 14 months 
they be voided and the payable related to the check deleted. 

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-4-3 (b)) notes the Department shall transfer 
any unclaimed money held in the account of a committed person separated from the 
Department and unclaimed for a period of 1 year to the State Treasurer for deposit into the 
General Revenue Fund. This would only apply to inmate account balances in the Inmates' 
Trust Fund, not to outstanding checks. 

The Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act (Act) (765 ILCS 1025/8.1) states all 
debts owed that are held by the State or by a State agency shall be presumed abandoned if 
the property (debt owed) has r~mained unclaimed for 7 years. Debts owed would consist of 
checks written fromthe Department's locally held bank accounts that are still outstanding 
for a period of7 years. The Act (765 ILCS 1025/11) requires entities holding funds 
presumed abandoned under this Act to report and remit all abandoned property specified in 
a report to the State Treasurer. The report and remittance of the property specified in the 
report shall be filed by governmental entities before November 1 of each year as of June 30. 

In response to this finding from the previous audit, the Department stated it would consult 
with the Office of the Treasurer and Legal Counsel to determine the applicability of the 
Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act in this process and would revise the 
Administrative Directive and implement as appropriate. Department management stated, 
during the audit period, the Department's Legal staff consulted with the Chief Legal 
Counsel at the Treasurer's Office to determine the applicability of the Uniform Disposition 
of Unclaimed Property Act. As of the end of testing Department management had not made 
a determination on any changes. , 

Notwithstanding noncompliance with the Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act, 
the Department is not providing the opportunity for those that are owed money from the 
various locally held bank accounts to have the opportunity to claim and collect those 
amounts. (Finding Code No. 12-10, 10-10, 08-43) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend the Department resolve its treatment of prior years' outstanding checks 
in locally held bank accounts based upon its consultation with the Office of the 
Treasurer's Unclaimed Property Division. In addition, we recormnend the Department 
change its Administrative Directive to comply with the Uniform Disposition of 
Unclaimed Property Act and inform those charged with administering locally held bank 
accounts of the requirements. 
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DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Department's Legal Counsel consulted with the Office 
of the Treasurer and h was the opinion of those in the Treasurer's Office that the 
Department needs to be remitting the amounts of the outstanding checks to the 
Unclaimed Property Division, rather than adding them back to our accounts after a period 
of time. The Department will also revise the Administrative Directive and implement as 
appropriate. 
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12-11 FINDING: (Failure to properly transfer unclaimed imnate cash account balances) 

TheDepartlnent of Corrections (Department) i1nproperly offset DOC Resident's Trust 
Fund (Inmate Trust Fund) accounts with positive cash balances against accounts with 
negative balances prior to the transfer. of unclaimed cash balances to the General Revenue 
Fund (GRF). As a result, donnant accounts totaling approxilnately $86,527 were not 
transferred to the General Revenue Fund during the two years ended June 30, 2012. In 
addition, during the audit period, the Departlnent transferred $22,056 in donnant 
accounts that should have included $33,908 due to offsetting, or netting, balances. 

The Unified Code of Corrections (Code) requires the Department to establish accounting 
records with individual accounts for each in1nate (730 ILCS 5/3-4-3(a)). In addition, the 
Code (730 ILCS 5/3-4-3(b)) requires any 1noney held in accounts of a co1nmitted person, 
upon release from the Department by death, discharge, or unauthorized absence and 
unclaimed for a period of one year thereafter by the person or his legal representative to 
be transmitted to the State Treasurer who shall deposit it i11to the GRF. Further, the 
Depart1nent's Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.42.106 requires, upon detennination of 
donnant accounts, the Business Administrator to prepare a list, which includes the 
account numbers, imnates' nmnes, identificationnUlnbers, account balances and a 
me1norandU1n requesting pennission to transfer the balances to the GRF. 

In addition to the i1nproper offsets and incorrect trm1sfers, auditors also noted the 
following exceptions while testing inmate cash balm1ces: 

• Offenders on the donnant account listing were identified as transferred to another 
Correctional Center at 8 of27 (30%) {Dixon, Dwight, Hill, Lincoln, Pinckneyville, 
Sheridan, Southwestern, and Vandalia); however, the re1naining balance within the 
trust fund account was not forwarded to the receiving institution. 

A.D. 02.42.1 06, Transfer or Closing of Accounts, requires the Departlnent to transfer 
an offender's trust fund account balance to the receiving institution by the fifth · 
working day after the offender's transfer. In addition, paYlnent of available funds for 
released inmates should be done at the tilne of release. 

o At 11 of27 (41 %) Correctional Centers (Centralia, Big Muddy River, Illinois River, 
Lincoln, Menard, Pinckneyville, Southwestern, Tmruns, Taylorville, Vandalia, and 
Weste111), auditors were una?le to detennine the date the inmates' account balances 
were added to the donnant account listing because the accounts had a status date of 
1/1/1900. Tllis issue is also discussed in Finding 12-19. 

The State Records Act (5 ILCS 160/8) requires the Depart1nent preserve records 
containing adequate and proper docu1nentation of the essential transactions of the 
Depart1nent to protect the legal and financial rights of the State. The Departlnent is 
also required by the Code (730 ILCS 5/3-4-3(a)) to establish accounting records with 
individual accounts for each inmate. 
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• Auditors noted 1 of27 (4%) (Tanuns) Correctional Centers ilnproperly classified 
inmates as donnant. The Correctional Center included on its donnant account listing 
31 imnate accounts totaling $9,352 which were restricted for refusal to pay restitution 
and for imnates who were in the process of 1naking paJinents to·ward their bus fare. 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires the 
Depamnent to establish and 1naintain a syste1n, or _syste1ns, of inten1al fiscal and 
ad1ninistrative controls to provide assurance funds held outside of the State Treasury 
are used to strict accordance with the terms of the fund's enabling authorities. 

• One of27 (4%) (Dwight) Correctional Centers did not follow-up on one imnate on 
the do1mant account listing with a cash balance of $1,000 and an account restriction 
of$1,000. Auditors also noted the donnant account listing at Dwight was not 
co1nplete, as it o1nitted four imnates which should have been included on the listing. 

The Code (730 ILCS 5/3-4-3( d)) requires the Department trans1nit confiscated 
currency fro1n offenders to the State Treasurer for deposit into the GRF. The Fiscal 
Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires the Depart1nent to 
establish and 1naintain a system, qr syste1ns, of internal fiscal and a&ninistrative 
controls to provide assurance funds held outside of the State Treasury are used to 
strict accordance with the tenns of the fund's enabling authorities. 

• Two of 7 (29%) Adult Transition Centers (ATC) (Peoria and Westside) did not 
maintain proper documentation for donnant accounts. Auditors noted Peoria ATC 
was unable to provide copies of the dopnant account listing for two 1nonths of the 
audit period. In addition, auditors noted Westside ATC atte1npted a transfer to the 
GRF that cmne back as having insufficient paperwork. Westside ATC subsequently 
did not timely follow-up on the matter and waited 15 1nonths to properly file the 
necessary paperwork. 

The State Records Act (5 ILCS 160/8) requires the Departrnent preserve records 
containing adequate and proper docmnentation of the essential transactions of the 
Depart1nent to protect the legal and financial rights of the State. 

In response to tllis finding in the previous audit the Department stated it would review 
internal policy and statutory requirements to detennine the appropriate process to follow 
regarding donnant accounts. Departlnent 1nanagement indicated on-going issues are the 
result ofhu1nan errors, lack of resources, inadequate com1nunication and central level 
oversight witllin the Departrnent to review internal policies and statutory requirements to 
detennine the appropriate process to follow. 

V mious causes account for a negative balance, such as restitution for dmnages and 
charges for requested legal copies or postage, wllich could not, according to Departlnent 
rules, be de11ied even if the inmate's trust account had an insufficient balance. The 
1najority of negative balances did not involve cash distributions fro1n the l11111ate Trust 
Fund, but represented mnounts the Departlnent paid fro1n the General Revenue Fund and 
other funds on behalf of an imnate and can only be recouped if cash is available in the 
imnate' s account. 

48 



Ho'-'rever, there are instances where cash paYJ.nents are 1nade to inmates in excess of their 
balance, which creates a negative balance. In these instances, offsetting negative account 
balances against other accounts in the Imnate Trust Fund effectively requires other 
imnates' accounts to temporarily bear the costs of those deficits in violation of the 
Departlnent' s fiduciary responsibility and the Unified Code of Corrections. In addition, 
failure to ensure donnant cash balances are transferred to the General Revenue Fund is 
nonco1npliance with the Administrative Directive and State statute. (Finding Code No. 
12-11, 10-11) 

RECOlVIMENDATION: 

We recolTilnend the Department revise internal policy for donnant accounts and thereby 
ensure donnant cash accounts are ti1nely transferred to the General Revenue Fund as 
required by statute. We also reco1mnend the Departlnent develop procedures to 
ad1ninister imnate cash balances in accordance with State statute and Department 
Ad1ninistrative Directives. 

DEP ARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Reconunendation accepted. The Departlnent will review internal policy and statutory 
require1nents to determine the appropriate process to follow regarding dormant accounts. 
The Assistant Deputy Director position responsible for Fiscal Accounting Co1npliance 
was filled effective February 1, 2012. Adequate resources have been added, striving to 
continue making ilnprovements in the Departlnent' s centralized oversight function and to 
develop procedures to administer inmate cash balances in accordance with State statute 
and the Depmiment' s Ad1ninistrative Directives. 
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12-12 FINDING: (Imnate con1missary goods marked up more than allowed by statute) 

TI1e Department of Corrections (Deparb.nent) added a charge to the purchase price_pfthe 
goods to be resold in the irunate conunissaries prior to adding the statutorily allowed 
percentage 1nark-up to ani.ve at the sales price to charge imnates. 

The Depart1nent phased in the application of the charge. Effective November 1, 2005 the 
·charge was set at 3%. The Deparhnent raised the charge on January 1, 2006 to 7% and 
continued to assess the charge until September 10,2012, which was after the end of the 
current audit period. The additional charge was cmnputed based on the original cost of the 
goods prior to the statutorily allowed 1narkup being applied. Noted below in the table are 
the a1nounts the Deparb.nent has collected for the additional charge since it was instituted. 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 3 0, 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

TOTAL 

Dollars collected 
as a result of the 
additional charge 

$ 

$ 

1,266,911 
2,259,760 
2,339,244 
2,421,179 
2,525,888 
2,907,108 
3,113,323 

16.833.413 

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-7-2a) states, " ... the selling prices for all 
goods shall be sufficient to cover the costs of the goods and an additional charge of up t~ 
35% for tobacco products and up to 25o/o for non-tobacco products. The mnount of the 
additional charges for goods sold at comnussaries serving inmates shall be based upon 
the amount necessary to pay for the wages and benefits of the co1nmissary employees 
who are employed in any co1nmissary facilities of the Departlnent." The Co1nptroller's 
Statewide Accounting Man_?.gelnent Syste1n (SAMS) procedure 03.60.20 states, "The cost 
of the inventory ite1n is the price paid or the consideration given to acquire the inventory 
ite1n. Included in the cost are all direct and indirect costs incurred during transportation." 
Based on the above statute and SAMS procedure, the 1naxi1nU1n mnount to charge 
imnates for ite1ns sold in the i1nnate commissary would be the purchase price of the ite1n 
plus any transportation costs the total of which would then be 1narked up to a maxi1num 
of25%-35%. 

When the Department began applying the additional chm·ge, Departlnent 1nanagement 
stated it was to help cover the costs of State e1nployees who work in the inmate 
co1nmissary, inmate labor for the co1nmissary and utilities to operate the com1nissary. 
Ite1ns included in State e1nployee costs were payroll, benefits and 1nandated unifonns. A 
cost of utilities per square foot was determined and applied to the area of the 
connnissaries. hnnate labor included only i1nnate payroll. 
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The Department indicated the amounts co1npiled to arrive at the additional charge were 
based on fiscal year 2005 actual infonnation and have not been updated. In addition, at 
the tilne the additional charge was developed, DepartJ.nent 1nanagen1ent indicated they 
felt the definition of cost of goods in the Department's enabling legislation allowed for 
the additional charge. 

In the June 30, 2006,2008 and 2010 reports it ·was reco1mnended the DepartJ.nent revise 
its methodology for co1nputing cost of goods to ensure included costs are not duplicative 
and co1nply with the statute and only 1nark-up the goods for resale in the imnate 
co1nmissary with allowable runounts. In addition, previous reports reco1nmended the 
Department seek a fonnal written Attorney General opinion on this matter. During the 
Aprill, 2008 Legislative Audit Commission hearing on the Depart1nent's June 30, 2006 
audit, it was stated by Depart1nent staff and the Director that they were waiting on the 
Atton1ey General's opinion before 1naking any changes because the Department has to 
cover its con1missary costs. During the 2008 engage1nent Departrnent staff indicated the 
prior Governor's ad1ninistration did not grant the Depart1nenfpermission to seek an 
opinion fro1n· the Attorney General. During the February 16,2010 Legislative Audit 
Cmmnission hearing on the Department's June 30, 2008 audit, it was stated by the 
Depart1nent Director that a request for an opinion fro1n the Attorney General had been 
sent. In testing for the previous engage1nent it was noted the Department did sub1nit a 
request to the Attorney General on February 1, 201 0 seeking an interpretation. The 
Attorney General's Office responded on February 25, 2010 indicating they cannot issue 
an opinion in response to the Depruiment's request since the 1natter requested was now 
scheduled for determination by the cou1is. 

Department 1nanagement stated, during the audit period, an internal review of the current 
methodology used to co1npute cost of goods sold was started a11d it was detennined 
further discussion was needed with the Office of the Comptroller before any further 
action could be taken. During engage1nent fieldwork Department personnel indicated 
that effective Septe1nber 10, 2012 Correctional Centers ceased adding the additional 
charge to inmate cormnissary purchases. However, since this was subsequent to the 
current audit period, auditors did not perfonn any testing on the Depart1nent' s actions. 

Upon testing the Depart1nent's collection of the additional charge from the imnate 
cormnissaries it was detennined the Departlnent used sales revenue instead of cost of 
goods sold to co1npute the additional charge to be collected. Using the sales revenue 
instead of the cost of goods sold in computing the additional charge, the Depart1nent 
collected 1nore 1noney than 3%-7% of the cost of goods. The increase is the result of the 
statutorily allowed 1nark-up of 25o/o-35o/o being added to the additional charge in 
cmnputing the sales price. Ulti1nately, the 3o/o-7o/o charge equates to a markup on the cost 
of goods sold of 9o/o. 
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Based on info1mation provided by the Department, the funds collected exceeded the 
additional charge added to the original cost of goods by the mnounts noted in the 
folloV\ring table: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

TOTAL 

Computed Alnount 
Collected in Excess of the 
Additional Charge on the 

Cost of Goods Sold 

$ 

$ 

242,055 
451,888 
466,838 
465,792 
480,604 
538,975 
631 562 

3.277 714 

Since the statutorily allowed 25%- 35% 1nark-up is to cover the cost of wages and 
benefits of co1nmissary employees, portions of the additional charge are duplicative and 
exceed the statutorily allowed 1nark-up. The Deparunent's 1nethodology for detennining 
the cost of goods to be resold in the co1nmissaries should agree with SAMS and statutory 
provisions. In addition, the Departlnent should compute their collection of the charge on 
the base for which the charge is computed in order to not collect excess amounts. 
(Finding Code No. 12-12, 10-12, 08-13, 06-14) 

RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Departlnent ensure its computation of cost of goods sold does not 
include duplicative costs and cmnplies with statute. Goods for resale in the imnate 
co1mnissary should only be marked up to the allowable amounts. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will make every effort to ensure that 
co1nputation of cost of goods sold does not include duplicate costs; goods for resale will 
only be marked up to the allowable amounts and co1nplies with the statute. 
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12-13 FINDING: (Nonco1npliance with the illinois Procurement Code) 

The Department of Corrections (Departlnent) is not complying with the require1nents of 
the illinois Procure1nent Code (Code) with regard to purchases of ite1ns for resale in the 
Departlnent' s com1nissaries at Correctional Centers. 

The Departlnent maintains nu1nerous c01mnissary operations at Correctional Centers for 
inmates and employees. Purchases are 1nade fro1n vendors for co1nmodities to be resold 
in the co1mnissaries. Total purchases 1nade fro1n vendors fqr resale in the co1mnissaries 
were approxhnately $39 1nillion in fiscal year 2011 and $411nillion in fiscal year 2012. 
The co1mnissaries co1nmodity purchases are made through non-appropriated locally held 
funds. As a result of our testing, auditors noted: 

• Purchases were not made by co1npetitive sealed bidding or c01npetitive sealed 
proposals as required by the Code. The Correctional Centers receive catalogs fro1n 
various vendors and select products fro1n the catalogs for resale in the co1mnissary. 
In addition, the co1mnissaries contact 1nultiple vendors by telephone and request bids. 

• Terms and conditions for the purchases of goods fro1n vendors for the co1mnissaries 
were not docu1nented in the fonn of a contract as required by the Code. Upon 
selection of a vendor an Order For Delivery (OFD) is prepared to docmnent the 
purchase. OFD's are not utilized if the selected vendor uses pre-printed order forms 
or replenishes stock at the co1mnissary on a regular basis. 

• None of the· required procure1nent notices were published in the Illinois Procure1nent 
Bulletin as required by the Code. 

• The Department's Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.85.102, which provides 
guidance to e1nployees on co1mnissary purchase does not include all the require1nents 
as set forth.in the Code. The A.D., effective Nove1nber 1, 2000 notes that, 
"Whenever possible, bids shall be requested in writing or by telephone fro1n a 
1nini1nu1n of three vendors. The bids shall be docu1nented and 1naintained on file in 
the conilnissary." 

30 ILCS 500/20-5 of the Code sets forth that all State contracts, unless exempted, shall be 
awarded by competitive sealed bidding or c01npetitive sealed proposals. In addition, 
Section 20-80(a) of the Code states," ... all written detenninations required under this 
Article shall be placed in the contract file .... " Article 20 also requires that public notices 
of the invitation for bids or notice of the request for proposal be published in the illinois 
Procure1nent Bulletin. The Code applies to the Depart1nent regardless of the source of 
the funds with which the contracts are paid. 

In response to this finding fro1n the previous audit, the Deparhnent stated it is required to 
utilize the Departlnent of Central Manage1nent Services (DCMS) for all procure1nent 
guidance and requirements. The Departlnent stated it would once again ask DCI\1S for 
direction on the colllnissary purchasing. 
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During the audit period, the Department stated it continued to work ·with DCMS for 
direction on the cmnmissary purchasing and several discussions have taken place. 

By not following the require1nents of the Code, the Department has limited the pool of 
available vendors to only a fevv selected vendors. In addition, the Departlnent may be 
paying 1nore for co1mnodities at their com1nissaries than they should. (Finding CodeN o. 
_12-13, 10-13, 08-15, 06-21, 04-21) 

RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We recom1nend the Department continue its efforts to work with DCMS ~or direction on 
the cormnissary purchasing to ensure it co1nplies with the require1nents of the Illinois 
Procure1nent Code. 

DEP ARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Department is working with the Departlnent of Central 
Management Services to co1nply with the requirements of the Illinois Procurement Code 
in 1naking co1mnissary purchases. 
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12-14 FINDING: (Adult Transition Center records not properly maintained) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Departlnent) did not properly maintain records at the 
Adult Transition Centers (ATCs). 

Testing of the 7 ATCs for the nvo years ended June 30 2012, produced the following 
exceptions: 

• At 2 of the 7 ATCs, year end DOC Resident's Trust Fund (Inmate Trust Fund) cash 
balances were misstated due to outstanding checks not being removed from the listing 
in a tun ely 1nanner. Departlnent Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.40.104 requires 
the issuance of a stop paYJ.nent for checks that are outstanding for a period of 90 days 
or more unless the bank's stop paYJ.nent charge is greater than 50 percent of the check 
mnount. Othenvise, these checks shall re1nain open until the account reaches a 
donnant status (outstanding over 14 1nonths ). When considered donn ant, expenses 
shall be reversed, the checking account balance in the Imnate Trust Fund shall be 
increased, and a check shall be written fro1n the Imnate Trust Fund to the General 
Revenue Fund. 

• At 3 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted deficiencies related to disburse1nents fro1n the 
E1nployee Benefit Fund portion of the DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit 
Fund. A.D. 02.43.102 mandates requests for expenditures fro1n the benefit funds be 
submitted in writing to a member of the appropriate co1mnittee who shall present the 
requests at th-e next 1neeting. The A.D. also outlines how the 1nonies fro1n the fund 
maybe utilized. Of the 30 disbursements tested, 6 did not contain documentation of 
Employee Benefit Fund Co1mnittees' approval of the disbursements and 4 of the 30 
lacked sufficient docillnentation to verify the appropriate purpose, in accordance with 
the A.D., of the nature of the expenditure. In 1 instance, the Department used funds 
to pay for an expense that was not in accordance with the allowable expenses outlined 
in the A.D. 

• At 4 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted deficiencies related to disbursements fro1n the 
Imnate Benefit Fund portion of the DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund. 
A.D. 02.43.102 mandates requests for expenditures frcnn the benefit funds be 
submitted in writing to a 1ne1nber of the appropriate cormnittee who shall present the 
requests at the next n1eeting. The A.D. also outlines how the monies from. the fund 
may be utilized. Of the 40 disburse1nents tested at tl1e 4 ATCs, 1 did not contain 
documentation of the Inmate Benefit Fund Co1mnittees' approval of the 
disburse1nents and 1 disburse1nent was used to purchase an item that is not allowable 
with the A.D. At 3 ATCs,auditors noted that fonnal Inmate Benefit Fund con1llittee 
1neeting 1ninutes were not kept. 

• At 3 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted deficiencies related to the personal property 
listings of residents. A.D. 05.03.111 C 1nandates that a personal property listing be 
kept on file for all residents. Of the 3 0 resident files tested, 1 file tested did not 
contain a current Offender Personal Property Inventory fonn and 8 files contained 
n1ore personal property than what is allowed by A.D. 

55 



• At 1 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted deficiencies related to receipts from the 
Employee Benefit Fund portion of the DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit 
Fund. A.D. 02.42.102 mandates at least once a week the assigned staff shall prepare 
a deposit slip for the money received and forward the money, all receipts, and the 
bank deposit slip to the appropriate staff for verification. Upon verification, the bank 
deposit shall be processed. Auditors noted receipts were not deposited within a week 
of receipt for 3 of 5 receipts tested at 1 of the ATCs. 

• At 3 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted resident master files did not contain complete 
and adequate documentation. A.D. 02.42.105 requires each offender, with the 
assistance of a counselor, to establish a budget at least monthly. This budget shall 

· include, but not be limited to, maintenance payments, restitution, and aid to 
dependents. Of the 30 resident master files tested at the 3 ATCs, 13 were missing a 
monthly budget. One file was missing support for the closure of the account or 
payment to the former resident. A.D. 02.42.106 mandates that when an inmate is 
released or discharged, the inmate's trust fund shall be closed. An additional file was 
missing the resident dependent letter. 

• At 4 of the 7 ATCs, the auditors noted deficiencies related to disbursements from the 
DOC Resident's Trust Fund. At 1 ATC, resident negative balances were noted due to 
an error by the ATC. In testing voided checks, auditors noted 1 ATC did not 
maintain support for 1 of 19 checks. The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act 
(3 0 · ILCS 1 0/3 001) requires the Depart.ment establish and main tam a system, or 
systems, of internal fiscal and administrative controls ·which provide assurance that 
funds, property, and other assets .and resources are safeguarded against waste, loss, 
unauthorized use, and misappropriation. During testing of disbursements, auditors 
noted 1 of 40 disbursements where the Offender Budget Disbursement Form was not 
signed and 5 of 40 disbursements were missing the forms. Additionally, 1 of 40 
disbursements did not appear in the check register. A.D. 02.42.105 requires an 
offender requesting disbursement of monies from his or her trust fund account to 
submit a completed Transition Center Offender Budget Disbursement, DOC 0307 to 
his or her assigned ·counselor. After review and approval of the DOC 0307, the 
counselor is toforwardthe DOC 0307 to the Chief Administrative Officer. Lastly, 1 
ATC was not properly handling reimbursements for bank interest earned and service 
fees. According to A.D. 02.40.103 interest earned on all local Inmates' Trust Fund 
checking accounts is to accrue to the Inmates' Trust Fund and, within 20 working 
days after the notification of interest earned is received, it is to be transferred to the 
Inmates' Benefit Fund. 

Similar weaknesses were noted at the ATCs in the previous ten audits. An analysis 
summarizing the weaknesses identified in the past five audits is noted in the following 
table: 

56 



T·wo Years Ending June 30 
Description of 'Veaknesses 2012 2010 2008 2006 2004 

Year end cash balances misstated X X X X X 
Deficiencies in Trust & Resident's funds disbursements X X X X 
Errors in calculating resident maintenance fees X 
Receipts not deposited ti1nely X 
Financial transactions not posted timely 
Weaknesses in ATC internal controls X X X X 
Dormant resident accounts not processed ti1nely 
Resident loan files not accurate X X 
Inadequate controls of property and equip1nent X X X 
Resident financial files missing required docu1nents X X X 
Deficiencies in personal property listmg X X X 
Deposits in accounts outside oftheATC X 
Notable 1naintenance and repair issues X 
Deficiencies in Resident Trust Fund disburse1nents X 

In response to tllis finding fro1n the previous audit, the Department stated it would 
continue to 1nake every effort to in1prove accounting procedures and controls to ensure 
accurate and appropriate records are maintained at the ATCs. Depart1nent 1nanage1nent 
indicated the on-going issues are the result of human errors, lack of resources, inadequate 
co1nmunication and central level oversight within the Department. (Finding Code No. 
12-14;10-14, 08-18,06-02,04-04, 02-05, 00-05, 99-11~ 98-08, 96-04, 94-05) 

RECOl\IlVIENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Depart1nent i1nprove accounting procedures and controls at the 
ATCs. Specifically, the Department should ensure: 

• ATC Accountants follow the Department A.D. relating to the handling of outstanding 
checks written from the Imnate Trust Fund. 

• Benefit Fund disburse1nents are properly processed and authorized and A TC 
personnel retain all supporting documentation. 

• Receipts should be deposited on a tilnely basfs as outlined in the A.D. 

• Benefit Fund Cormnittees authorize purchases for the respective funds as required by 
the A.D.'s and the funds be utilized for purposes outlined in the A.D.'s. 

• All ~equired forms are included within the resident's files. 

DEP ARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will continue to 1nake every effort to 
improve accounting procedures and controls to ensure accurate and appropriate records 
are maintained at the re1naining Adult Transition Centers. 
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12-15 FINDING: (Weaknesses in Adult Transition Center (ATC) food services contract) 

The Department of Corrections (Department) is not fully utilizing the meals purchased 
under a food services contract. 

During testing at 5 of7 (71 %) Adult Transition Centers (Crossroads ATC, Decatur ATC, 
North Lawndale ATC, Peoria ATC and Westside ATC), auditors noted the food service 
contract allows the vendor to bill the Department for 3 meals per day, per resident head 
count for the day, regardless of how many meals are actually prepared and served. This 
resulted in the ATCs being billed for 531,579 more meals than were actually prepared 
and served at a cost of $854,905 to the Department. The breakdown per ATC is as 
follows for the audit period: 

Number Utilization 
Number of of Meals Excess Rate of 

Meals Residents Meals Excess Cost Food 
Department were Billed than of Meals Not Service 

ATC was Billed Served Served Served* Contract 1\ 

Crossroads 655,200 579,280- 75,920 $112,050 88% 
Decatur 237,838 140,203 97,635 $144,138 59% 
North Lawndale 218,400 202,800 15,600 $46,048 93% 
Peoria 452,328(1) 180,211 272,117 $401,389 40% 
Westside 335,193(2) 264,886 70,307 $151,280 79% 

* The cost per meal varied per ATC and ranged from $1.41 per meal to a flat rate payment per 300 residents. 
(1) Auditors noted the ATC was unable to provide the number of meals served for 3 months in fiscal year 2011 and 1 month in 

fiscal year2012. 
(2) Auditors noted the ATC was unableto provide the number of meals billed and served for 3 months during fiscal year 2012. The 

ATC was also only able to provide partial month information for January, May and June of2012. 
A Based upon the information provided for this analysis. 

The vendor contract was negotiated by the Department's General Office and is required 
to be monitored by each ATC. According to Department's Administrative Directive 
02.20 .182, the Department is to ensure each specification of the contract is monitored. 

In response to this fmding in the prior audit_, the Department stated it would perform an 
analysis of the food service contract at the Peoria Adult Transition Center, which was where 
the weaknesses in the ATC food services contract were initially noted. In addition, the 
Department stated it also had established a follow-up control mechanism to ensure 
adequate and appropriate implementation would occur. Department management 
indicated the exceptions noted during the current audit period were due to employee 
oversight, staffing constraints and conflicting priorities. Department management also 
indicated, at the Peoria A TC and Decatur ATC, a formal checklist is utilized for 
monitoring and is completed every month to ensure foods are maintained at the 
appropriate temperatures; types of food served are in compliance_with what is required, 
etc. The monitoring does not involve any comparison of actual meals served to what is 
being billed. Department management stated at Crossroads ATC, North Lawndale ATC, 
and Westside A TC, some residents 1nay choose not to eat a breakfast or to eat 
lunch! dinner while at work and not take a bag lunch. This cannot be predetern1ined and 
they have to ensure enough meals are prepared to feed all residents at the facility on that 
given day. 
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Good fiscal internal controls dictate the ATCs establish a system to determine in advance 
how many residents will be present for a meal and work with the vendor to ensure there 
is sufficient, but not excessive food. In addition, the Department should establish 
controls to ensure the State only pays for the meals consumed. Paying for meals that are 
never utilized is a poor use of State resources. (Finding Code No. 12-15, 10-15, 08-19) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend the Department perform an analysis of its food service at all ATCs to 
ensure the following: 

• Establish a system to determine in advance how many residents will be present for a 
meal as a means to base the number of meals the contractor should prepare and 
provide; 

• Sufficient, but not excessive food is served at each meal; 

• Controls are established to ensure the State pays only for the meals served by the 
contractor, and does not pay for meals not provided. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Department will make every effort to perform an 
analysis of the food service contract at the remaining Adult Transition Centers. 
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12-16 FINDING: (Weaknesses in contract, lease, and grant administration) 

The Deparhnent of Corrections (Department) failed to ensure proper controls \vere 
established in the administration of its contracts during the audit period. 

During testing of 70 contractual agree1nents, auditors noted the following exceptions: 

• 1 of70 contracts (1 %) totaling $4,855,100 did not include all of the certifications, 
disclosures, and clauses required by Section 15 of the Statewide Accounting 
Management System (SAMS) 1nanual and various sections of the Illinois Compiled 
Statutes, including Articles 20 and 50 of the Illinois Procurement Code (30 ILCS 
500/20 and 50), the Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3), the International 
Anti-Boycott Certification Act (30 ILCS 582/5), Educational Loan Default Act (5 
ILCS 385/3), and Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961 concerning public 
contracts (720 ILCS 5/33E~11). 

Section 15 of the SAMS 1nanual provides specific instructions on the certifications, 
disclosures, and clauses required of each type of contract processed by State agencies. 
Article 20 of the Illinois Procure1nent Code (3 0 ILCS 500/20) addresses contract 
formation, including the subject to appropriation clause (Section 20-60(b )) and the 
right for the State to audit the books of the contractor (Section 20-65(b )). Both 
clauses are require1nents for State contracts. 

Article 50 of the Illinois Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/50) addresses procurement 
ethics and disClosure. State contracts 1nust contain a certification by the-contractor 
and/or subcontractor that they are not barred fro1n being awarded a contract under 
Section 50-5( d), which addresses bribery; Section 50-11 (b), which addresses debt 
delinquency; Section 50-12(b), which addresses Illinois Use Tax; and Section 50-
14( c), concerning violations. of the Environmental Protection Act, of the Illinois 
Procure1nent Code. 

Contractors must certify in the contract that they will maintain a drug free workplace 
in accordance with the Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3). Contracts 
exceeding the threshold for s1nall plirchases or $10,000, whichever is less, must 
contain a certification that the contractor will not violate the provisions of the 
International Anti- Boycott Certification Act (30 ILCS 582/5). The Educational Loan 
Default Act (5 ILCS 385/3) requires contracts to contain a statement certifying the 
individual is not in default of an educational loan. Article 33Eofthe Cri1ninal Code 
of 1961 concerning public contracts (720 ILCS 5/33E-11 )requires the certification 
that the prime contractor is not prohibited fro1n contracting with any unit of State 
govennnent as a result of a violation of Sections 33E-3 or 33E-4 of720 ILCS 5. 
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• The Department could not demonstrate adequate contract monitoring for 8 of 70 
(11 %) contracts totaling $1,697,359. Specifically, the auditors noted: 

- The Department failed to explain, or sufficiently explain what type of monitoring 
occurred for 7 of the 8 contracts totaling $1,194,287, despite repeated requests by 
the auditors for an explanation of any monitoring performed. 

- The Department insufficiently monitored 1 of the 8 contracts for $503,072. The 
Department did not monitor performance of contractor's staff to ensure adequate 
job performance in accordance with job descriptions. The contractor did not 
submit any monthly or annual evaluation reports as required in the contract. 

The Department of Correction's A.D. 02.20.182 requires all contracts for services be 
monitored by the Chief Administrator. This monitoring includes ensuring services 
rendered meet specifications and contracts provide only those services authorized by 
the contractor or by the Chief Administrator and in the manner specified by the terms 
of the contract. 

• Auditors noted the Department underpaid its lease for the Westside Adult Transition 
Center by $24,611 for the lease term of December 1, 2010 to November 30, 2011 
because the Department had exhausted its obligation line for the lease at the end of 
fiscal year 2011. 

• Auditors identified weaknesses in the Department's use of the emergency purchase 
provision of the Illinois Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/20-30(b) and (c)). 
Specifically, auditors noted: 

- 3 of 64 emergency purchase affidavits (5%) for purchases totaling $148,255 were 
not posted on the Illinois Procurement Bulletin timely as required by the Illinois 
Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/20-30). The emergency purchases were posted 1 
to 219 days late. 

- 12 of 64 emergency purchase affidavits (19%) for purchases totaling $3,113,910 
wete not published at all in the Procurement Bulletin as required by the Illinois 
Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/20-30). 

- 2 of 64 emergency purchase affidavits (3%} for purchases totaling $182,720 were 
not filed with the Auditor General timely within the timelines established by 
statute. The emergency purchase affidavits were filed from 14 to 80 days late. 

During testing of2 grants totaling $7,172,018 provided by the Department during the 
audit period, to the same grantee, auditors identified the following weaknesses: 

• 1 of the 2 grants was revised and a budget revision was not submitted by the grantee. 
The grant agreement required a complete budget which identifies all of the 
expenditures to be made with the funds received from all ofthe grantee's funding 
sources. A change in any of the funds would require a new budget addressing the 
changes. 

61 



• The Department did not follow the requirements outlined in the grant agreement for 
payments to the grantee for either grant. 

• The grantee did not submit the required final report correctly for 1 of the 2 grants 
tested. According to the grant agreement, the grantee was required to provide the 
Department four deliverables covering statistics related to the programs goals. The 
submitted report did not include all four deliverables. 

• The grantee did not return the unexpended funds to the Department at the end of the 
grant tetms. The grantee owed the Department $159,454 of unexpended funds at the 
end of the fiscal year 2011 grant and $371,885 of unexpended funds at the conclusion 
of the fiscal year 2012 grant. The giant agreement requires all unexpended funds to 
be returned. to the Department Auditors noted the Department had not taken.action 
to collect the $531,339 of unexpended funds as of the completion of their testing. 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires State agencies 
to establish and maintain a systein of internal fiscal and administrative controls, which 
provide assurance funds are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, and 
misappropriation. The Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act (30 ILCS 705/S(a)) (Act) 
states, "If a grantor agency determines that certain grant funds are to be recovered ... the 
grantor agency shall provide the grantee of the funds a written notice of the intended 
recovery. This notice shall identify the funds and the amount to be recovered and the 
speCific facts which permit recovery." The Act goes on to establish formal procedures 
for recovery of any unexpended grant funds. 

In response to this finding in the prior audit, the Department stated it would implement 
the necessary controls to ensure contracts are properly administered and in compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations~ For the exceptions noted during the current audit, 
Department management indicated the failure to ensure proper controls were established 
in the administration of contracts was due to employee oversight, human error, lack of 
resources, and inadequate communication within the Department. 

Failure to properly administer contractual, lease, and grant agreements to ensure 
compliance with all applicable statutes and procedures could potentially compromise 
public accountability aildoversight and results in noncompliance with statutes and 
Department administrative directives. (Finding 12-16, 10-19,08-31, 06-19) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend the Department implement the necessary controls to adequately administer 
its contractual, lease, and grant agreements and ensure compliance with applicable statutes 
and Department Administrative Directives. In addition, we recommend the Department 
seek reimbursement for the unexpended grant funds not yet returned to the Department. 
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DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Department will implement the necessary controls to 
ensure contracts, leases, and grant administration is properly administered and in 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Department has initiated the 
process to recover unexpended grant funds. 
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12-17 FINDING:· (Nonco1npliance with the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act) 

The Deparhnent of Corrections (Department) Office of Internal Audit did not co1nply with 
the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act. 

The Office of Internal Audit at the Department was re-established effective July 1, 2010 
by Public Act 96-0795. During fiscal years 2011 and 2012, the Office of Internal Audit 
did not co1nplete audits of all the Departn1ent' s major systems of inten1al accounting and 
adtninistrative control. Additionally, an effective process to identify new major computer 
systems or 1najor tnodifications of existing computer syste1ns was not in place: 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing ~ct (Act) (30 ILCS 10/2003) requires the internal 
auditing progrrun include audits of major syste1ns of internal accounting and ad1ninistrative 
control be conducted on a periodic basis so that all major syste1ns are reviewed at least once 
every tvvo years. 

Department officials acknowledge they did not comply fully with the Act. In addition, there 
V\'as lilnited allocation of internal audit resources and considerable tune was spent 
coordinating the external fmancial and co1npliance audit. Departlnent 1nanage1nent stated 
the Deparhnent did develop a cotnprehensive plan for the audits to provide adequate 
coverage under the Act. 

Inco1nplete auditing of all major internal control syste1ns increases the risk that 
significant internal control weaknesses will exist and errors and irregularities may go 
undetected. Further, lack of independent reviews of major new co1nputer systems and 
tnajor modifications to those syste1ns could result in undetected security and integrity 
proble1ns in new or modified systems. (Finding Code No. 12-17) 

RECOl\11\IENDATION: 

We r_ecotmnend the Depart1nent ensure that audits of all major syste1ns of internal 
accounting and administrative control are conducted at least once every two years as 
requireg by the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act. We further recormnend the 
Departlnent develop an effective process to identify new 1naj or con1puter systetns or 
major tnodifications of existing co1nputer syste1ns. 

DEPARTl\IENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will ensure that the necessary resources are 
put in place within the Office of Internal Audit to COlnply with the Fiscal Control and 
Internal Auditing Act. 
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12-18 FINDING: (Lack of project 1nanage1nent for co1nputer syste1ns develop1nent) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Department) had not effectively managed the 
development process of the Offender 360 application to ensure it was properly controlled 
and docrunented. 

In June 2010, the Department embarked on the development of the Offender 360 
application as a replace1nent for the Offender Tracking and Juvenile Tracking Syste1ns. 
The Phase 1 scope (June 14, 2010) stated an in-scope new syste1n will be delivered 
within six months of the start date. As ofOctober 2012, the system was still in 
development and had not been placed into production. 

As outlined in the scope docu1nent signed by the Depart1nent' s Director, the Departlnent 
would partner with the Illinois Depart1nent of Transportation, and software developers to 
cormnence with Phase 1. Phase 1 was to include planning, require1nents gathering, and 
prototype develop1nent. Six deliverables were also delineated in the Phase 1 scope 
docun1ent, including Business Require1nents Documentation and Integration Design 
Docu1nentation; however, the Depart1nent was unable to readily provide copies of 
specific deliverables. In addition, the docu1nentation ultilnately provided appeared to be 
in draft fonn and were generally not finalized, dated, or approved. 

Auditors also requested the service contracts with the software developers fro1n the 
Depart1nent. The Depart1nent stated they had not entered into contracts for the services. 

In addition to the deliverables outlined above, auditors requested from the Department: 

• The development 1nethodology utilized for the project, and 

• The overall cost of the project beyond software purchase costs. 

The Department stated a develop1nent methodology had been utilized; ho·wever, they 
were unable to provide it. In addition, the Departlnent did not provide the overall cost of 
the project. 

Offender 360 was initially projected to be run on the Deparhnent's 1nidrange platform 
and the Departlnent purchased 5,500 software licenses for $3,009,435 in July 2010. 
Although 5,500 licenses were purchased, Department docun1entation indicated that there 
would be 600 to 2,500 users in Phase 1. Additionally, per Depart1nent staff, the actual 
nmnber of licenses utilized up to October 2012 were less than 60. 

After receiving a Production Enviromnent Assess1nent Report fro1n one of the software 
developers, the Depart1nent changed its course in June 2012 and decided to run Offender 
360 on a cloud co1nputing platfonn. As a result, in June and July 2012, the Depart1nent 
upgraded the software licenses to on-line licenses to be used on the cloud computing 
platfonn for $2,860,000. -

We requested the Department's contract for the assessment services; however, the 
Depart1nent stated a contract had not been entered into. 
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Based on testing of the documentation provided, it appeared the project's ti1neline, scope, 
goals, and project 1nanagers had been subject to frequent undocmnented changes. 

Generally accepted information teclmology guidance endorses the ilnplementation of a 
process to ensure co1nputer system develop1nent activities n1eet 1nanagement' s objectives. 
A defmed process pro1notes the effective and efficient use of resources resulting in 
computer syste1ns that 1neet expectations. Such guidance also endorses the 
ilnplen1entation of syste1n developn1ent standards that require new syste1n develop1nents 
and modifications to existing systen1s be properly approved, thoroughly tested, and 
consistently docu1nented. 

The Fiscal Control and h1temal Auditil1g Act{30 ILCS 10/3001) req~ires State agencies to 
establish and 1naintain a syste1n of internal fiscal and a&nilustrative controls to ensure the 
State's resources are used efficiently and effectively. 

Departlnent officials stated that the Offender 360 project was initiated to solve a potential 
public safety problem when relying on the Departlnent' s legacy mainfrmne Offender 
Tracking and Juvenile Tracking Syste1ns. Due to the urgency of the project 1nultiple 
agencies were i11volved resulting in conununications proble1ns. h1 addition, the project 
was ilnpacted by other variables, such as very old desktop co1nputers at the facilities, 
staffing/trailling issues, and the consolidation into the DCMS' 1nidrange enviromnent. 

The lack of a defined project management and syste1n developinent processes increases the 
likelihood of ineffective arid inefficienfuse of resources resulting in IT syste1ns that fail to 
1neet expectations and requirements, and require additional costs. (Finding Code No. 12-18) 

RECOlVIMENDATION: 

The Departlnent should develop and implement a project manage1nent frmnework and 
syste1ns develop1nent StaJ).dards to ensure projects are adequately 1nonitored and 
docmnented. 

DEPARTl\iENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1runendation accepted. The Departlnent wil11nake every effort to ensure 
i1nple1nentation of a project manage1nent frmnework and syste1ns develop1nent standards 
that will adequately monitor and docu1nent the process. 
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12-19 FINDING: (Weaknesses in change 1nanagement procedures) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Depamnent) did not have an effective process to control 
and manage changes to cotnputer syste1ns. 

The Departlnent was unable to produce fonnal change 1nanage1nent procedures upon 
auditor's request. However, the auditors located an Administrative Directive, related to 
change tnm1age1nent procedures, last updated 1996, but the Depmilnent stated it had been 
outdated for several years. 

Departlnent tnru1.agement stated that users request changes to computer syste1ns via F onn 
DC622; ho\vever, the co1npleted forms were not retained. hi addition, th~ Departlnent did 
not 1naintain a log or list to c~ntrol and track changes. 

On July 15, 2011, the Fund Accounting and Cotmnissary Trading Syste1n (FACTS) crashed 
and was unavailable for appro:xlmately two weeks .. The Depaitn1-ent was unable to 
determine the reason for the system crash. The Department hired a contractor to assist with 
the restoration ofF ACTS; however, documentation to support the system's changes, test 
resuits, verification of complete data restoration did not exist. 

Additionally, auditors at the correctional centers foU1ld a cmnmon error in the dormm1t 
account field (numerous accounts had a date of 01/0l/1900)within FACTS which resulted 
in inaccurate reporting pf d()nnant accounts. According to the Department, the date error 
was the re~ult of a change made by a progrmmner(systell1 analyst). In addition, the detailed 
information associated with the change could not be tr·aced to fonnal cha!lge control 
documentation. See finding 12-11 for related ·infonnation. 

Generally accepted information technology guidance endorses the ilnplementation of 
suitable change management procedures to control chal1.ges to cmnputer syste1ns. 
Effective change management procedures reduce the risk of unauthorized, improper, or 
erroneous changeS to COlllputer systeli1S. 

. . . 

Department officials stated that with the change in staffinglevels, and retirement of IS 
managem~nt, the continuityo:fthe cha~ge lnanagement procedures was overlooked. 

Without adequate change tnariagetnent procedures, there is a greater risk of unauthorized 
or ilnproper changes being made to computer systetns. The lack of procedures increases 
the risk that the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of systems and data will be 
cotnprotnised. (Finding Code No. 12-19) 

RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We recotnmend the Departlnent develop fonnal change 1nanage1nent procedures to 
control all changes 1nade to ccnnputer systetns. The procedure should include at a 
tninilnutn: 
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• A mechanis1n to log and track changes, 

• Documentation related to the identification, prioritization and initiation, 

• Docu1nentation of the authorization of change by 1nanagement, 

• Testing and docu1nentation require1nents, 

• User acceptance testing and approval, and 

• A 1nechanis1n to ensure changes are approved prior to being 1noved into production. 

In addition, the Depart1nent should restrict progrmnmer (syste1n analyst) access to 
production progrmns and data. 

DEPARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Departlnent ~ill make every effort to develop and 
ilnple1nent a formal change 1nanagement procedure that will control all changes 1nade to 
co1nputer syste1ns. 
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12-20 FINDING: (Lack of disaster contingency planning or testing to ensure recovery of 
computer syste1ns) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections (Department) had not updated its disaster recovery plan 
since June 2006. Additionally, co1nprehensive disaster recovery testing had not been 
conducted in the audit period. 

The Department carries out its mission through the use of Infonnation Technology, on 
both mainframes and local area networks (LAN). 

The Department was unable to produce a disaster recovery plan upon our request. 
Auditors located a copy of the 2006 Plan in their ~udit files associated with June 30, 2010 
co1npliance attestation engagement and provided that to the Department. 

Per documentation obtained fro1n the Departlnent of Central Manage1nent Services, the 
Department had determined two 1nainfrmne applications to be critical to the health and 
safety of the State; Offender Tracking Syste1n and the Juvenile Tracking Syste1n. As part 
of a multi-agency recovery test performed in September 2011, the Departlnent tested the 
Offender Tracking and the Juvenile Tracking Syste1ns. However, the Department ·was 
unable to provide documentation related to the recovery testing conducted. 

Critical syste1ns such as the Fund Accounting and Co1nmissary Trading Syste1n (FACTS) 
runon the LAN. FACTS is a mission critical application/database that manages the trust 
fund for approxiniately 48,000 offenders. However, recovery testing for the LAN had 
not been perfonned in the audit period. 

Infonnation technology guidance (including theN ational Institute of Standards and 
Technology and Govermnent Accountability Office) endorse the fonnal development and 
testing of disaster recovery plans. Tests of disaster recovery plans (and the associated 
documentation of the test results) verify the plan, procedures, and resources provide the 
capability to recover critical syste1ns within the required tilneframe. 

Without an adequately developed and tested contingency plan, the Depart1nent cannot 
ensure its critical syste1ns .could be recovered within an acceptable period and minimize 
the hnpact associated with a disaster. 

Department officials stated that with the change in staffing levels, and retire1nent of IS 
manage1nent, continuity of the disaster recovery process was overlooked. 

Failure to adequately update and test the disaster recovery plans leaves the Department 
exposed to the possibility of1najor disruptions of services. A co1nprehensive test of the 
plan across all platfonns utilized will assist 1nanage1nent in identifying weaknesses to 
ensure recovery procedures are adequate in the event of a disaster. Continuous reviews 
and tests of plans would help 1nanagement ensure the plans are approp1iately 1nodified, as 
the Department's co1nputing environment and disaster recovery needs change. (Finding 
Code No. 12-20) 
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RECOl\1l\1ENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Departlnent: 

• Update its disaster recovery plan to reflect the current enviromnent. In addition, the 
plan should be continuously updated to reflect enviro1nnental changes and 
ini.prove1nents identified fro1n tests. 

• Test the plan on at least an am1ual basis. Any necessary modifications should be 
1nade to the plan as a result of those tests and docmnentation of recovery procedures 
should be 1naintained by the plan. 

DEP ARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Departlnent will make every effort to ensure to update 
the disaster recovery plan to reflect the current enviro1nnent and to test the plan on at 
least an annual basis. 
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12-21 FINDING: (Failure to comply with the Identity Protection Act) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections (Departinent) failed to i1nplement the provisions of the 
Identity Protection Act (Act). ·--· 

The Identity Protection Act (5 ILCS 179) required the Depart1nent to draft and approve an 
identity-protection policy by June 1, 2011. Per the Act, the Policy must: 

• Identify the Act. 

• Require all e1nployees identified as having access to social security nmnbers in the 
course of perfom1ing their duties to be trained to protect the confidentiality of social 
security nu1nbers. 

• Direct that only employees who are required to use or handle information or 
docmnents that contain social security numbers have access to such infonnation or 
docu1nents. 

• Require that social security nmnbers requested fro1n an individual be placed in a 
1nanner that 1nakes the social security nu1nber easily redacted if required to be 
released a·s part of a public records request. 

• Require that, when collecting a social security number or upon request by the 
individual,. a statement of the purpose or purposes for which the agency is collecting 
and using the social security nu1nber be provided. · 

During testing auditors noted the Depart1nent had not issued an identity-protection policy. 

Department officials stated that due to the change in staffing levels, and retirement of IS 
personnel there is no evidence that the Departinent has addressed the issue. 

Failure to i1nple1nent provisions of the Act results in noncompliance with the Act, does 
not promote the security and control of social security nu1nbers, and increases the 
likelihood of identity theft. (Finding Code No.l2-21) 

RECOl\1l\1ENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Departlnent develop and approve an identity protection pol!cy as 
required in the Identity Protection Act. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recoilllnendation accepted. The Department has developed and approved an identity 
protection policy as required in the Identity Protection Act. The Identity Protection 
Ad1ninistrative Directive (1.02.108) was approved on March 1, 2013. 
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12-22 FINDING: (E1nployee perfonnance evaluations not perfonned timely) 

The Depart1nent ofCorrections (Department) did not conduct performance evaluations in 
a timely 1nanner. 

Auditors tested 60 e1nployee personnel files containing 115 evaluations perfonned during 
the audit period. Auditors noted 33 of the 115 (29%) evaluations vvere perfonned 3 to 
224 days late. Auditors also noted 4 evaluations were not perfonned as required during 
the audit period for 4 of the e1nployees tested. In addition, other auditors perfonning 
testing at Illinois Correctional Industries (ICI) noted 41 evaluations were not properly 
perfonned. Of the 41 exceptions, 28 evaluations vvere not 011 file and 13 were perfonned 
late. 

Personnel Rules issued by the Department of Central Management Services (80 ill. Ad1n. 
Code 302.270) require performance records to include an evaluation of e1nployee 
perfonnance prepared by each agency not less often than annually. In addition, 
according to the Depmiment's Aillninistrative Directive 03.03.110, each employee shall 
have a list of1neasurable objectives for a specific work period and shall receive a 
docu1nented evaluation of his or her job perfonnance at least mu1ually. Supervisory staff 
shall conduct a fonnal job perfonnance evaluation 011 each e1nployee prior to co1npletion 
of any probationary period and annually thereafter. The results of the evaluation must be 
submitted fro1n 7 to 30 days prior to the employee's anniversary date or the last day of 
the probationary period depending if the e1nployee is a bargaining unit or 1nerit 
co1npensation e1nployee. · 

In the previous audit, the Department indicated it would make every effort to ensure 
co1npliance with evaluation requirements. Depart1nent 1nanage1nent indicated the 
performance evaluations related to the current audit period were not conducted in a 
timely 1nanner due to staffing constraints, vacancies, retirements, oversight, and lack of 
adequate follow-up. 

Good internal controls dictate the annual evaluation be performed in a tlinely 1nanner as it 
is an important co1nponent of the co1nmunication between the employee and e1nployer on 
the performance m1d future expectations of the e1nployee in the workplace. Employee 
evaluations support ad1ninistrative persom1el decisions by documenting regular 
perfonnance measures. Late evaluations can cause delays in co1mnunicating positive and 
negative qualities of the e1nployee's ·work perfonnance. Failure to 1naintain 
documentation of the evaluation negates the evaluation process. (Finding Code No. 12-
22, 10-17, 08-21, 06-05) 

RECOJ\11\'lENDATION: 

We reco1nmend the Depart1nent follow the Personnel Rules and its own Ad1ninistrative 
Directive and hold 111anage1nent accountable for cmnpleting and docmnenting employee 
performance evaluations on a ti1nely basis. 
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DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Department \Vill make every effort to ensure co1npliance 
with perfonnance evaluation require1nents. 
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12-23 FINDING: (Payroll timekeeping systetn not automated) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Depamnent) payroll timekeeping systetn was not 
automated. 

During the 2008 audit period, the Departlnent's hmnan resources responsibilities 
were consolidated with a nutnber of other State agencies as part of the Public 
Safety Shared Services Center (PSSSC). The PSSSC was scheduled to create/ 
implen1ent an autotnated tilnekeeping systetn, but it was not created. As noted in 
preVious audits, each Correctional Center contii1ued to maintain a manual 
thnekeeping system for several hundred employees. Correctional.Center. 
employees sign in and out, and these sheets are sent to the titnekeeping clerk. 
Other infotmation, including notification of absence and call-in reports, are also 
forwarded to titnekeepers. No autotnation is involved except for processing of 
payroll warrants. 

In regard to autotnating the timekeeping system the Departlnent had previously 
responded that they do not have the resources to purchase a new tilnekeeping systetn, but 
would participate in a new Statewide system should one be purchased. During the prior 
fiscal2010 engagetnent, the Departlnent of Central Managetnent Services and Capital 
Development Board (CDB) initiated work on a Statewide automated thnekeeping systetn. 
The State entered into a contract with a vendor tO provide supplies and services for a 
thnekeeping system which included services, software licenses and hardware: CDB 
expended $1.6 nullion to the vendor for software licenses and hardware; patis ofthe 
hardware were provided by the vendor and distributed to the Correctional Centers during 
fiscal year 2010 and are in storage at the Correctional Centers. As of the end of this 
engagement fieldwork nothing else had been done towards impletnentation of the systetn 
at the Departtnent. 

In response to this finding, the l)eparttnent stated it does not have the resources to 
purchase a new timekeeping systetn. The Department would, however, participate in a 
new Statewide system should one be purchased. 

Prudent business practices suggest that controls available through autotnated timekeeping 
· systems. can provide greater efficiency and reduce the potential for costly errors or 

etnployee abuse. The lack of an autotnated tin1ekeeping systetn increases the risk of 
errors and reduces the control efficiencies for accurately tracking time. (Finding Code 
No.12-23, 10-16, 08-20, 06-04, 04-07, 02-08, 00-09, 99-17, 98-17) 

RECOlVIMENDATION: 

We recotmnend the Departtnent itnplement an autotnated timekeeping systetn. 

DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Recotmnendation accepted. The Departtnent does not, at this titne, have the resources to 
purchase a new ~imekeeping systetn. The Departlnent would, however, participate in a 
new statewide systetn should one be purchased. 
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12-24 FINDING: (Inadequate docu1nentation of employee training) 

The Department of Corrections (Department) is not properly docmnenting the cmnpletion 
of all e1nployees 1nini1num required number of training hours. 

During testing of the Depart1nent's training records for fiscal years 2011 and.2012, the 
Department \Vas unable to provide documentation that 7 of 60 (12o/o) e1nployees selected 
had 1net the 1nandatory training hour require1nents. 

The smne issue of not being able to docu1nent the Ininiinuin training hour requirements 
was noted in the previous six audits. A smnmary of the results for the current and last six 
audits is noted in the following table: 

No. of 
Two Years Ending Exceptions Smnple Size % Exceptions 

June 30, 2000 8 25 32% 

June 30, 2002 19 29 65% 

June 30, 2004 14 35 40% 

June 3 0, 2006 30 30 100% 

June 30, 2008 8 25 32% 

June 30, 2010 23 60 * 38% 

June 30, 2012 7 60 * 12% 

* Due to the scope change of the audit, the sample size included all divisions and Correctional 
Centers, not just those of the General Office. 

According to the Department's Administrative Directive (A.D.) 03.03.1 02, clerical and 
support staff (primarily those who have little or no inmate contact) are required. to co1nplete 
a minimum of 16 hours of training each year after their first year on the job. All other 
employees are required to co1nplete a minilnum of 40 hours each year. To ensure all 
employees receive training, the Directive further instructs that Training Coordinators shall 
be designated. The Training Coordinator shall maintain an "Employee Training Record," 
(Fonn DOC 0220) or a computer printout with the smne information, for each employee that 
has been assigned to him or her. 

In response to this finding from the prior audit, the Department responded they would 
1nake every effort to ensure compliance with training requirements. Depart1nent 
management indicated the lack of adequate documentation for training at various 
facilities for the current engage1nent was due to a failure to appropriately docmnent 
training hours (such as on the job training) and follow-up to ensure adequate hours are 
provided and attended during the year. 

Employees who have not received the 1ninimum training 1nay not be receiving important 
info1mation and background preparation for their specific job duties. Training is crucial to 
Department e1nployees, especially in the case of individuals who have direct contact with 
i1unates. (Finding Code No. 12-24, 10-18, 08-23, 06-03, 04-06, 02-07, 00-07) 
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RECOl\11\IENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Depart1nent allocate sufficient resources to cmnply with 
Ad1ninistrative Directive 03.03 .1 02 to docmnent and ensure e1nployees receive the 
required training to enable them to perform their specific job duties. 

DEPARTl\IENT RESPONSE: 

Recmmnendation accepted. The Depart1nent wil11nake every effort to ensure cmnpliance 
with training require1nents. 
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12-25 FINDING: (Inadequate controls over computer inventory) 

The Department of Corrections (Departtnent) was not able to locate 156 cotnputers 
during fiscal years 2011 and 2012. These cotnputers tnay have contained confidential 
infonnation. 

The Departtnent conducts an annual physical inventory of all equipment with an 
acquisition cost of $500 or more and annually reports its results to the Department of 
Central Management Services (DCMS). In its fiscal year 2011 Physical Inventory Report 
subtnitted to DCMS, the Departtnent reported it was unable to locate 594 of 108,005 
(0.55°/o) items totaling $901,741. The discrepancy report indicated that $37,785 of that 
ainount was tnissing computer inventory. In its fiscal year 2012 Physical Inventory 
Report, the Departtnent identified 905 discrepancies of 98,3 82 (0.92%) itetns totaling 
$1,641,167. The discrepancy report showed that $150,127 of that atnount was tnissing 
cotnputer inventory. 

Upon further inquiry with Departtnent personnel auditors noted that the tnissing 
cotnputer equipment consisted of 51 desktop cotnputers and 105 laptop cotnputers. The 
Departn1ent considers these con1puters to be lost. Department persom1el \Vere not able to 
provide property transfer forms or any other docutnentation showing what happened to 
the cotnputers and had not perfonned an assesstnent, and \Vas unsure how tnuch, if any, 
confidential infonnation was on the tnissing cotnputers. 

Department tnanagement indicated that the exceptions noted could be attributable to 
hutnan error, employee oversight, insufficient training and/or shortages of staff. 

Although the Department has established procedures regarding the proper storage of 
electronic data, there is a possibility that confidential or personal infonnation could reside 
on these cotnputers. The Departtnent had not protected all its laptop computers with 
encryption software, thus increasing the risk that confidential or personal infonnation 
would be exposed. 

The State Property Control Act (30 ILCS 605/4 and 6.02) requires the Departtnent be 
accountable for the supervision, control and inventory of all items under its jurisdiction 
and control. In addition, the Departtnent had the responsibility to ensure that 
confidential infonnation is protected from disclosure and that provisions in the Personal 
Infonnation Protection Act (815 ILCS 530) are followed. 

Failure to follow up on tnissing cotnputer equiptnent resulted in a lack of control over 
State property and the risks associated with the potential exposure of confidential 
infonnation. (Finding Code No. 12-25) 
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RECOJVIJ\1ENDATION: 

We recotrunend the Depart1nent: 

• Ilmnediately perform a detailed inventory of computer equip1nent. 

• Contact DCMS in an effort to reconcile any missing ite1ns that may have been 
transferred to DCMS, but lacked appropriate paperwork. 

• Perfonn a detailed assessment to detennine if any of the 1nissing co1nputers contained 
confidential infonnation. 

• Review current practices to detennine if enhancements can be i1nplemented to 
prevent the theft or loss of co1nputers. 

We also reco1mnend the Depart1nent establish procedures to iimnediately assess if a 
computer 1nay have contained confidential information whenever it is reported lost or 
stolen, and document the results of the assess1nent. 

DEP ARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Depmiment will work with Depmi1nent of Central 
Management Services in an effort to reconcile any 1nissing ite1ns and 1nake an assess1nent 
of those reconciled to detennine if computer contained confidential infonnation. 
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12-26 FINDING: (Computer equip1nent not installed in a ti1nely manner) 

The Department of Corrections (Department) ordered and received computer equipment 
that was not installed or placed in service for over a year. 

As stated in Finding 12-18, the Depart1nent began developing Offender 3 60 in June 2010 
as a replace1nent for the Offender Tracking Syste1n. As of October 2012, the system was 
still in development and had not been placed into production. 

On June 22, 2011, the Depart1nent purchased 400 laptop computers and carrying cases 
for $226,000, only days prior to the end of fiscal year 2011. Once received, the ite1ns 
were logged into the Property Control Syste1n (PCS) in July 2011 and placed in 
temporary stock in the State's warehouse in Lincoln, Illinois. Auditors noted, according 
to a review ofPCS, 377 (94%) of the laptop co1nputers remained idle in the Lincoln 
warehouse at June 30,2012 and 372 (93%) at Dece1nber 31,2012. According to the 
DCMS negotiated products listing, the vendor fro1n which the laptop co1nputers were 
purchases has since discontinued those 1nodels. 

The illinois Procure1nent Code (30 ILCS 500/50-55) requires the Depart1nent stock no 1nore 
than a twelve month supply of equip1nent, supplies and co1nmodities, articles and other 
ite1ns, except as authorized by the State agency's regulations. In addition, the Fiscal Control 
and Inten1al Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) requires the Departlnent establish and 
maintain a system, or systems, of internal fiscal and administrative controls which provide 
assurance that funds, property, and other assets and resources are safeguarded against waste, 
loss, unauthorized use, and misappropriation. 

Depart1nent 1nanage1nent indicated the 400 laptop computers and carrying cases 
purchased at the end of fiscal year 2011 were necessary for the Offender. 3 60 refresh and 
modernization project. These laptop co1nputers were to replace outdated equipment that 
was not co1npatible with the upgrades the Department was making for the project. In 
addition, Depart1nent 1nanage1nent indicated that the co1nputers were stored in order to 
have the appropriate software installed prior to deployrnent. 

Failure to adequately monitor laptop computer inventory to ensure proper utilization 
results in waste, circumvention of the appropriation process, and nonco1npliance with 
State statute. (Finding Code No. 12-26) 

RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We recormnend the Department deploy equip1nent purchases upon receipt in a tilnely 
1nanner so the 1naxilnmn value of the purchases can be obtained. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1runendation accepted. The Departlnent, when applicable, will ensure that co1nputer 
equip1nent purchased is deployed when received. At tllis tilne all laptops have been 
deployed with the ongoing ilnple1nentation of the Offender 360 application. 
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12-27 FINDING: (Policies and procedures regarding operation of State vehicles not 
followed) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections (Department) had several·weaknesses regarding the 
reporting of vehicle accidents, vehicle maintenance records, reporting the value of the 
"personal use" of State vehicles and annual certifications of license and vehicle liability 
coverage. 

Auditors noted accidents involving State/Department vehicles were not properly reported, 
and Departlnent e1nployees were not ensuring vehicles personally assigned to them were 
adequately maintained. In addition, the Department did not maintain adequate controls 
over the repo1iing of the value of the "personal use" of a State vehicle as a fringe benefit. 
As a result, taxable fringe benefits related to the personal use of State vehicles 1nay not be 
properly recorded. Finally, the annual certification of license and vehicle liability 
coverage was not co1npleted timely. Specific proble1ns noted were as follows: 

• Sixty of218 (28%) reported accidents involving State/DepartJ.nent owned vehicles v1ere 
selected for testing, auditors noted 11 (18%) instances in which accidents had not been 
reported to DCMS on a timely basis. The reports were submitted fro1n 1 to 70 days late. 
An analysis of this issue fro1n the last five audits is summarized in the following table: 

Two Years Number of Smnple %of Range of 
Ending Exceptions Size Exceptions Days Late 

June 30, 2004 13 25 52% 2 to 279 
June 3 0, 2006 14 25 56% 1 to 49 
June 30, 2008 14 34 41% 1 to 146 
June 30,2010 35 60 * 58% 1 to 593 
June 30, 2012 11 60 * 18% 1 to 70 

* Due to the scope change of the audit, the sample size included all diVisions and 
Correctional Centers, not just those of the General Office. 

Additionally, auditors noted 6 of the 60 (10%) accidents sampled were inadequately 
documented. Specifically, 4 instances were noted in which the Depart1nent was unable 
to provide the required accident report (Fonn SR-1) and 2 instances in which the 
required accident report (Fonn IL401-1579) was unable to be provided. 

According to 44 Ill. Adm. Code 5040.520, "A driver of a state-owned or leased vehicle 
which is involved in an accident of any type shall report such accident to the appropriate 
law enforcernent agency and to DCMS by completing the "Motorist's Report of illinois 
Motor Vehicle Accident" fonn (SR-1) ... The Fonn SR-1 is to be completed, as nearly as 
possible, in its entirety including a clear description of the accident and the conditions 
surrounding the accident. .. In no case is this report to be cmnpleted later than three (3) 
days following an accident. If the State driver is incapable of cmnpleting the report 
because of death or disability, the driver's supervisor should cmnplete the form." 
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The DepartJ.nent's Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.75.149 further states, "Accidents 
involving any vehicle operated in the conduct of state business shall be promptly 
reported regardless of the dollar aJ.nount." A.D. 02.75.149 also states that the Vehicle 
Accident Coordinator shall submit appropriate reports to DCMS within seven days 
following the accident. Finally, the State Records Act ( 5 ILCS 160/8) requires the 
Deparbnent make and preserve "records containing adequate and proper docrunentation 
of the organization, functions, policies, decisions, procedures, and essential transactions" 
of the Deparhnent. 

• For fiscal years 2011 and 2012, auditors requested to exaJ.nine 60 vehicle 
1naintenance records and noted 20 (3 3%) did not receive annual inspection in the 
fiscal year tested. Additionally, 38 (63 %) did not receive either or both adequate tire 
rotations and oil changes for the year tested. The DepartJ.nent could not provide any 
1naintenance records for 6 (1 0%) of the 60 vehicles selected for testing. Auditors 
additionally noted 2 (3%) vehicles~ that were transfened to DCMS for surplus but 
were still listed on the facilities property listing. An analysis of the inadequate oil 
change issue for the last six audits is su1runarized in the following table: 

% Range of Miles 
Two Years Nu1nber of Srunple of Oil Change Past 

Ending Exceptions Size Exceptions Due 
June 30, 2002 11 25 44% 615 to 28,783 
June 30, 2004 5 25 20% 1,227 to 7,514 
June 3 0, 2006 21 25 84% Unavailable 
June 30, 2008 15 25 60% Unavailable 
June 30,2010 37 45 82% 1,800 to 22,933 
June 30,2012 38 54* 70% 1,046 to 17,970 

* Sample size of 60 less the 6 in which the Depart1nent could not provide any 
1naintenance records. 

According to 44 Ill. Ad1n. Code 5040.400, "All state-owned .... or leased vehicles 
which fall under this Part shall undergo regular service and/or repair in order to 
1naintain the vehicles in road worthy, safe, operating condition and appropriate 
cos1netic condition. Driver should check oil, coolant, and battery water levels (if 
possible) regularly, such as at each refueling." 44 Ill. Ad1n. Code 5040.410 states, 
"Agencies shall have vehicles inspected by DCMS at least once per year and shall 
1naintain vehicles in accordance with the schedules provided by DCMS or with other 
schedules acceptable to DCMS that provide for proper care and 1naintenance of 
special use vehicles." Furthennore, the Departrnent's A&ninistrative Directive 
01.02.106 (Maintenance and Use of Vehicles) states, "Depart1nent vehicles which are 
personally assigned shall be 1naintained in full accordance with the 1nanufacturer's 
reco1nmendations contained in the owner's 1nanual and in accordance with 
Department directives, policies, and procedures. The person to who1n the vehicle is 
assigned shall ensure compliance. Vehicles shall be inspected by a DCMS State 
garage on an am1ual basis." 
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Good business practice dictates that vehicles be 1naintained to prevent excessive 
repair costs in the future. Failure to adequately 1naintain vehicles can cost the State 
significant amounts in future years through additional repair bills and shortened 
useful lives for vehicles. 

• The Department's A.D 01.02.106 states that upon assigmnent of a vehicle, the 
e1nployee is to receive the Personally Assigned Vehicle Usage Packet, including 
instructions. A listing of fonns that are to be completed by the e1nployee and 
submitted to the Division of Finance (DOF) Fiscal Support Unit Vehicle Coordinator 
is included in the A.D. Copies of the fonn are to be retained in the facility business 
office. Within this listing of docu1nentation described in the A.D. is the Annual 
Personally Assigned Vehicle Tax Exemption Certification, Form DC 710-1241, and 
the Determination of Value ofPersonal Use of State Vehicle, Fonn DC 352. 

The Department uses Fonn DC 710-1241 to docmnent the detennination of whether 
e1nployees are exempt fro1n taxation related to fringe benefits derived fro1n the 
personal use of a State vehicle. The Depart1nent was unable to provide fonns for 24 
of 60 ( 40%) e1nployees tested, but provided exe1nption statuses for employees for 
whom it could not provide aFonn DC 710-1241, therefore the Form DC 352 was not 
filed. 

Under the Treasury Rule which is published in the Internal Revenue Services' 
Publication 15-B, "E1nployer's Tax Guide to Fringe Benefits," the Departlnent 
determines the value of a vehicle that the Department provides to an employee for 
coffilnuting use by 1nultiplying each one-way co1mnute by $1.50. Administrative 
Directive 01.02.106 requires all Depart1nent employees who are subject to vehicle 
usage income to complete Form DC 352. Fonn DC 352 is to be completed by the 
required e1nployees at the start of the calendar year, and indicates this is an estimate 
of vehicle personal use incmne for the co1ning year. This infonnation is entered into 
the payroll system so that taxes can be withheld each pay period during the year 
rather than a one-time lmnp sum withholding in December. By not providing fonn 
DC 710-1241 fringe benefits related to personal use of State vehicles may not be 
properly recorded. 

• The Fonn DC 710-1241 provided for 3 of60 (5%) e1nployees tested were lacking the 
supervisor's approval. In 1 of 3 of these instances, the e1nployee filled out the form, 
1narking non-tax exempt, but then hand wrote "tax-exempt". A Fonn DC 352 was 
not filed, therefore auditors were unable to determine if the employee was required to 
withhold taxable benefits fro1n its payroll. 

The Depart1nent's A.D 01.02.106 states the iffilnediate supervisor is to review the 
request for tax exe1nption from the State vehicle. Upon approval, the supervisor is to 
sub1nit the request to the DOF Fiscal Support Unit Vehicle Coordinator. Since the 
form was not approved, fringe benefits related to personal use of State vehicles 1nay 
not be properly recorded. 
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In response to this finding in the prior audit, the Department indicated it would tnake every 
effort to ensure compliance with proper controls and procedures and revise processes and 
procedures as needed. Related to the exceptions noted in the current audit period, 
Department 1nanage1nent indicated the exceptions were due to conflicting priorities, 
e1nployee oversight, and lack of resources to replace the fleet 1nanage1nent system. (Finding 
Code No.l2-27, 10-21,08-33,06-01,04-03,02-04, 00-03) 

RECOMl\iENDATION: 

We reco1nmend the Departlnent: 

• Send a fonnal notice to those e1nployees whose jobs involve travel to re1nind them of 
the requirement and i1nportance of filing accident reports in a ti1nely 1nanner. The 
Departlnent should consider disciplinary action for those etnployees who do not file 
repotis in a tilnely manner. 

• Monitor the subtnission of accident reports to ensure the requiretnents are being met 
as required by the Department's Adtninistrative Directive. 

• Enforce vehicle 1naintenance schedules to reduce future year expenditures for repairs 
and to extend the useful lives of vehicles. 

• Establish controls to ensure co1npliance with the Treasury Rule related to personal 
use of a State/Depart1nent assigned vehicle. 

• Establish a procedure to receive the proper Department fonn from each employee 
allowed "personal use" of a State vehicle to ensure proper records for the repo1iing of 
fringe benefits. 

DEPARTl\iENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Depart1nent will1nake every effort to ensure co1npliance 
vvith proper controls and procedures regarding State vehicles and will revise processes 
and procedures as needed. 
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12-28 FINDING: (Failure to adequately 1naintain docmnentation related to personally 
assigned vehicles) 

The Department of Corrections (Depart1nent) failed to 1naintain docu1nentation regarding 
personally assigned State vehicles. 

As contained in the Depart1nent of Central Manage1nent Services' (DCMS) Code of 
Regulations ( 44 Ill. Ad1n. Code 5040.340), "Vehicles 1nay be assigned to specific 
individuals if authorized in writing by the head of the agency to which the vehicle is 
assigned. Agencies will be required to report to DCMS annually and when changes 
occur the nmne of each e1nployee assigned a vehicle, the equip1nent number and license 
plate nu1nber of the assigned vehicle, e1nployee's headquarters, and residence ... " 

The Departn1ent's Administrative Directive 01.02.106 requires, upon the personal 
assigmnent of a State vehicle, that the Department e1nployee be provided with a 
Personally Assigned Vehicle Usage Packet, including instructions. The Personally 
Assigned Vehicle Usage Packet includes several forms that are to be completed by the 
e1nployee and sub1nitted and retained by the Correctional Center and/or division Business 
Office. One of those fonns is the Monthly Mileage Report (DC 710-1287). Of the 60 
e1nployees to who1n vehicles had been personally assigned during the audit period, the 
Depart1nent was unable to provide completed Monthly Mileage Reports (DC 710-1287) 
for 6 (10%) e1nployees. Of the 54 sets of1nileage reports received, 8 reports (15%) were 
1nissing various 1nonths and could not be thoroughly tested by the auditors. 

In response to this finding in the previous audit, the Department stated it would properly 
complete and 1naintain the documentation required for all personally assigned State­
owned vehicles. Regarding the exceptio_ns noted again in the current audit, Departlnent · 
1nanagement indicated the weaknesses regarding personally assigned State vehicles were 
due to conflicting priorities, hu1nan error and employee oversight. 

Failure to maintain accurate and complete documentation of personally assigned vehicles 
can lead to significant inefficiencies in the allocation of Department resources and is also 
non-co1npliance with Depart1nent Administrative Directives. (Finding Code No. 12-28, 
10-22) 

RECOl\1JVIENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Depart1nent maintain docu1nentation pe1iinent to the personal 
assigmnent of State-owned vehicles in accordance with the Illinois Ad1ninistrative Code 
and its Ad1ninistrative Directive. 

DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Recmmnendation accepted. The Depart1nent will conununicate to Depart1nent personnel 
that are assigned vehicles to properly co1nplete and maintain the docu1nentation required 
for their assigned State-owned vehicles. 
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12-29 FINDING: (Failure to maintain control over telecormnunication devices) 

The Department of Corrections (Departlnent) did not maintain a separate, up-to-date 
inventory of wireless Internet air cards and failed to cancel cellular phones, calling cards, 
and pagers in a tilnely mmu1er after employees ceased working for the Department. 

The Departlnent tracks outstanding pagers through the filing of Pager Service Request 
(PSR) fonns and cellular phones and wireless Internet air cards through Telecommunication 
Service Request (TSR) forms, in date order. The fonns document pager and cellular phone 
issuances, replacements, cancellations, and other changes in service. 

Based upon TSR forms, approximately 890 cellular phones and air cards were issued or 
replaced during the audit period. The Department maintains a listing of State cellular 
phones and wireless Internet air cards that is combined in the Expense Manage1nent Syste1n 
(EMS). Auditors noted the Departinent does not maintain a separate, up-to-date inventory 
of active wireless Internet air cards. As such, the Depatiment was unable to provide 
infonnation as to whom the air cards were assigned. The Departinent is charged $42 per 
1nonth for service associated with each active wireless Internet air cards. 

Auditors also identified that the Departinent failed to tlinely cancel cellular phone and 
pagers in a timely 1nanner after e1nployees ceased working for the Department. Testing 
noted the following weaknesses: 

• Five of 60 (8%) cellular phones tested were not cancelled timely. The delinquencies 
ranged frmn 57 to 578 days after the employees separated from the Department. In 
addition, 10 of 60 (17%) devices selected for cellular phone testing were detennined to 
be cancelled wireless Internet air cards. The Departinent was not able to detennine to 
whom the air cards were originally assigned as the parole agent numbers within EMS 
were incorrect. 

• One of2 (50%) calling cards tested was not cancelled timely. The delinquency was 49 
days after the employee separated from the Departtnent 

• Six of 60 (1 Oo/o) pagers tested were not cancelled timely. The delinquencies ranged 
from 361 to 7,015 days after the einployees separated from the Department. 

The Department of Corrections Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 02.15.110 states that "the 
Chief A&ninistrator shall notify the Department Telecmmnunications Ad1ninistrator 
limnediately of the tennination of an e1nployee who has been issued a telephone credit 
card." It also states that the Chief Administrator is required to send a memo to the 
Department Telecommunications Adininistrator containing infonnation such as the 
e1nployee' s nmne and division, card number, account nUI11ber and date of cancellation. 
Finally, the Departinent Telecommunications Administrator is required to notify the 
Department of Central Management Services (DCMS) of the cm1celed card and updated 
records accordingly. 
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Departtnent of Corrections Administrative Directive (A.D.) 02.15.115 requires the 
Manager of the Office ofTelec01nm.unications to retain an inventory of all Department 
pagers \Vhich identifies the pager number; type of pager, i.e. regional or statewide; and 
the status of the pager (assigned or unassigned). If the pager is assigned, the inventory 
shall also specify the nmne of the employee to whmn the pager is assigned; the unit and 
division of the employee to whom the pager is assigned; and the date(s) the pager was 
issued to the e1nployee and, if applicable, retutned to the supervisor and the Office of 
Telecommunications. In addition, A.D. 02.15.115 charges the employee's supervisor 
with the responsibility of ensuring the return of a pager upon the etnployee' s transfer or 
tennination. At that tilne, the supervisor is to notify the Office of Teleco1m11unications .or 
the facility's liaison in charge that the pager is unassigned. The pager is to be retained for 
reassigmnent within the unit for a period not to exceed 30 days. At that titne, if the pager 
is not reassigned, the supervisor is to update the unit's pager list and return the pager to 
the Office of Telecotmnunications. 

While A.D. 02.15.110 and A.D. 02.15.115 do not directly discuss cellular phones or 
wireless Internet air cards, prudent business practices and fiscal controls would suggest 
that guidelines sitnilar to those described for pagers in this Adtninistrative Directive 
should also be practices for cellular phones, calling cards and wireless Internet air cards. 

Department management indicated the failure to 1naintain control over 
telecotmnunication devices was due to etnployee oversight, cotnpeting priorities and 
unresolved coordination issues with the Department of Central Management Services 
regarding cancelling cellular phones and pagers. 

Failure to 1naintain up-to-date inventories ofteleconununication devices, as well as not 
tilnely canceling the1n upon employee separation, risks Departtnent resources as it 
impairs the Depart1nent' s ability to have a cotnplete record of active and assigned 
devices. Additionally, failure to maintain inventories and not tilnely cancelling the 
devices is non-compliance with the Departtnent' s Adtninistrative Directive. (Finding 
Code No. 12-29) 

RECOMl\1ENDATION: 

We recotnmend the Departlnent 1naintait1 an up-to-date inventory of all 
teleco1111nunication devices. The inventory should docutnent the assigm11ents and timely 
cancellations. 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

Recotmnendation accepted. The Departtnent will properly tnaintain and update inventory 
of all telecotmnunication devices. 
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12-30 FINDING: (Cash receipts and refunds not paid into the State Treasury on a ti1nely 
basis as required by State law) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Department) did not pay into the State Treasury the 
gross amount of the money received on a tlinely basis as required by State law. 

During receipts testing the auditors identified the following exceptions: 

• The Department could not provide copies of the deposited check or any other date 
related infonnation for 12 of 60 (20%) receipts tested. Two of these 12 (17%) 
instances were due to the date on the checks being illegible or not included. 
Additionally, 27 of 60 (45%) receipts were not date stmnped when the checks were 
received. As a result, it was not possible to determine whether the receipt was 
deposited on a thnely basis. The Accounts Receivable Unit began processing all 
checks for the Departlnent on October 11, 2011. Prior to that date, the correctional 
centers processed checks received and then forwarded them to the Accounts 
Receivable Unit to be sent in to the State Treasurer. Auditors noted the Department 
was able to provide adequate support for receipts included in the testing smnple with 
dates after October 11, 2011. 

• Two of 60 (3o/o) Receipt Deposit Transmittal (RDT) forms totaling $131 were not 
re1nitted to the Illinois Office of the Co1nptroller in a tin1ely mmmer. The RDTs were 
sub1nitted 208 and 36 days after being deposited within the State Treasury. 

During testing of refunds the auditors noted the following exceptions: 

• The Departlnent could not provide copies of all the refunded checks or any other date 
related information for 21 of60 (35%) refunds tested. Eight of60 (13%) refunds 
tested could not be traced to the corresponding original paJlnent to Depart1nent books 
via the Accounting Infonnation System Reports. Two of 60 (3 o/o) refunds could not 
be traced to the original expenditures and the reversals to the corresponding Monthly 
Appropriation Status Report (SB01) or the Monthly Revenue Status Report (SB04), if 
it was a prior year refund. Due to these exceptions, the auditors were unable to 
determine the mnount received was correct or properly recorded. 

• Six of 60 (10%) refunds totaling $54,095 were not deposited into the State Treasury 
within the 15 day deposit extension. The refunds were deposited between 6 and 107 
days late. Additionally, the Depart1nent could not provide adequate support for 42 of 
60 (70%) deposits into the State Treasury. As a result, it was not possible to 
determine whether the refund was deposited on a tlinely basis. · 

• Twenty-eight of60 (47%) refunds tested were salary refunds. Seventeen of28 (61 %) 
of the salary refunds tested totaling $293,575 were processed 2 to 165 days after the 
60 day period allotted by the SAMS 1nanual to process the refunds. Thirty-two of 60 
(53o/o) refunds tested were for Expenditure Adjust1nent Trans1nittals. Seventeen of 32 
(53%) Expenditure Adjustment Trans1nittals tested totaling $111,561 were processed 
unthnely ranging fro1n 84 to 3,13 5 days after the original warrant date. 
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The State Officers and E1nployees Money Disposition Act (30 ILCS 230/2a)) states, 
"Every officer ... unless a different time of payment is expressly provided by law or by 
rules or regulations pro1nulgated under subsection (b) of this Section, shall pay into the 
State Treasury the gross amount of 1noney so received on the day of actual physical 
receipt with respect to any single item of receipt exceeding $10,000, within 24 'hours of 
actual physical receipt with respect to an accumulation of receipts exceeding $10,000 or 
more, or within 48 hours of actual physical receipt with respect to an accmnulation of 
receipts exceeding $500 but less than $1 0,000 ... " The Act further allows the State 
Treasurer and State Comptroller to grant time extensions for the deposit of public funds. 
The most recent deposit extension approved for this purpose was a 15 day extension for 
the period Dece1nber 6, 2011 through December 6, 2013. Even with the approved 
deposit extension, the Department did not deposit receipts and refunds in a ti1nely 
1nanner. 

Additionally, the Comptroller's Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS) 
procedures 23.20.65 states salary refunds are to be processed within 60 days of the 
original issue date. SAMS procedures 25.10.30 requires the Co1nptrollerto order all 
deposits into funds held by the State Treasurer, once the State Treasurer issues a non­
negotiable draft to the specific agency. The agencies are to re1nit to the illinois Office of 
the Co1nptroller the draft so the Comptroller 1nay order the 1noneys into the appropriate 
fund(s). As indicated in SAMS 25.20.10, when receipts are sub1nitted to the Comptroller, 
the Receipts Deposit Trans1nittal is the fonn which 1nust be utilized. 

In response to this finding in the previous audit, the Department stated it would 1nake 
every effort to ensure receipts and refunds are processed ti1nely and accurately and source 
documentation is properly maintained and submitted, if applicable. Regarding the 
exceptions noted in the current audit, Department 1nanage1nent indicated the failure to 
maintain adequate docmnentation, deposit receipts and refunds ti1nely, and submit RDTs 
to the Illinois Office of the Comptroller in a ti1nely 1nanner was due to human error and 
employee oversight. 

Failure to perform these activities in a tilnely 1nanner or 1naintain the necessary source 
docmnentation results in nonco1npliance with the State Officers and E1nployees Money 
Disposition Act and SAMS and improperly withholds funds fro1n the State Treasury. 
(Finding Code No. 12-30, 10-24, 08-36) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recormnend the Depa1i1n~nt imple1nent controls to ensure cash receipts and refunds 
are deposited in a ti1nely manner in accordance with State law and SAMS. Additionally, 
we recormnend the Department implement controls to ensure source docu1nentation is 
1naintained related to cash receipts and Receipt Deposit Transmittals are sub1nitted to the 
Co1nptroller in a timely mmmer upon receipt of the completed draft fro1n the Treasurer. 

DEP ARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Department will make every effort to ensure receipts 
and refunds are processed tilnely and accurately and source docu1nentation is properly 
1naintained and sub1nitted. 



12-31 FINDING: (Failure to develop a fonnal fraud risk assess1nent program) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Department) did not have a formal fraud risk assess1nent 
progrmn in place during the audit period. 

The Departlnent relied on ad1ninistrative directives and internal controls to 1ninllnize the risk 
of fraud occurring, but had not established a fonnal progrmn to assess the specific risks 
associated with fraud. 

The Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act (30 ILCS 10/3001) (Act) states, "All State 
agencies shall establish and maintain a system, or syste1ns, ofinternal fiscal and 
aillninistrative controls, which shall provide assurance that: (1) resources are utilized 
efficiently, effectively, and in co1npliance with applicable law; (2) obligations and costs that 
are in co1npliance \Vith applicable law; (3) funds, property, and other assets and resources 
are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, and misappropriation ... " 
Additionally, it is manage1nent's responsibility to prevent and detect fraud. Therefore, 
the Departlnent should ilnple1nent a fonnal policy regarding the evaluation of fraud risk 
and a system of controls to help prevent m1d detect potential fraudulent activity within its 
organization. Preparing a written policy will serve to docmnent the Departn1ent' s 
awareness and responsibility for fraud prevention and detection, as well as specific 
activities necessary to identify m1d address specific fraud risk factors. 

Depart1nent 1nanage1nent stated it considered the Department's presently established 
ad1ninistrative directives and internal controls to be sufficient and was not aware of the 
need to create a fonnal fraud risk assessment progrmn. 

The Departlnent n1anaged the expenditure of $1.2 billion of State funds in fiscal year 
2012. Without a formal program to identify and address the specific risks associated with 
fraud, fraudulent activities 1nay go undetected and could result in 1nisstate1nents in its 
financial reporting to the State or 1nisappropriation of Depart1nent assets. (Finding Code 
No. 12-31) 

RECOlVIMENDATION: 

We reconnnend manage1nent establish a continuous fraud prevention, deterrence and 
detection progrmn. This progrmn should include evaluating whether appropriate internal 
controls have been i1nple1nented in any areas identified as posting a higher risk of 
fraudulent activity, as well as controls over the financial reporting process. In addition, 
the Departlnent' s executive staff should evaluate manage1nent' s identification of fraud 
risks and the in1plementation of anti-fraud 1neasures. 

DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1runendation accepted. The Depmi1nent will make every effort to ensure a fonnal 
fraud risk policy and risk assess1nent is co1npleted and appropriately acted upon. 
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12-32 FINDING: (Failure to update Ad1ninistrative Directives) 

The Deparhnent of Corrections (Deparh11ent) needs to update its Administrative Directives 
to reflect the creation of the Depart1nent of Juvenile Justice and operational changes that 
have occurred in recent years. 

During testing auditors noted where the Deparhnent had not consistently updated its own 
Ad1ninistrative Directives (A.D.) to reflect tl1e change for the creation of the Department of 
Juvenile Justice (DJJ). For example, A.D. 02.42.1 06, effective date 1/1/2000 still references 
the juvenile division, which no longer exists with the creation ofDJJ. 

In addition, as of the auditor's testing, tl1e Depart1nent's A.D.s have effective dates ranging 
from February 15, 1984 to March 1, 2012. -Noted in the table below are the Department's 
462 A.D.s listed by the decade the A.D.s were either effective, updated or mnended: 

Year Number of A.D.s %of Total A.D.s 
1984 to 1989 13 3% 
1990 to 1999 148 32% 
2000 to 2009 241 52% 
2010 to 2012 60 13% 

TOTAL 462 

Note: During the auditors' cmnpilation of this infonnation, if even one page of the A.D. 
had been updated, the auditors gave credit to the entire A.D. for the updated effective date. 

The General Office took over the administration of the locally held bank ac_count of the 
resident portion of the DOC Resident's and E1nployee's Benefit Fund in 2006. This change 
has not been addressed in the A.D.s. Additionally, the Deparhnent has not updated its A.D.s 
to account for the connnon technology of cellular phones. A.D. 02.15.115, requires the 
Department to 1naintain a current invento1y of all Depart1nent pagers, but does not address 
cellular phones, which are now the more prevalent technology. 

In response to this finding in the previous audit, the Department stated it would ensure 
sufficient resources were devoted to review and update the A.D.s as necessary. In addition, 
the Department stated it had established a follow-up control1nechanis1n to ensure adequate 
and appropriate ilnple1nentation occurs. When auditors inquired with 1nanage1nent about 
tins recurring weakness, Deparhnent 1nanagement stated cmnpeting priorities and the level 
of effort to achieve consensus in the review a11d drafting of A.D.s prohibited it fro1n 
updating the A.D .s during the current audit period. 

As defined in A.D. 01.01.101, an Administrative Directive is "an intemal1nanage1nent 
policy and procedure adopted by the Deparhnent." As such, the A.D .s should be updated as 
concurrently as possible when significant changes occur in the Deparhnent, no less than 
annually. Failure to do so represents the potential for the breakdown in the stm1dardization 
of procedures throughout the Department, which is the intent of the A.D.s. (Findi11g Code 
No. 12-32, 10-33, 08-44) 
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RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Deparhnent perfonn a comprehensive review of its A.D.s and update 
them as necessary to ensure they represent the 1nost current, standardized practices of the 
Deparhnent. Additionally, the Departlnent should review A.D. 01.01.101 and n1odify it 
as necessary to specifically define the maintenance procedures so necessary updates are 
assigned the appropriate level of priority. 

DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Departlnent will ensure sufficient resources are devoted 
to review and update the Amninistrative Directives as necessary. 
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12-33 FINDING: (Failure to properly notify appropriate parties ofi1npending release of 
inmates) 

The Deparhnent of Corrections (Departtnent) failed to properly notify State's Attorneys and 
public housing agencies of lin pending release of ilnnates. 

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-14-1(c)) requires the Departlnent to 
establish procedures to provide written notification of any release of an individual who has 
been convicted of a felony to the State's Attorney and sheriff of the county fro1n which the 
offender was co1mnitted and to the State's Atton1ey and sheriff of the county into vv-hich the 
offender will be paroled or released. The Department is also to establish procedures to 
notify the proper law enforce1nent agency for any municipality of any release of an imnate 
convicted of a felony if the arrest of the offender or the c01runission of the offense took 
place in the 1nunicipality, or if the offender is to be paroled or released into the municipality, 
or if the offender resided in the 1nunicipality at the tune of the commission of the offense. If 
the person convicted of a felony who is in the custody of the Department or on parole or 
1nandatory supervised release co1rununicates to the Deparhnent that he or she has resided, 
resides, or will reside at an address that is a housing facility owned, 1nanaged, operated, or 
leased by a public housing agency, the Depart1nent must send ·written notification of that 
infonnation to the public housing agency that owns, 1nanages, operates, or leases the 
housing facility. The written notification is to be given, when possible, at least 14 days 
before release of the person from custody, or as soon thereafter as possible. 

Auditors noted the Department was not able to co1nply with the 14 day notification 
require1nent to the State's Attorney in the counties where the prosecution took place and 
where the inmate was to be released at 10 of27 (37°/o) Correctional Centers (East Moline, 
Hill, Pickneyville, Shawnee, Stateville, Lincoln, Dwight, Southwesten1, Vie1ma, and 
Logan) for 15 of 50 (30%) inmates tested. The notices ranged from 1 to 14 days after the 
14 day notification deadline. The Depart1nent also did not provide written notification to 
public housing agencies where felons in the custody of the Depart1nent resided, resides, or 
will reside at an address owned, 1nanaged, operated, or leased by a public housing agency at 
4 of27 (15%) Correctional Centers (Dixon, Dwight, Sheridan, and Hill). 

Auditors further noted 2 of27 (7%) Correctional Centers (Shawnee and Logan) ·were 
either unable to locate the notice of ilnpending release in the imnates' file, or failed to 
sub1nit the notice, for 5 of 50 (1 0%) ilunates tested. 

The local authorities, public housing agencies, and the victllns and their fmnilies need to be 
infonned of an offender taking up residence in their particular location so they have ti1ne to 
respond or prepare for a prisoner's release. Failure to provide the notification as outlined in 
statute is noncompliance with the State Statute and could impair public safety. (Finding 
Code No. 12-33, 10-27) 

RECOlV£MENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Department properly notify the appropriate parties of i1npending 
release of imnates in accordance with State statute. 
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DEPARTl\fENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1nmendation accepted. The Departlnent does not always have knowledge or notice 
of a pending release 14 days in advance because of special hearings, good credit earned 
or a judge's ruling and cannot legally hold an imnate beyond his/her release date. The 
Department does, when possible, supply the notification at least 14 days before release of 
the person from custody, or supply notification as soon thereafter as possible. 
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12-34 FINDING: (Failure to properly establish 1nechanis1n to track access to imnate 1naster 
records) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections (Depart1nent) failed to establish a 1nechanism to track 
access to imnate 1naster files in the manner required by the Unified Code of Corrections 
(730 ILCS 5/3-5-1). 

Section 3-5-1 of the Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5) (Code) requires the 
Department to 1na:intain a 1naster record file for each co1runitted person it incarcerates. 
The Code specifies the items to be 1naintained \Vi thin the 1naster record file of each 
imnate. Additionally, it requires the Departn1ent to keep a record of all outside persons 
who have access to inmate 1naster record files, the files reviewed, any file 1naterial 
copied, and the purpose of access. 

Auditors noted exceptions to Section 3-5-1 of the Code at 7 of27 (26%) Correctional 
Centers (Graharn, Dwight, Sheridan, Vienna, Southwesten1, Jacksonville, and Vandalia) 
because the Correctional Centers had not established a 1nechanis1n to track access to 
imnate master files, including detailing the information outlined in Section 3-5-1 of the 
Code, \Vhich requires a record of the outside person who accessed inmate files, the files 
reviewed, file 1naterial copied or the purpose of the access. Although the auditors noted 
the Jacksonville Correctional Center 1naintained a log of those who accessed the imnate 
files related to sexually violent persons, the Center did not 1naintain a record of all 
outside persons that accessed inmate 1naster files that specifically detailed what file 
1naterial was copied fro1n the files· and the purpose of the access to the inmate 1naster 
files. Auditors noted the Vandalia Correctional Center 1naintained a record of all outside 
persons who accessed imnate files; however, the record did not include a listing of any 
file 1naterial copied and the purpose of access as required by the Code. 

In response to this finding fro1n the previous audit, the Depart1nent stated it would ensure 
a record is 1naintained at every facility tracking access to the imnate 1naster files as 
required. In response to the current exceptions, the Depart1nent stated exceptions noted 
were due to a record log being kept that would have no entries as records were not 
1naintained because master files are not accessible to personnel outside the facility unless 
there is a court order, writ, subpoena or silnilar legal docmnentation and those docu1nents 
are 1naintained. 

Failure to establish a 1nechanis1n to track access to imnate 1naster files in the n1am1er 
required by the Unified Code of Corrections results in statutory noncompliance. (Finding 
Code No. 12-34, 10-30) 

RECOlVIlVIENDATION: 

We recormnend the Departlnent either co1nply with the require1nents as outlined in the 
Code or seek legislative 1nodification to pennit the 1naintenance of otl1er legal 
docu1nentation as substitution for such record of access to the im11ates' 1naster record file. 
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DEPARTlVIENT RESPONSE: 

Recommendation accepted. The Depart1nent will re1nind Records Office staff to ensure a 
record is maintained at every facility tracking access to imnate 1naster files as required. 
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12-35 FINDING: (Nonco1npliance with imnate grievance procedures) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Department) could not de1nonstrate consistent 
compliance with the inmate grievance requirements as outlined in the Unified Code of 
Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-8-8). 

Inmate grievance procedures are outlined in Section3-8-8 of the Unified Code of 
Corrections (730 ILCS 5). The Departlnent 1nust maintain docu1nentation of imnate 
grievances and any decision thereto for a period of one year. All co1mnitted persons are 
to be infonned of the grievance procedures established by the Departlnent and the 
procedures 1nust be 1nade obtainable to all coimnitted persons. 

The illinois Ad1ninistrative Code (20 TIL A&nin. Code 504.830) states a Grievance Officer 
shall review grievances at least weekly, provided that one or 1nore grievances have been 
filed. The illinois Administrative Code also states that the Chief Administrative Officer 
shall advise the offender of the decision in writing within 2 1nonths after receipt of the 
written grievance, where reasonably feasible under the circrunstances. TI1e Deparhnent's 
Ad1ninistrative Directive (A.D.) 04.01.114 states that the Depart1nent should legibly 
co1nplete the "Grievance Officer's Report'' section of the Response to Offender's Grievance, 
Fonn DOC 0047, docmnenting any attempts to resolve the grievance and relevant 
infonnation discovered during the review process. 

Auditors noted 5 of27 (19%) Correctional Centers (East Moline, Hill, Jacksonville, 
Lincoln, and Dwight) could not provide documentation of compliance with imnate 
grievance procedures in relation to 730 ILCS 5/3-8-8. Specifically, the auditors noted: 

• During the audit period, two Correctional Centers (East Moline and Lincoln) did not 
appear to maintain a record of grievances for at least a year after the settlement or 
decision for grievances had been reached. 

• One of 5 (20%) irunate files tested at Hill did not contain docu1nentation verifying the 
in1nate was notified of grievance ·procedures. 

• Five of 5 (1 00%) irunate files tested at Dwight were not reviewed in a ti1nely 1nanner 
by the Center's Grievance Officer or by the Center's Chief Ad1ninistrative Officer. 
The offender grievances were reviewed fro1n 45 to 67 days late by the Grievance 
Officer. The Chief Ad1ninistrative Officer who was supposed to review the 
grievances within two 1nonths of receipt signed the grievances fro1n 3 to 24 days late. 

• One of 5 (20%) irunate files tested at Jacksonville did not contain Fonn DOC 0047. 
Tllis fonn is used to docu1nent any atte1npts to resolve grievances and relevant 
infonnation discovered during the grievance process. 

Depmi1nent 1nanagement stated exceptions were the result ofhu1nan errors, lack of 
resources, inadequate co1mnunication and oversight within the Depart1nent. 
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Maintaining docu1nentation of the notification of the imnate grievance procedures and 
preserving the record of such grievances and resolutions relating to them provides the 
Department with evidence of its actions should it be questioned in the future by other 
parties. Failure to maintain docmnentation of the notification provided and of grievances 
filed, including all decisions and resolutions thereto, results in statutory nonco1npliance. 
(Finding Code No. 12-35) 

RECOlV[]VIENDATION: 

We reco1nmend the Departlnent maintain adequate records indicating each imnate 
understands the grievance procedures as well as adequate grievance records in 
co1npliance with 730 ILC 5/3-8-8. 

DEPART~'lENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1runendation accepted. The Depmiment will maintain adequate grievance records as 
well as appropriate docu1nentation indicating each imnate understands the Departlnent' s 
grievance procedures as required. 
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12-36 FINDING: (Weaknesses over issuance ofte1nporary identification cards) 

The Departlnent of Co1Tections (Deparhnent) did not con1ply with require1nents for 
issuing te1nporary identification cards. 

The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-14-l(e)) (Code) requires the Deparbnent 
to proVide offenders that have 1net established criteria with a temporary identification 
card. In addition, the Code requires the Departlnent to collect a $1 fee from cmnmitted 
persons for the te1nporary identification card and infonn the offender that he or she 1nay 
present the identification card to the Office of the Secretary of State upon application for 
·a standard Illinois Identification Card. The Departlnent' s Administrative Directive 
(A.D.) 04.50.103 describes the established criteria that must be met, including retention 
of the offender's request and copies of the required docmnentation to be filed in the 
offender's master file, before the issuance of the te1nporary identification card. 

Auditors noted the following weaknesses in the Departlnent' s co1npliance with this 
statute: 

• Thirteen of27 (48%) Correctional Centers (Dixon, East Moline, Hill, Pinckneyville, 
Lincoln, Vandalia, Big Muddy River, Dwight, Sheridan, Southwesten1 illinois, Vienna, 
Western illinois, and Centralia) provided identification cards to 54 of 65 (83%) liunates 
tested who were on parole, 1nandatory supervised release, final discharge, or pardon 
that did not meet the criteria established by the Depart1nent for receipt of an 
identification card. 

• Eight of27 (30%) Correctional Centers (Dixon, East Moline, Menard, Lincoln, Tmruns, 
Vandalia, Vienna, and Sheridan) did not collect the $1 fee from 14 of38 (37°/o) inmates 
tested Vtrho where issued temporary identification cards. 

Depart1nent 1nanagement indicated the exceptions were due in part to conflicting 
priorities, e1nployee oversight and understanding of what docu1nents were to be copied 
and kept in the imnate master file. 

Failure to comply with the require1nents for issuing temporary identification cards 
represents noncompliance with the Departlnent' s Administrative Directive m1d State 
Statute. (Finding Code No. 12-36) 

RECOl\1J\1ENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Departlnent develop a 1nechanis1n to ensure identification cards are 
only provided to i1nnates who 1neet the established criteria and provide the $1 for the 
card. 

DEPARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recmnmendation accepted. The Depart1nent will re1nind Depart1nent staff of the 
necessity to copy and file the required documents; m1d to require paYlnent of $1 for the 
card. 
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12-37 FINDING: (Failure to properly provide addiction recovery services) 

The Depart1nent of Corrections (Departlnent) failed to properly p~ovide addiction 
recovery services as required by the Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-6-2(m)). 

Section3-6-2(m) of the Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5) (Code) requires the 
Department to 1nake a room in the institution or facility available for addiction recovery 
services to be provided to committed individuals on a voluntary basis. The services are 
to be provided for one hour once a week at a time detennined by the. chief ad1ninistrative 
officer of the institution or facility if certain conditions are 1net which are outlined within 
the Code. The number of persons attending an addiction recovery 1neeting are not to 
exceed 40 during any session held at the correctional institution or facility. In addition, 
addiction recovery services are to be provided by volunteers of recovery support services 
recognized by the DepartJ.nent of Human Services. 

Auditor testing identified the following deficiencies the addiction recovery services 
provided under the Code: 

• Tmmns did not provide any addiction recovery services during the audit period due to 
a lack of volunteers to administer this progrmn. The addiction recovery services 
provided at Robinson were administered by inmates and supervised by counselors. 

• Dixon, Lincoln, and Vienna Correctional Centers did not maintain docmnentation of 
the attendees for al11neetings. At Grahmn, 2 of 4 (50%) meetings tested, the number 
of attendees recorded per the sign-in sheet differed from the nmnber of attendees as 
reported on the 1nonthly progrmn statistics report. 

• Meetings held at East Moline, Shawnee, Stateville, and Vandalia exceeded the 
statutory li1nit of 40 attendees per meeting to attend addiction recovery meetings. 
The attendees exceeding the statutory lilnit ranged from 1 to 43. 

The State Records Act ( 5 ILCS 160/8) requires the Correctional Center to 1nake and 
preserve records containing adequate and proper documentation of the functions and 
procedures of the Correctional Centers designed to furnish information to protect the legal 
and fmancial rights of the State and of persons directly affected by the agency's activities. 

In response to tlus finding from the previous audit, the Departlnent stated it would ensure 
addiction recovery services are provided at facilities as required. Related to the current audit 
period, the Department stated exceptions were due to a lack of volunteers, employee 
oversight and communication. 

Allowing committed persons to attend addiction recovery services ·will aid in their 
rehabilitation while incarcerated within the Department. Failure to properly provide 
addiction recovery services in accordance with the Code represents statutory 
noncompliance. (Finding Code No. 12-37, 10-31) 
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RECOl\fl\iENDATION: 

We reco1mnend the Department ensure addiction recovery services are provided at all 
Conectional Centers as defined within the Code. 

DEPARTl\iENT RESPONSE: 

Reco1mnendation accepted. The Departlnent will ensure addiction recovery services are 
provided at facilities as required. 
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12-38 FINDING: (Failure to prepare and sub1nit reports as required by State statute) 

The Department of Corrections (Deparb.nent) either did not sub1nit or did not submit 
thnely certain required reports to the Governor, Judiciary and/or the General Assembly. 
Each of these bullets below were also identified as exceptions in the report for the two 
years ended June 30,2010. Auditors identified the follo·wing exceptions during their 
testing: 

• The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-5-3(d)) requires the Department to 
sub1nit to the Governor and the General Asse1nbly a 5-year long-range planning 
document for adult fe1nale offenders under the Depalilnent's supervision. The 
docmnent shall detail how the Departlnent plans to meet the housing, educational/ 
training, Correctional Industries and programming needs of the escalating adult 
female offender population by January 1 every two years after January 1, 1991 to the 
Governor and General Asse1nbly. This report should have been prepared and 
sub1nitted by January 1, 2011. Auditors noted the required report was not sub1nitted 
during the audit period. Public Act 97-0800, effective July 13, 2012 amended the 
Unified Code of Corrections and no longer requires the Department to file this report. 

• The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-6-3a (4)) requires the Depart1nent to 
sub1nit to the Governor and General Assembly a report on the results of evaluations 
on educational, vocational, substance abuse and correctional industry programs under 
which good conduct credit may be increased by September 30th of each year. The 
Early Release Credit Report was not sub1nitted during the audit period. 

• The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/5-8-1.3(1n)) requires the Department to 
provide to the Governor and the General Assembly a report on the pilot residential 
and treatment pro gram for women. The report should include the co1nposition of the 
progrmn by offenders, sentence, age, offense and race before September 30th of each 
year. The Pilot Wo1nen Program Reports were not sub1nitted during the audit period. 
Public Act 97-0800, effective July 13,2012 mnended the Unified Code of Corrections 
and only requires the Depart1nent to file this report if the pilot residential and 
treatment pro gram for women is operational. 

• The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/5-5-4.3) states the Department shall 
publish a report to trial and appellate court judges for their use in ilnposing or 
reviewing sentences. The report is to be published on an annual basis no later than 
April 30th. The Departlnent did not prepare and publish the reports during the audit 
period. Public Act 97-0800, effective July 13, 2012 amended the Unified Code of 
Corrections and repealed .the require1nent for the Department to file this report. 

• The Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5/3-5-3.1) requires the Department to 
sub1nit a report to the General Assembly by January 1st, April 1st, July 1st, and 
October 1st of each year. The Department was unable to provide the date that the 
Quarterly Reports were submitted for the July 1, 2010 and October 1, 2010 reports. 
Auditors noted 5 of 6 (83%) reports were received by the General Asse1nbly after the 
required due date and ranged fro1n 3 to 97 days late. 
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In response to this finding fro1n the previous audit, the Depart1nent stated it would make 
every effort to file the reports/plans timely and as required. Department manage1nent 
indicated the reports above were not completed due to tilning constraints and conflicting 
priorities. 

Failure to tilnely prepare and sub1nit required reports/plans to the Governor, Judiciary 
and General Asse1nbly prevents the appropriate oversight authority fro1n receiving 
relevant feedback and monitoring on prograrns and can have a11 effect on future decisions 
since infonnation was not provided. In addition, by not preparing and submitting the 
required reports/plans the Depart1nent is not in co1npliance with State statutes. (Finding 
Code No. 12-38, 10-25, 08-41, 06-11, 04-11) 

RECOlVIl\1ENDATION: 

We recormnend the Department develop a mechanis1n to ensure required reports/plans 
are prepared on a tilnely basis and submit them to the required parties in accordance vv-ith 
State statute. 

DEPARTl\1ENT RESPONSE: 

Recormnendation accepted. The Department when applicable will1nake every effort to 
file the reports/plans ti1nely and as required. 
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12-39 FINDING: (Nonco1npliance with applicable portions of the Arsonist Registration Act) 

The Departlnent of Corrections (Depa.rhnent) had not linplemented a process to inform and 
document convicted arsonists of their duty to register upon their discharge, parole or release 
in accordance with the Arsonist Registration Act. 

The Arsonist Registration Act (730 ILCS 148) (Act), effective January 1, 2005, requires 
Depart1nent facilities to perfon11 nu1nerous functions prior to the discharge, release or 
parole of individuals convicted of arson. Specifically, the facility shall notify the 
individual of their duty to register in person and if establishi11g a residence out of state 
their duty to register in the new state. The facility shall require the individual to read and 
sign a fonn indicating they understand their duty to register. The facility shall give one 
copy of the fonn to the person and shall send one copy to each of the. law enforce1nent 
agencies having jurisdiction where the person expects to reside, work, and attend school 
upon his or her discharge. 

This Act applies only to persons who co1nmit arson on or after the effective date of the 
Act, which was January 1, 2005, and does not apply to any person who co1mnitted arson 
before that date. In addition, until the Illinois State Police (ISP) established the I-CLEAR 
database to 1naintain this information on a Statewide basis, this Act only applied to 
arsonists who reside, are e1nployed, or attend school within the City of Chicago. 

In response to this finding from the prior audit, the Department stated it would make 
every effort to ensure compliance with the Depart1nent' s responsibilities regarding the 
Arsonist Registration Act. During the current audit period, Departlnent personnel 
informed auditors it had not established policies and procedures to infonn released and/or 
discharged offenders of their arson registration obligation as it was the Department's 
belief I-CLEAR was not fully functional or accessible throughout the State. 

Per inquiry of the Illinois State Police as of the end of the engage1nent testing, I-CLEAR 
is being deployed across the State; however, the Illinois State Police does not consider I­
CLEAR to be established I ilnple1nented throughout the entire State. However, as set 
forth in the Act, the Depart1nent was still required to perform certain functions prior to 
the discharge, release or parole of individuals convicted of arson who will reside, be 
e1nployed, or attend school within the City of Chicago. 

Depart1nent 1nanage1nent stated the exception noted was due to ISP 's I -CLEAR syste1n 
not being i1nplemented across the State and ISP had not supplied an ISP fonn nor 
direction on the i1nplementation process. 

Noncompliance with the Act is a violation of a statutory 1nandate. By not infonning the 
individual of their duty to register, the appropriate authorities 1nay not be aware that a 
person convicted of that type of offense is residing in that particular area. (Finding Code 
No. 12-39, 10-32,08-45, 06-16) 
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RECOl\11\fENDATION: 

We recmmnend the Department hnplement a process to infonn and document the 
applicable individuals being discharged, paroled or released that have been convicted of 
arson of their duty to register in accordance with the Arsonist Registration Act. 

DEPARTl\fENT RESPONSE: 

Recmmnendation accepted. The Departlnent wil11nake every effort to ensure co1npliance 
with the Department's responsibilities regarding the Arsonist Registration Act. 
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A. 

B. 

c. 

Prior Finding 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED 

(hnproper calculation and reporting of liabilities at year end) 

The prior audit noted the Departnient i1nproperly calculated its liabilities at June 30, 2009 
and 2010 ·which led to errors in its financial repo1iing. 

During the current audit, auditors noted the Departlnent correctly calculated its liabilities 
in all1naterial respects and in accordance with tl1e guidance provided by the illinois 
Office of the Co1nptroller. Auditors did not note any duplication or exclusion of 
liabilities during their testing for the year ended June 30, 2012. As a result, the prior 
finding is not repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-02, 08-03, 06-09) 

Prior Finding (Weaknesses in the financial accounting for, and reporting of, capital 
assets) 

The prior audit noted the Department did not accurately record all capital asset 
infonnation in its financial records which resulted in inaccurate information being 
sub1nitted to the Illinois Office of the Co1nptroller and presented in the Depart1nent 
financial statements. 

During the current audit, auditors noted the Department had taken corrective action 
related to providing sufficient support for capital asset information provided to the 
Illinois Office of the Co1nptroller. The re1naining issue related to the Departlnent's 
Auto1nated Property Control Syste1n had not been addressed and is being reported in 
current finding 12-2 T¥eala1esses in the financial accounting for, and inaccurate and 
inadequate recordkeeping of property/fixed assets. As a result, the prior finding is not 
repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-03, 08-06) 

Prior Finding (Failure to fonnally document support for GAAP reporting and 
1naintain and monitor awards and grants) 

The prior audit noted the Depamnent had not fonnally organized and documented the 
financial infonnation utilized in the preparation of its financial staten1ents and GAAP 
reporting to the Illinois Office of the Co1nptroller. Additionally, the Departlnent was not 
able to provide docu1nentation of expenditures 1nade under awards and grants. 

During the current audit, auditors noted the Department had 1naintained and was able to 
provide in an organized manner documentation utilized in the preparation of its financial 
state1nents and GAAP reporting, including expenditures made under awards and grants. 
Support for docu1nentation related to these ite1ns was readily supplied. As a result of 
these i1nprovements, the prior finding is not repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-05) 
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D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

Prior Finding (Inadequate controls over travel) 

The prior audit noted the Department's procedures over the sub1nission, review and 
approval of travel expenditures was not sufficient to ensure travel costs are in co1npliance 
with Travel Regulations and Depart1nent Ad1ninistrative Directives. 

During the current audit, auditors noted the Departlnent 1nade in1provements relating to 
controls over travel expenditures. Although there were still1ninor exceptions noted and 
reported in the Departlnent' s Report of Ilmnaterial Findings, this finding is not repeated. 
(Finding Code No. 1 0-20) 

Prior Finding (Payment of another State agency's pennanent i1nprove1nents and 
failure to allocate joint postage expenses) 

The prior audit noted the Department inappropriately paid for pennanent ilnprove1nents 
and failed to allocate postage expenditures between itself and the Departlnent of Juvenile 
Justice. 

Duling the current audit, auditors noted the Depart1nent 1nade linprove1nents relating to 
controls over the payment of vouchers and the allocation of postage. Although there 
were still n1inor exceptions noted and reported in the Department's Report of Immaterial 
Findings, this finding is not repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-23) 

Prior Finding (Failure to report required bilingual employee needs information) 

The prior audit noted the Department failed to sub1nit the Bilingual Needs and Pay 
Survey for fiscal year 2008 to the Depart1nent of Central Management Services (DCMS) 
which was necessary for DCMS to accurately prepare the State's 2009 Hispanic 
E1nployment Plan. 

During the current audit, auditors noted the Bilingual Needs and Pay Survey for fiscal 
years 2010 and 2011 were filed in a timely 1nanner. As a result, the finding is not 
repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-26, 08-40) 

Prior Finding (Nonco1npliant General Education Develop1nent (GED) program 
ad1ninistration and reporting) 

The prior audit noted the Depart1nent failed to adequately ad1ninister the General 
Education Develop1nent (GED) progrmn at all of the Correctional Centers and produce 
accurate internal reporting of its GED pro grmn results. 

During the current audit, auditors noted that the four year period of initiative by the 
Depart1nent had expired. As a result, the finding is not repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-
28) 
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H. 

I. 

Prior Finding (Noncompliance with the Sex Offender Registration Act) 

The prior audit noted the Depart1nent failed to co1nply with the discharge require1nents of 
the Sex Offender Registration Act (730 ILCS 150/4). 

During the current engage1nent, auditors noted the Depart1nent 1nade ilnprovements 
relating to the discharge require1nents under the Sex Offender Registration Act. 
Although there \Vere stil11ninor exceptions noted and reported in the Depart1nent' s 
Report oflnunate1ial Findings, this finding is not repeated. (Finding Code No. 10-29) 

Prior Finding (Correctional Center exceptions) 

The prior audit noted a number of exceptions during testing at the Departlnent of 
Co1Tections' Correctional Centers. 

During the current engage1nent, auditors noted the Departlnent 1nade improvements 
relating to controls at Correctional Centers. Although there were stil11ninor exceptions 
noted and reported in the Departrnent' s Report of ilmnaterial Findings, this finding is not 
repeated. (Finding Code No. 1 0-34) 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

STATUS OF MANAGEMENT AUDIT 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Progrmn Audit of Funding Provided by or Through the State of illinois to the Chicago Project for 
Violence Prevention for the CeaseFire Program 

In August 2007, the Office of the Auditor General (OAG) released its report of the Program 
Audit of Funding Provided by or Through the State of illinois to the Chicago Project for 
Violence Prevention for the CeaseFire Progrmn. The audit included three reco1nmendations 
(recommendations #2, #7, #9) for improvement which were specific to the Departn1ent of 
Corrections (Department). We followed up on the recoffilnendations during the two years ended 
June 30, 2012. 

We noted the Department has made progress in i1nple1nenting the reco1mnendations as follows: 

• The Department of Corrections should take the necessary steps to ensure that 
appropriate documentation is sub1nitted, based on the funding agreement with the 
University of Illinois at Chicago, before providingfundingfor CeaseFire. Further, the 
Department of Corrections should improve its monitoring of the funding provided for the 
CeaseFire program-. Chicago Project officials should only distribute funding to 
conununities nam,ed in the funding agreement and should keep adequate docwnentation 
to show that funds were distributed to conununities in the amounts contractually 
provided. Finally, the Department of Corrections should determine whether an 
adm-inistrative fee should be charged and, if determined to be appropriate, include that 
provision in the funding agreement. (Reconunendation 2) 

This reco1nmendation is partially hnplemented. According to the tenns of the 2011 grant 
agreement, the first payment is not contingent upon anything other than execution of the 
agreement. The first pay1nent for fiscal year 2011 was 1nade in Septe1nber 2010, after the 
execution of the agree1nent. 

The Department withheld the second payrnent until the University of Illinois-Chicago 
(UIC) submitted adequate docu1nentation of its expenditures. This payrnent was 1nade on 
May 6, 2011. The Department also withheld the third payment until UIC submitted 
adequate docmnentation of it expenditures. The third payrnent was made on September 
27, 2011. 

The fiscal year 2011 agree1nent was silent on an ad1ninistrative fee, but the budget 
allowed for specific personnel and non-personnel costs such as supplies, telephones, 
travel, etc. 

According to the tenns of the 2012 grant agree1nent, the first payment is not contingent 
upon anything other than execution of the agreement and is made "as soon as practical". 
The first payrnent for fiscal year 2012 was 1nade in Nove1nber 2011 after the execution of 
the agreement. 
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The Department withheld the second payment until UIC sub1nitted adequate 
documentation of its expenditUres. This paYJ.nent was made on July 18,2012. 

The weaknesses noted in Finding 12-16 related to the 2 grants totaling $7,172,018 were 
paid to UIC for the CeaseFire program. As of the end of the auditor's testing, UIC owed 
the Department $531,339 in unexpended grant funds ($159,454 from fiscal year 2011 and 
$371,885 fro1n fiscal year 2012). The Department has not yet started the recovery 
efforts. 

• The Departnzent of Corrections, as the largest funding agency for the State for CeaseFire 
activity, should work with the Chicago Project to define reporting m,easures that 
accurately depict what the effect CeaseFire activity has on reducing shootings­
including how CeaseFire activity, and not other programs operating in the sa1ne 
conununities, has influenced the reduction. Finally, the l)epartrnent should ensure that 
the Chicago Pro} ect also documents the selection criteria utilized when deciding how to 
spend State funding. (Reconunendation 7) 

This recommendation has been partially imple1nented. The fiscal year 2011 and 2012 
agree1nents identified the following statistics to be provided by UIC to the Departlnent: 

o Statistics related to changes in shootings and killings 
o Statistics related to clients and level of effort of the co1nmunity partners 
o Statistics related to the building of staff and development 
o Statistics that 1nay depict the effect Operation CeaseFire activity has on reducing 

shootings and killings. 

Sub criteria with these statistics appear to meet the require1nents of the recormnendation. 
The agreements also specified the selection of criteria to be utilized by UIC. 

Both the 2011 and 2012 agree1nents had appropriate deliverable wording in them. For the 
2011 agree1nent, UIC submitted a final report which did not include all of the criteria 
noted above. The UIC sub1nitted a final report in 2012 and it did include all of the 
required criteria noted in the agreement. 

• The DepartJnent of Corrections, as the largest funding agency for the State for CeaseFire 
activity, should require the Chicago Project to provide docwnentation to show how all its 
funding, jr01n both State and non-State funds, is to be utilized. Additionally, the 
Departlnent should detennine whether any discretionary uses of State funds are to be 
allowed, and, if so, prescribe that in the written funding agree1nent with UIC for 
CeaseFire. (Reconunendation 9) 

This recommendation is i1nplemented. Auditors obtained a copy of fiscal year 2009 and 
2010 agreement between the Depart1nent and UIC. Included in each agreement was a 
budget created by UIC. The budget included documentation showing how all of its 
funding will be used. 
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Based upon the procedures perfonned during our cotnpliance exrunination of the Departlnent, 
it appears that the Department has successfully impletnented one of the recotnmendations 
and partially implemented the retnaining two reco1nmendations. The Departlnent's 
cotnpliance with these requiretnents will be reviewed again during the next examination. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT 

SUMMARY 

The audit of the accmnpanying financial statetnents of the State of illinois, Department of 
Corrections (Department) was performed by Sikich LLP as special assistants for the Auditor 
General. 

Based on their audit, the auditors expressed a qualified opinion on the Departlnent's basic 
financial state1nents. The qualified opinion was based on other auditors' report on the financial 
statements of the working Capital Revolving Fund (Correctional Industries). The other auditors' 
qualified the Correctional Industries opinion because they were unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence supporting the accounts receivable balance at June 30, 2012. In 
addition, the other auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence associated 
with revenues fro1n the accounts receivable balances. 
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3201 W. White Oaks Dr., Suite I 02 

Springfieid, Illinois 62704 

www.sikich.com 

Certified Public Accountants & Advisors 
Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable William G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of Illinois 

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections (the Department), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Department's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Department's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Working Capital 
Revolving Fund (Conectional Industries), which represents 100.0 percent of the assets and 
revenues of the Proprietary Fund and 2.3 percent of the net assets of the governmental activities. 
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been 
furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for Correctional 
Industries, are based on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements of the Department are intended to present the 
financial position and changes in financial position of only that portion of the governmental 
activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State that is 
attributable to the transactions of the Department. They do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its 
financial position for the year then ended-in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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The opinion of the other auditors on the financial statements of the Working Capital Revolving 
Fund (Correctional Industries) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 was qualified because 
they were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the accounts 
receivable balance stated at $10,043 (in thousands) and revenues of $50,757 (in thousands) at 
June 30, 2012; nor were they able to satisfy themselves as to the accuracy of the balances by 
other auditing procedures. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, except for the effects of such 
adjustlnents as described in the preceding paragraph, if any, as might have been detennined to be 
necessary had the other auditors been able to examine evidence regarding the accuracy of the 
Working Capital Revolving Fund accounts receivable and revenues, the fmancial state1nents of 
the govermnental activities and aggregate remaining fund infonnation present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and aggregate 
re1naining fund infonnation of the Department as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in 
financial position thereof for the year then ended in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of Alnerica. 

In addition, in our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to previously 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the major fund of the 
Departlnent, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the 
year then ended in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of Alnerica. 

As described in Note 12. to the financial state1nents, the Department restated its net assets and 
capital assets, net of depreciation, as of June 30, 2011 to reflect the transfer of the Thomson 
Correctional Center, including the land, buildings, and equipment, on August 1, 2010. The 
restatement totaled $98,347 (in thousands). Our opinion is not modified with respect to that 
1natter. 

In accordance with Goverrunent Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
March 20, 2013 on our consideration of the Department's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its co1npliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agree1nents and other 1natters. The purpose of that report is to desc1ibe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Manage1nent has o1nitted 1nanage1nent's discussion and analysis and budgetary co1nparison 
information for any of its funds that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require to be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such 1nissing 
infonnation~ although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govermnental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial state1nents in an appropriate operational, econmnic, or historical context. 
Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this 1nissing information. 
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fanning an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the DepartJ.nent's basic financial statements. The combining nomnajor and 
Agency fund financial statements and the accompanying supple1nentary infonnation for the year 
ended June 30,2012, in the State Compliance Schedules 1 and 3 through 11 is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of 1nanagement and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. The 
combining nomnajor and Agency fund financial statements and the accompanying supple1nentary 
infonnation for the year ended June 30,2012, in the State Co1npliance Schedules 1 and 3 through 
11 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
state1nents and certain additional procedures, including c01nparing and reconciling such infonnation 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements the1nselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of Alnerica. In our opinion, except for the effects of such 
adjustments referred to above, if any, as 1night have been detennined to be necessary had ·we been 
able to exarnine evidence regarding the accuracy of the Working Capital Revolving Fund accounts 
receivable as noted in Schedule 11, the combining nomnajor and Agency fund financial statements 
and the accompanying supplementary infonnation for the year ended June 30,2012, in the State 
C01npliance Schedules 1 and 3 through 10 is fairly stated in all1naterial respects in relation to the 
fund financial state1nents taken as a whole. 

We have also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of Alnerica, the Department's basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2010 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated June 23,2011, which 
contained an unqualified opinion on the respective basic financial state1nents of the Department. 
The acco1npanying supplementary information for the year ended June 30,2010 in the State 
Compliance Schedules 3, 4, 6, and 8 is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2010 
financial state1nents. The acco1npanying supple1nentary information for the year ended June 30, 
2010 in the State Compliance Schedules 3, 4, 6, and 8 has been subjected to the auditing· 
procedures applied in the audit of the 2010 financial statements and ce1iain additional 
procedures, including co1nparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare those statements or to those financial state1nents 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary 
infonnation for the year ended June 30, 2010 in the State Co1npliance Schedules 3, 4, 6, and 8 is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial state1nents as a whole fro1n which 
it has been derived. 

The acco1npanying supple1nentary infonnation for the year ended June 30, 2011 in the State 
Compliance Schedules 2 through 11 and the Analysis of Operations Section is presented for the 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial state1nents. Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
state1nents, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General 
Asse1nbly, the Legislative Audit Co1mnission, the Governor, the Comptroller, and Department 
management, as is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Springfield, Illinois 
March 20, 2013, except for Note 13 and State Compliance 

Schedules 1 and 3 through 11 for which the date is 
June 24, 2013 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Unexpended appropriations 
Cash equity with State Treasurer 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other receivables, net 
Due from other State funds 
Due from Local government 
Due from Federal government 
Due from State of-Illinois component units 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other State funds 
Due to Department fiduciary funds 
Due to Local government 
Due to Federal government 
Due to State of Illinois component units 
Unearned revenue 
Long term obligations: 

Due within one year 
Due subsequent to one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

151,590 
4,495 

11 '196 
1,347 
3,094 

52 
34 

176 
21,137 

43 
59,183 

773,834 

1,026,181 

135,799 
7,605 
2,979 
4,206 
3,172 
1,745 

346 

5,253 
70,833 

231,938 

832,735 
(38,492) 
794,243 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

Functions/Programs 
Governmental activities 

Public protection and justice 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

General revenues and transfers 
Appropriations from State Resources 
Lapsed appropriations 
Receipts collected and transmitted to State Treasury 
Interest and investment income 
Other revenues 
Other expenses 
Transfers-out 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets 
Net assets, July 1, 2011 as restated 
Net assets, June 30, 2012 

$ 

$ 

Expenses 

1,295,981 
43 

1,296,024 

$ 

$ 

Program Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

67,088 

67,088 

$ 

$ 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

8,202 

8,202 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue 

$ {1,220,691) 
{43~ 

(1,220,734) 

1,255,425 
{30,502) 
{28,452) 

22 
17,074 

{8) 
{487} 

1,213,072 

(7,662) 
801,905 

$ 794,243 



State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Balance Sheet -
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

Total 
General Nonmajor Governmental 

Fund funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Unexpe.nded appropriations $ 145,446 $ 6,144 $ 151,590 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 '196 11 '196 
Other receivables, net 553 553 
Due from other Department funds 8,345 8,345 
Due from other State funds 554 554 
Due from Federal government 34 34 
Due from State of Illinois component units 29 29 
Due from Local government 1 1 
Inventories 11,843 2,497 14,340 

Total assets $ 157,289 $ 29,353 $ 186,642 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 127,542 $ 5,761 $ 133,303 
Due to other Department funds 6,800 8,056 14,856 
Due to other State funds 5,992 107 6,099 
Due to Department fiduciary funds 2,698 33 2,731 
DueloFE;!deral government 3,133 2 3,135 
Due to Local government 3,205 1,000 4,205 
Due to State o(lllinois component units 1 J 101 643 1,744 
Unavailable revenue 
Unearned revenue 346 346 

Total liabilities 150,471 15,948 166,419 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 
Nonspendable for inventories 11,843 2,497 14,340 
Restricted 4 4 
Unrestricted: 

Committed 13,401 13,401 
Unassigned {5,025} ~2,497~ {7,522~ 

Total fund balances (deficits) 6,818 13,405 20,223 

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) $ 157,289 $ 29,353 $ 186,642 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Total fund balances-governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are deferred in the funds. 

Internal service funds are used to charge costs of certain 
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the 
internal service funds are reported as governmental activities 
in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Net Assets do not 
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are 
not reported as liabilities in governmental funds. These 
activities consist of: 

Capital lease obligations 
Compensated absences 

Net assets of governmental activities 

$ (232) 
(74,641) 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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20,223 

830,829 

18,064 

(74,873) 

794,243 



State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances -Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

REVENUES 
Federal government 
Interest and other investment income 
Other 
Other charges for services 
Other operating grants 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public protection and justice 
Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest 
Capital outlays 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER SOURCES (USES) ·oF 
FINANCIAL .RESOURCES 

Appropriations from State resources 
Lapsed appropriations 
Receipts collected and transmitted to State Treasury 
Transfers-in 
Transfers-out 
Proceeds from capital lease financing 

Net other sources {uses) of 
financial resources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 
Increase for changes in inventories 

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2012 

General Fund 

$ 

3 
57 

60 

1,200,810 
191 
43 

2,236 
1,203,280 

~1 ,203,220} 

1,222,425 
(19,847) 

(130) 

336 

1,202,784 

(436) 

5,779 
1,475 

$ 6,818 

Non major 
funds 

$ 8,260 
22 

16,467 
50,042 

4 
74,795 

69,133 

99 
69,232 

5,563 

33,000 
(1 0,655) 
(28,322) 

5,526 
(6,013) 

(6,464) 

(901) 

13,990 
316 

$ 13,405 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 8,260 
22 

16,470 
50,099 

4 
74,855 

1,269,943 
191 
43 

2,335 
1,272,512 

~1 '197 ,657} 

1,255,425 
(30,502) 
(28,452) 

5,526 
(6,013) 

336 

1,196,320 

(1 ,337} 

19,769 
1,791 

$ 20,223 



State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues) Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30 1 2012 

Net change in fund balances 
Change in inventories 

(Expressed in Thousands) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report 
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. This is the 
amount by which depreciation in the current period exceeded capital outlays. 

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Some capital additions were financed through other financing arrangements. In governmental 
funds these other financing arrangements are considered a source of financing, but in the 
Statement of Net Assets, the lease obligation is reported as a liability. 

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. 
The net revenue of the internal service funds is reported as governmental activities in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Proceeds from sales of capital assets are reported in the governmental funds. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the book value of capital assets which are sold or scrapped 
are also reported. This is the book value of capital assets which were sold or scrapped. 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
Below are such activities. 

Decrease in compensated absences obligation 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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(1 ,337) 
1,791 

454 

(21 ,062) 

191 

(336) 

1,487 

(62) 

11,666 

(7,662) 



State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Net Assets -
Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash equity with State Treasurer 
Other Receivables, net 
Due from other Department funds 
Due from other State funds 
Due from Local government 
Due from State of Illinois component units 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Other assets 

Total current assets 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other State funds 
Due to Department fiduciary funds 
Due to Local government 
Due to Federal government 
Due to State of Illinois component units 
Current portion of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Governmental 
Activities - Internal 

Service Fund 
Working Capital 
Revolving Fund 

$ 

$ 

4,495 
794 

6,511 
2,540 

51 
147 

6,797 
43 

21,378 

2,188 
23,566 

2,496 
1,506 

248 
1 

37 
1 

299 
4,588 

914 
5,502 

2,138 
15,926 
18,064 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of Illinois 
Deparlment of Corrections 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for sales and services 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Other revenues 
Interest expense 

Net income/(loss) 

Net assets, July 1, 2011 

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2012 

Governmental 
Activities - Internal 

Service Fund 
Working Capital 
Revolving Fund 

$ 

$ 

50,757 
50,757 

26,460 
. 22,783 

623 
49,866 

891 

604 
(8) 

1,487 

16,577 

18,064 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Cash Flows -
Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from sales and services to third parties 
Cash received from sales and services to other State funds 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services 
Cash receipts from other operating activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 
Proceeds from the sale of equipment 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash equity with State Treasurer, July 1, 2011 

CASH EQUITY WITH STATE TREASURER, JUNE 30,2012 

Reconciliation of operating income to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 

OPERATING INCOME 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Cash receipts from other nonoperating income 
Changes in assets· and liabilities: 

Decrease in other receivables 
Increase 'in due from local governments 
Decrease in due from other funds 
Increase in due from State of Illinois component units 
Decrease in inventory 
Increase in prepaid expenses 
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Increase in intergovernmental payables 
Increase in due to other funds 
Decrease in due to State of Illinois component units 
Decrease in other liabilities 

Total adjustments 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 

Governmental 
Activities -

Internal Service 
Fund 

Working Capital 
Revolving Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,519 
57,682 
(47,070) 
(10,105) 

598 
2,624 

(918) 
(7) 
(8) 
7 

(926) 

1,698 

2,797 

4,495 

891 

623 
598 

157 
(4) 

8,190 
(125) 
450 
(33) 

(8,000) 
12 

224 
(2) 

(357) 
1,733 
2,624 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other Department funds 
Other receivables 

T ota I assets 

LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Agency Fund 
DOC 

Resident's 
Trust 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

4,484 
2,979 

6 
7,469 

7,469 
7,469 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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(1) Organization 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

The Department of Corrections (the Department) is a part of the executive branch of government of 
the State of Illinois (State) and operates under the authority of, and review by, the Illinois General 
Assembly. The Department operates under a budget approved by the General Assembly in which 
resources primarily from the General Fund, the Department of Corrections Reimbursement Fund and 
the Working Capital Revolving Fund are appropriated for the use of the Department. Activities of the 
Department are subject to the authority of the Office of the Governor, the State's chief executive 
officer, and other departments of the executive and legislative branches of government (such as the 
Department of Central Management Services, the Governor's Office of Management and Budget, the 
State Treasurer's ·Office, and the State Comptroller's Office) as defined by the Illinois General 
Assembly. All funds appropriated to the Department and all other cash received are under the custody 
and control of the State Treasurer, with the exception of the DOC Commissary Funds Fund, DOC 
Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund, Moms and Babies Fund and DOC _Resident's Trust Fund, 
which are locally held funds, and various petty cash funds, which are under the direct control of the 
Department. 

The Department was created by the 76th General Assembly and became operational on January 1, 
1970. The Department has the authority to carry out certain duties and to execute certain 
responsibilities within the following areas: · -

• The care, custody, treatment and rehabilitation of persons committed by the courts of the State 
of Illinois; 

• The maintenance and administration of all State correctional institutions and facilities under its 
control; 

• The establishment of new institutions and facilities; 

• The development of a system of supervision and guidance of committed persons in the 
community; 

• The development of standards and programs for better correctional services in the State. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Department have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States· of America (GAAP), as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). To facilitate the understanding of data included 
in the financial statements, smmnarized below are significant accounting policies. 

(a) Financial Reporting Entity 

As defined by GAAP, the financial reporting entity consists of a primary government, as well as 
its component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as: 

1) Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and either (a) the 
primary government's ability to impose its will, or (b) the possibility that the component 
unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary 
government; or 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

2) Fiscal dependency on the primary government. 

Based upon the required criteria, the DepaJ.iment has no component units and is not a component 
unit of any other entity. However, because the DepaJ.iment is not legally separate from the State 
of Illinois, the financial statements of the Department are included in the financial statements of 
the State of Illinois. The State of Illinois' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report may be 
obtained by writing to the State Comptroller's Office, Financial Reporting Department, 325 West 
Adams Street, Springfield, Illinois, 62704-1871. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the State of Illinois, Department of Corrections, are intended to 
present the financial position, changes in financial position, and cash flows of only that portion of 
the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the State of Illinois that is attributable to the transactions of the Department. They do not purpmi 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 2012 and 
the changes in financial position for the year then ended, and the cash flows in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Government-wide Statements. The govermnent-wide statement of net assets and statement of 
activities report the overall financial activity of the Department, excluding fiduciary activities. 
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of .. iriternal activities of the 
Department. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other none:X:change transactions. 

The statement of net assets presents the assets and liabilities of the Department's govermnental 
activities with the difference being reported as net assets .. The assets and liabilities are presented 
in order of their relative liquidity by class of asset or liability with liabilities whose average 
maturities are greater than one year reported in two components - the amount due within one year 
and the aniount due in more than one year. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for the public protection and justice function of the Department's govermnental activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues 
include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the pro grains and (b) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
paiiicular prograJ.n. Revenues that are not classified as prograJ.n revenues, including all taxes, are 
presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide infonnation about the 
Department's funds, including the Department's fiduciary fund. Separate statements for each 
fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on the major govermnental fund displayed in a separate column. All 
remaining governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated and repmied as nonmaj or funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in 
which each paiiy receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as 
subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

The Department administers the following major govermnental fund (or portions thereof in the 
case of shared funds- see note 2(d)). 

General - This is the State's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund. The services which 
are administered by the Department and accounted for in the General Fund include public 
protection and justice. · 

Additionally, the Department administers the following fund types: 

Governmental Fund Types: 

Special Revenue - These funds are used to account for and repmi the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other 
than debt service or capital assets. The Department does not have any major special revenue 
funds to disclose. 

Proprietary Fund Types: 

Internal Service - This fund accounts for revenues and expenses derived from goods or 
services produced by manufacturing, food, and service programs charged to State agencies 
and other entities. 

Fiduciary Fund Types: 

Agency - This fund accounts for monies deposited by and on behalf of individual residents 
for the personal use of the individual resident while they are in the care and custody of the 
Department. 

(c) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of 
when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Department 
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include 
intergovernmental grants. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and similar items are recognized in 
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 'when they are collected 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For 
this purpose, the State considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on formal debt issues, 
claims and judgments, and compensated absences are recorded only when payment -is due. 
Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of 
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing 
sources. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to accrual include interest and other charges for 
services. All other revenue sources are considered to be measurable and available only when 
cash is received. · 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to Decernber 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. The State also has the option of following subsequent private­
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The State has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance as it relates to 
the Depmiment' s operations. 

(d) Shared Fund Presentation 

The financial statement presentation for the General Fund and the Department of Corrections 
Reimbursement Fund represents only the portion of shared funds that can be directly attributed to 
the operations of the Depa1iment. Finm1cial statements for total fund operations of the shared 
State funds are presented in the State of Illinois' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

In presenting these financial statements, ce1iain unique accounts are used for the presentation of 
shared funds. The following accounts are used in these financial statements to present the 
Department's portion of shared funds: 

Unexpended Appropriations 

This "asset" account represents lapse period warrants issued between July and August 
annually in accordance with the Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS) records 
plus any liabilities relating to obligations re-appropriated to the subsequent fiscal year. 

Appropriations from State Resources 

This "other financing source" account represents the final legally adopted appropriation 
according to SAMS records: 

Lapsed Appropriations 

Lapsed appropriations are the legally adopted appropriations less net warrants issued for the 
14 month period from July to August of the following year and re-appropriations to 
subsequent years according to SAMS records. For State fiscal year 2012, the Illinois General 
Assembly extended the lapse period from August 31 to December 31, 2012, to allow for the 
liquidation of all expenditure transactions for the year. 

Receipts Collected and Transmitted to State Treasury 

This "other financing use" account represents all cash receipts received during the fiscal year 
from SAMS records. 
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(e) Eliminations 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Eliminations have been made in the government-wide statement of net assets to minimize the 
"grossing-up" effect on assets and liabilities within the Depmiment. As a result, amounts 
repmied in the funds as departmental interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated in 
the govermnent-wide statement of net assets. Amounts reporfed in the funds as receivable from 
or payable to fiduciary funds have been included in the statement of net assets as receivable from 
and payable to external parties, rather than as internal balances. Eliminations have also been 
made in the statement of activities to remove the "doubling-up" effect of departmental internal 
service fund activity. 

(/) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash 
with maturities of less than 90 days at the time of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents also 
include cash on hand and cash in banks for locally held funds. 

(g) Inventories 

Inventories, consisting primarily of raw materials, work in process, finished goods, and operating 
supplies are valued at the lower of cost or market, principally on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
method; At year-end, physical counts are taken of significant inventories, consisting primarily of 
food and supplies maintained -at- the Correctional Centers. For governmental funds, the 
Department recognizes the costs of material inventories as expenditures when purchased. For 
proprietary funds, inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed or sold rather than 
when purchased. 

(h) Inteifund Transactions 

The Department has the following types of interfund transactions between Department funds and 
funds of other State agencies: 

Services provided and used-sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a· 
price approximating their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are 
reported as revenues in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. At year 
end, unpaid amounts are reported as interfund receivables and payables in the governmental 
funds balance sheet, government-wide statement of net assets, or fund statements of net 
assets. 

Reimbursements-repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or 
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are reported as 
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed 
fund. 

Transfers-flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in 
return and without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported 
as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the 
funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
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June 30, 2012 

(i) Capital and Intangible Assets 

Capital and intangible assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and purchased computer 
software are repmied at cost or estimated historical cost based on appraisals. Contributed assets 
are reported at estimated fair value at the time received. Capital and intangible assets are 
depreciated and amortized using the straight-line method. 

Capitalization thresholds and the estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Estimated 
Capital and Intangible Capitalization Useful Life 

Asset Cate_gory Threshold (in Years) 

Land $100,000 N/A 
Land Improvements 25,000 N/A 
Site Improvements 25,000 20 
Buildings 100,000 50 
Building Improvements 25,000 20 
Equipment 5,000 3-10 
Purchased Computer 
Software 25,000 10 

OJ Compensated Absences 

The liability for compensated absences repmied in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation, holiday and sick leave balances for 
Department employees. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. The 
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both 
employees whcr currently are eligible to receive tennination payments and other employees who 
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon tennination are 
included. The liability has been calculated based on the employees' current salary level and 
includes salary related costs (e.g., Social Security and Medicare tax). 

Legislation that became effective January 1, 1998 capped the paid sick leave for all State 
Employees' Retirement System members at December 31, 1997. Employees continue to accrue 
twelve sick days per year, but will not receive mon,etary compensation for any additional time 
earned after December 31, 1997. Sick days earned between 1984 and December 31, 1997 (with a 
50% cash value) would only be used after all days with no cash value are depleted. Any sick 
days earned and unused after December 31, 1997 will be conve1ied to service time for purposes 
of calculating employee pension benefits. 
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(k) Fund Balances 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

In the fund financial statements, govermnental funds report fund balances in the following 
categories: 

.Nonspendable- This consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a) not 
in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The 
following funds comprise nonspendable fund balances for inventories as of June 30, 2012: 
General Fund and DOC Commissary Funds Fund. 

Restricted - This consists of amounts that are restricted to specific purposes; that is, when 
constraints placed on the use of resources are either a) externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Moms and Babies Fund had restricted 
fund balances as of June 30,2012 of$4 thousand. 

Committed- This consists of amounts with self-imposed constraints or limitations that have 
been placed through enabling legislation hnposed by theillinois State Legislature and the 
Governor, the highest level of decision making authority. The following funds comprise 
com1nitted fund balances as of June 30, 2012: Department of Corrections Reimburs-errieilt 
Fund and DOC Resident's and Employee's Benefit Fund. The Department of Corrections 
Reimbursement ·Fund is restricted through enabling legislation but has been subject to fund 
sweeps in previous years and therefore is classified as cmmnitted. These cmmnitted funds 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Department removes or changes the specified 
use by talcing the same type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts. 
Cmmnitted fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing 
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. 

Assigned- This consists of net amounts that are constrained by the Department's intent to be 
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. There are no assigned 
fund balances as of June 30, 2012. 

Unassigned - This consists of amounts that are available financial resources and are not 
designated for a specific purpose .. This classification is only reported in the General Fund, 
except in cases of negative fund balances reported in other govermnental funds which are 
repmied as unassigned. The following funds comprise unassigned fund balances as of June 
30, 2012: General Fund and DOC Commissary Funds Fund. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the State's policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed. Unrestricted 
resources which are committed are generally used before assigned resources, and assigned resources 
are generally used before unassigned resources. 

(!) NetAssets 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in two 
components as follows: 
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Invested in. Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or 
other bonowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. 

Unrestricted - This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

(m) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the repmiing period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

(n) New Accounting Pronouncements 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2012, the State adopted GASB Statement No. 64, 
Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions (an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 53), which clarifies whether an effective hedging 
relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty's 
credit support provider. There was no impact on the Department's financial statements as a result 
of adopting this statement. 

(o) Future Adoption ofGASB Statements 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2013, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34), 
which modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting 
entity and amends the criteria for reporting component units as though they are a part of the 
primary government using the blending method. The Department has not yet determined the 
impact on its financial statements as a result of adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2013, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which incorporates into the GASB's authoritative 
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the 
pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict 
GASB pronouncements. The Department has not yet determined the impact on its financial 
statements as a result of adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2013, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 63, 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position, which standardizes the financial statement presentation of deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and their effects on a govermnent' s net position. 
The Department has not yet determined the impact on its financial statements as a result of 
adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2014, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 65, Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which establishes accounting and financial 
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reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as 
outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities. This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to 
the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources, such as changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and 
limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. The Department has not 
yet detennined the impact on its financial statements as a result of adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2014, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 66, 
Technical Corrections - 2012, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62, which 
improves accounting and financial reporting for a governmental ·financial reporting entity by 
resolving the conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of GASB Statement No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and GASB Statement No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989 FASB and AI CPA Pronouncements. This Statement amends Statement No. 10, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing the 
provision that limits fund-based reporting of an entity's riskfinancing activities to the general 
fund and the internal service fund type. As a result, governments should base their decisions 
about fund type classification on the nature of the activity to be reported, as required in Statement 
54 and Statement No. 34, Basic Financial State_ments-and Management's Discussion and 
Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This Statement also amends Statement 62 by 
modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a 
straightline basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the 
principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage 
loans that are sold when_ the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal) 
servicing fee rate. _These changes clarify how to ·apply Statement No. 13, ·Accounting for 
Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with 
the requirmnents in Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and 
Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, respectively. The Department has not yet 
determined the impact on its financial statements as aresult of adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2014, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 67, 
Finwicial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB State171ent ·No. 25, which 
improves fimi.ncial reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. · This Statement 
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Finwidal Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans and Note Disclosures for Defitzed Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as 
they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that 
meet certain criteria. The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for the activities of pension plans that are administered through trusts that have the following 
characteristics: (1) Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the 
pension plan and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable, (2) pension plan assets are 
dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms and (3) 
pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer 
contributing entities, and the pension plan administrator. For defined benefit pension plans, this 
Statement establishes standards of financial reporting for separately issued financial reports and 
specifies the required approach to measuring the pension liability of employers and nonemployer 
contributing entities for benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pension liability), 
about which information is required to be presented. This Statement also details the note 
disclosure requirements for defined contribution pension plans administered through trusts that 
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meet the identified criteria. The Depa1iment has not yet detennined the impact on its financial 
statements as a result of adopting this statement. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2015, the State will adopt GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 2 7, 
which improves accounting and financial repmiing by state and local governments for pensions. 
It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements 
of Statements No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, and 
No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans 
administered as trusts or equivalent anangements that meet certain criteria. The scope of this 
Statement addresses accounting and fmancial reporting for pensions that are provided to the 
employees of state and local govermnental employers through the activities of pension plans that 
are administered through trusts that have the following characteristics: (1) Contributions from 
employers a11d nonemployer contributing entities to the pension plan and earnings on those 
contributions are irrevocable, (2) pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan 
members in accordance with the benefit terms and (3) pension plan assets are legally protected 
from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing entities, and the pension plan 
administrator. This ~tatement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and expense/expenditures. For 
defined benefit plans, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used 
to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actual present value and 
attribute that present value to ·periods of emplo;iee service. Note disclosure and required 
supplementary information requirements about pensions are also addressed. The Department has 
not yet detennined the impact on its financial statements as a result of adopting this statement. 

(3) Deposits 

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the Department's deposits and investments for funds 
maintained in the State Treasury. The Department independently manages deposits and investm.ents 
maintained outside the State Treasury. 

Deposits in the custody of the State Treasurer are pooled and invested with other State funds in 
accordance with the Deposit of State Moneys Act of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (15 ILCS 520/11 ). 
Funds held by the State Treasurer have not been categorized as to credit risk because the Department 
does not own individual securities. Detail on the nature of these deposits and investments is available 
within the State of Illinois' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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(4) Interfund Balances and Activity 

(a) Balances Due to/from Other Funds 

The following balances (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2012 represent amounts 
due from other Depmiment and State of Illinois funds. 

Fund 

Nom11ajor governmental 
funds 

Intemal service funds 

Fiduciary funds 

Due from 

Other 
Department 

Funds 

$ 8,345 

6,511 

2,979 

$ 17,835 

Other State 
Funds 

$ 554 

2,540 

$ 3,094 
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Description/Purpose 

Due from other Department funds for inmate 
payments, commissary salaries and 
reimbursements and other State funds for 
umeimbursed grant expenditures. 

Due from other Department funds and other 
State funds for purchases of goods and services. 

Due from other Department funds for 
reimbursements of expenditures and accmed 
inmate payroll. 
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The following balances (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2012 represent amounts 
due to other Department and State of Illinois funds. 

Due to 

Other Department 
Department Other State Fiduciary 

Fund Funds Funds Funds Description/Purpose 

General $ 6,800 $ 5,992 $ 2,698 Due to other Department funds for 
purchases and for reimbursements, to other 

State funds for services provided and to 
Department fiduciary funds for 

reimbursements of expenditures and 
accrued inmate payroll. 

Nonmajor 8,056 107 33 Due to other Department funds for 

governmental commissary profits, other State funds for 

funds unspent grant proceeds, and to Department 
fiduciary funds for reimbursements of 

expenditures. 

Internal service 1,506 248 Due to State funds for operating expense 

funds reimbursements and due to Department 

fiduciary funds for reimbursements of 

expenditures and accrued payroll. 

$ 14,856 $ 7,605 $ 2,979 
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{b) Transfers to/from Other Funds 

Interfund transfers in (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 2012, were 
as follows: 

Fund 

Nonmajor 
governmental funds 

Transfers in from 

Other 
Department 

Funds 

$ 5,526 

$ 5,526 

Description/Purpose 

Transfers from other Department 
nonmajor governmental funds for 
commissary profits and salaries 

Interfund transfers out (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 2012, were 
as follows: 

Fund 

Nonmajor 
governmental funds 

Transfers out to 

Other 
Department 

Funds 

$ 5,526 

$ 5,526 

138 

Other State 

$ 

$ 

Funds Description/Purpose 

487 

487 

Transfers to other Department funds for': 
conunissary ·profits and salaries and to 
other State funds for debt service 
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(c) Balances Due to/from State of Illinois Component Units 

The following balances (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2012 represent amounts 
due from State of Illinois Component Units for reimbursements for expenses incurred. 

Due From 
Component Units 

Illinois Toll Eastern 
Highway Illinois University 

Fund Authority University of Illinois 

Intemal service funds $ 8 $ 81 $ 58 

Nonmajor governmental funds 29 

$ 8 $ 81 $ 87 

The following balances (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2012 represent amounts 
due to State of Iliinois Component Units for reimbursements for expenses incurred. 

Component Unit 

General fund 

N onmaj or governmental funds 

Intemal service funds 
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Due to 

Component Units 

Illinois 
Toll 

Highway 
Authority 

$ 4 

$ 5 

University of . 

$ 

$ 

Illinois. 

1,097 

643 

1,740 
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Capital asset activity (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as 
follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 
Land and land improvements 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Site improvements 
Buildings and building 

improvements 
Equipment 
Capita1leases - equipment 
Software 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Site improvements 
Buildings and building 

improvements 
Equipment 
Capital leases - equipment 
Software 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Govemmental activity 
capital assets, net 

$ 

Balance 
July 1, 2011 

Restated 

59,183 

59,183 

85,404 

1,372,119 
82,167 

195 
161 

1,540,046 

57,317 

612,641 
75,493 

56 
161 

745,668 

794,378 

$ 853,561 

$ 

Additions 

219 

111 
2,816 

336 

3,482 

3,243 

30,307 
2,629 

213 

36,392 

(32,91 0) 

$ (32,910) 

Deletions 

$ 

$ 

499 
594 

21 

1,114 

35 
589 

21 

645 

469 

469 

Net 
Transfers 

$ 

12,977 
(2,316) 

10,661 

142 
(2,316) 

(2,174) 

12,835 

$ 12,835 

Balance 
. June 30, 2012 

$ 

$ 

59,183 

59,183 

85,623 

1,384,708 
82,073 

510 
161 

1,553,075 

60,560 

643,055 
75,217 

248 
161 

779,241 

773,834 

833,017 

Depreciation expense for governmental activities (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended 
June 30, 2012 was charged as follows: 

Public protection and justice $ 36,392 ======= 
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(a) Changes in Long-Term Obligations 

Changes in long-term obligations (amounts expressed in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 
2012 were as follows: 

Balance Balance Amounts 
July 1, June 30, Due Within 
2011 Additions Deletions 2012 One Year 

Governmental activities: 

Compensated absences $ 87,827 $ 64,921 $ 76,944 $ 75,804 $ 5,115 

Capital lease obligations 144 336 198 282 138 

Total $ 87,971 $ 65,257 $ 77,142 $ 76,086 $ 5,253 

Compensated absences have been liquidated by the applicable governmental funds that account 
for the salaries and wages of the related employees. · 

(b) Capital lease obligations 

The Depmiment leases office and computer equipment with a historical cost and accumulated 
depreciation of $510 thousand and $248 thousand, respectively, under capital lease arrangements. 
Although lease terms vary, certain leases are renewable subject to appropriation by the General 
Assembly. If renewal is reasonably assured leases requiring appropriation by the General 
Assembly are considered non-cancelable· leases for financial reporting. The following is a 
schedule of future minimum lease payments (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Year Ending 

June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2013 $ 138 $ 45 $ 183 
2014 93 . 21 114 
2015 31 5 36 
2016 13 2 15 
2017 7 7 

$ 282 $ 73 $ 355 
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Substantially all of the Department's full-time employees who are not eligible for participation in 
another state-sponsored retirement plan participate in the State Employees' Retirement System 
(SERS), which is a pension trust fund in the State ·of Illinois reporting entity: The SERS is a single­
employer defiried benefit public employee retirement system (PERS) in which State employees 
participate, except those covered by the State Universities, Teachers', General Assembly, and Judges' 
Retirement Systems. The financial position and results of operations of the SERS for fiscal year 2012 
are included in the State of Illinois' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year 
ended June 30, 2012. The SERS issues a separate CAFRthat may be obtained by writing to the SERS, 
2101 South Veterans Parkway, Springfield, Illinois, 62794-9255. 

A s"innmary of SERS benefit provisions, changes in benefit provisions, employee eligibility 
requirements including eligibility for vesting, and the authority under which benefit provisions are 
established are included as an integral pari of the SERS' CAFR. Also included is a discussion of 

·employer and employee obligations to contribute and the authority under which those obligations are 
established. · 

The Department pays employer retirement contribution-s based upon an actuarially determined 
percentage of their payrolls. For fiscal year 2012, the employer contribution rate was 34.19%. 

Ce1iain Department employees working in the Office of Adult Education and Vocational Services 
participate in the Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois (TRS). TRS is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that was created by the Illinois legislature for the 
benefit· of Illinois public school teachers employed outside the. city of Chicago. The Illinois Pension 
Code outlines the benefit provisions of TRS, and amendments to the plan cari be made only by 
legislative action with the Governor's approval. The State of Illinois maintains primary responsibility 
for the funding· of the plan, but contribution from participating· employers· and members are also 
required. The TRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the System's administration. 

TRS me1nbers include all active nonannuitants who are employed by ·a TRS-covered employer to 
provide services for which teacher certification is required. -Active TRS members. are required to 
contribute 9.4% of their creditable earnings. These contributions, which may be paid on behalf of 
employees by the employer, are submitted to TRS by the employer. 

TRS financial information, an explanation of TRS' benefits, and descriptions of member, employer 
and state funding requirements can be fo:und in the TRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
the year ended June 30, 2012. The report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers' Retirement 
System ofthe State ofillinois, P.O. Box 19253, 2815 West Washington Street, Springfield, lL 62794-
9253. 

(8) Post-employment Benefits 

The State provides health, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits for retirees and their dependents in 
a program administered by the Department of Healthcare _and Family Services along with the 
Department of Central Management Services. Substantially all State employees become eligible for 
post-employment benefits if they eventually become annuitants of one of the State sponsored pension 
plans. Health, dental, and vision benefits include basic benefits for annuitants and dependents under 
the State's self-insurance plan and insurance contracts currently in force. Annuitants may be required 
to contribute towards health, dental, and vision benefits with the amount based on factors such as date 
of retirement, years of credited service with the State, whether the annuitant is covered by Medicare, 
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and whether the annuitant has chosen a managed health care plan. Annuitants who retired prior to 
January 1, 1998, and who are vested in the State Employee's Retiremeiit System do not contribute 
towards health, dental, and vision benefits. For annuitants who retired on or after January 1, 1998, the 
ammitant's contribution amount is reduced five percent for each year of credited service with the State 
allowing those annuitants with twenty or more years of credited service to not have to contribute 
towards health, dental, and vision benefits. Annuitants also receive life insurance coverage equal to 
the annual salary of the last day of employment until age 60, at which time the benefit becomes 
$5,000. 

However, Public Act 97-0695, effective, July 1, 2012, alters the contributions to be paid by the State, 
annuitants, survivors, and retired employees under the State Employees Group Insurance Act. This 
Act requires the Director of Central Management Services to, on an annual basis, determine the 
amount that the State should contribute. The remainder of the cost of coverage shall be the 
responsibility of the annuitant, survivor, or retired employee. 

The total cost of the State's portion of health, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits of all members, 
including post-e1nployment health, dental, vision, and ·life insurance benefits, is recognized as an 
expenditure by the State in the Illinois Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The State finances 
the costs on a pay-as-you-go basis. The total costs incurred for health, dental, vision, and life 
insurance benefits are not separated by department or component unit for annuitants and their 
dependents nor active employees and their dependents. 

A summary of post-employment benefit provisions, changes in benefit provisions, employee eligibility 
requirements including eligibility for vesting, and the authority under which benefit provisions are 
established are included as an integral part of the financial statements of the Department ofHea1thcare 
and Family Services. A copy of the financial statements of the Department of Healthcare and Family 
Services may be obtained by writing to the Department ofHealthcare and Family Services, 201 South 
Grand Ave., Springfield, Illinois, 62763-3 83 8. 
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At June 30, 2012, the Department's fund balances were classified as fol~ows: 

Non-major 

Governmental 

General Fund Funds Total 

N onspendable: 
Inventory $ 11,843 $ 2,497 $ 14,340 

Restricted purposes: 

Public protection and justice 4 4 

Committed purposes: 
Public protection and justice 13,401 13,401 

Unassigned (5,025) (2,497) (7,522) 

Total fund balances $ 6,818 $ 13,405 $ 20,223 

Risk Management 

The Depmiment is exposed to various risks of loss related to tmis; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors m1d omissions; workers compensation and natural disasters. The State retains the risk 
of loss (i.e., self insured) for these risks. 
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(11) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Operating leases 

The Department leases certain office facilities and equipment, under the terms of noncancelable 
operating lease agreements that require the Department to make minimum lease payments plus 
pay a pro rata share of certain operating costs. Rent expense under operating leases (amount 
expressed in thousands) was $17,737 for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under operating leases (amounts 
expressed in thousands): 

(b) Federal Funding 

Year Ending 

June 30 

2013 

2014 

$ 

Amount 

6,716 

6,341 

2015 5,034 

2016 3,282 

2017 3,330 

$ 24,703 

The Department receives federal grants which are subject to review and audit by federal grantor 
agencies. Certain costs could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms 
of the grants. At June 30, 2012 there were no material questioned costs that have not been 
resolved with the federal awarding agencies. However, questioned costs could still be identified 
during audits to be conducted in the future. Management of the Department believes there will be 
no material adjustments to the federal grants and, accordingly, has not recorded a provision for 
possible .repayment. 

(c) Litigation 

The Department is routinely involved in a number of legal proceedings and claims that cover a 
wide range of matters. In the opinion of management, the outcome of these matters, with the 
exception of the legal proceeding below, is not expected to have any material adverse effect on 
the financial position or results of operations of the Department. 

In State of Illinois (Illinois Department of Central Management Services) v. American Federation 
of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Council 31 ("AFSCME"), Case No. 11 CH 31591 
(Cir. Ct. Cook County), the State of Illinois seeks to vacate and AFSCME seeks to confinn an 
arbitration award for certain FY2012 wage increases allegedly owed to State employees in 
bargaining units represented by AFSCME at six State agencies. The State has contested the 
obligation to pay the wage increases on Constitutional and public policy grounds, and the matter 
is currently pending before the Circuit Court of Cook County. Dependent on whether, or to what 
extent, the arbitration award is confirmed, and the related impact of an adverse decision, the 
estimated possible loss ranges from $0 to $38.210 million. 
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In Fox v. Peters, USDC NDIL No. 09-5453, the case went to trial in January 2013. The jury 
found for the plaintiff and returned a verdict for the plaintiff in the amount of $12 million. As of 
the date of this report, the plaintiff has already received $3 tnillion from the insurance carrier of 
the medical personnel. The Department has filed a post-trial motion, challenging the verdict and 
seeking an off-set for money the plaintiff has already received, and may receive in the future, 
from the medical defendants. The Department's liability in regards to the verdict should not 
exceed $12 million. 

(12) Restatement 

The net assets as of June 30, 2011 of the Department were restated to reflect the transfer of the 
Thomson Correctional Center, including the land, buildings and equipment, to the Departrnent of 
Central Managetnent Service (DCMS) on August 1, 2010. As a result of the restatement, total capital 
assets, net of depreciation, was reduced by $98,347. This restatement affected the Statement of Net 
Assets and Note 5, Capital Assets, as follows (expressed in thousands): 

Net assets, June 30, 2011, as previously reported 
Restatement to reflect transfer of Thomson Correctional Center to DCMS 
Net assets, June 30, 2011, as restated 

Capital assets, net, June 3 0, 2011, as previously reported 
Restatement to reflect transfer of Thomson Correctional Center to DCMS 
Capital assets, net, June 30, 2011, as restated 

(13) Subsequent Events 

$ 900,252 
(98,347) 

$ 801,905 

$ 951,908 
(98,347) 

$ 853,561 

The Department closed Tamms Correctional Center, Decatur Adult Transition Center, Southern 
Illinois Adult Transition Center and Westside Adult Transition Center on January 4, 2013. The 
Department closed Dwight Correctional Center on March 30, 2013. 
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State of Illinois 
DeparlmentofCorrections 
Combining Balance Sheet-
Non-major Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

Special Revenue 

DOC 
Resident's 

Department of DOC and 
Corrections Commissary Employee's Moms and 

Reimbursement Funds Benefit Babies Total 

ASSETS 
Unexpended appropriations $ 6,144 $ $ $ $ 6,144 
Cash and cash equivalents 763 6,711 3,718 4 11,196 
Other receivables, net 21 532 553 
Due from other Department funds 881 7,464 8,345 
Due from other State funds 554 554 
Due from Federal government 34 34 
Due from State of Illinois component units 29 29 
Due from. Local government 1 1 
Inventories 2,497 2,497 

Total assets $ 8,406 $ 9,229 $ 11,714 $ 4 $ 29,353 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,442 $ 1,309 $ 10 $ $ 5,761 
Due to other Department funds 8 7,574 474 . 8,056 
Due to other State funds 107 107 
Due t6 Department fiduciary funds 33 33 
Due to Federal government 2 2 
Due to Local government 1,000 1,000 
Due to State of Illinois component units 643 643 
Unavailable revenue 
Unearned revenue 346 346 

Total liabilities 6,202 9,229 517 15,948 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 
Nonspendable for Inventories 2,497 2,497 

Restricted 4 4 
Committed 2,204 111197 13,401 
Unassigned ~2,497} ~2,4971 

Total fund balances 2,204 11,197 4 13,405 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 8,406 $ 9,229 $ 11,714 $ 4 $ 29,353 
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Non-major Governmental Funds 
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Seecial Revenue 

DOC 
Department of DOC Resident's and 
Corrections Commissary Employee's Moms and 

Reimbursement Funds Benefit Babies Total 

REVENUES 
Federal government $ 8,260 $ $ $ $ 8,260 
Interest and other investment income 5 17 22 
Other 13,709 2,754 4 16,467 
Other charges for services 50,042 50,042 
Other operating grants 4 4 

Total revenues 21,973 50,047 2,771 4 74,795 

EXPENDITURES 
Public protection and justice 22,717 44,837 1,579 69,133 
Capital outlays 99 99 

Total expenditures 22,816 44,837 1,579 69,232 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over {under) expenditures (8432 5,210 1,192 4 5,563 

OTHERSOURCES(USES)OF 
FINANCIAL RESOURCES 

Appropriations from State resources 33,000 33,000 
Lapsed appropriations (10,655) (1 0,655) 
Receipts collected and transmitted to State Treasury (28,322) (28,322) 
Transfers-in 5,319 207 5,526 

Transfers-out ~487} ~5,5261 ~6:0131 
Net other sources (uses) of 
financial resources {1 '1451 ~5,5261 207 ~6,464} 

Net change in fund balances {1 ,9881 (3161 1,399 4 (901) 

Fund balances, July 1, 2011 4,192 9,798 13,990 
Increase for changes in inventories 316 316 

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2012 $ 2,204 $ $ 11 '197 $ 4 $ 13,405 
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State of Illinois 
Department of Corrections 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Agency Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 (Expressed in Thousands) 

Balance at 
June 30, 2011 Additions 

DOC Resident's Trust 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,511 $ 21,222 
Due from .other Department funds 5}79 8,287 
Other receivables 2 9 

Total assets $ 8,292 $ 29,518 

LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities $ 8,292 $ 18,426 

Total liabilities $ 8,292 $ 18,426 
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Balance at 
Deletions June 30, 2012 

$ 19,249 $ 4,484 
11,087 2,979 

5 6 
$ 30,341 $ 7,469 

$ 19,249 $ 7,469 
$ 19,249 $ 7,469 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR STATE COMPLIANCE PURPOSES 

SUMMARY 

Supple1nentary Information for State Compliance Purposes presented in this section of the report 
includes the following: 

• Fiscal Schedules and Analysis: 
Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances 

Fiscal Year 2012 
Fiscal Year 2011 

Comparative Schedule of Net Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances 
by Object- All Funds 

Comparative Schedule of Expenditures by Correctional Center- All Funds 
Schedule of Changes in State Property 
Comparative Schedule of Cash Receipts 
Reconciliation Schedule of Cash Receipts to Deposits Remitted to the 

State Comptroller 
Analysis of Significant Variations in Expenditures 
Analysis of Significant Variations in Receipts 
Analysis of Significant Lapse Period Spending 
Analysis of Accounts Receivable (Unaudited) 

• Analysis of Operations: 
Agency Functions and Planning Program (Unaudited) 
Average Number of Employees (Unaudited) 
State Housing Benefits (Unaudited) 
Analysis of Employee Overtime (Unaudited) 
Annual Cost Statistics and Notes (Unaudited) 
Participating Educational Institutions (Unaudited) 
Emergency Purchases (Unaudited) 
Memorandums of Understanding (Unaudited) 
Inmate Assaults on Staff at Adult Correctional Centers (Unaudited) 
Service Efforts and Accomplishments (Unaudited) 

The Independent Auditor's Report that covers the Supplementary Information for State Compliance 
Purposes presented in the Compliance Report Section states Schedules 1 and 3 through 10 for the 
year ended June 30,2012 and Schedules 3, 4, 6 and 8 for the year ended June 30,2010 have been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, in the 
auditors' opinion, it is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole from which it has been derived. The accompanying supplementary 
information for the year ended June 30,2011 in State Compliance Schedules 2 through 11 and the 
Analysis of Operations Section is presented for Additional Analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information has not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED BALANCES 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2012 

Public Acts 97-0053; 97-0065; 97-0642 

GENERAL REVENUE FUND- 0001 
General Office: 

Personal services 
State contributions to social security 
Contractual services 
Travel 
Commodities 
Printing 
Equipment 
Electronic data processing 
Telecommunications services 
Operation of automotive equipment 
Tort claims 

Statewide hospitalization services 
Sheriffs' fees for conveying prisoners 
State's share of Assistant State's Attorneys' salaries 

Repairs, maintenance and other capital improvements 

Adult Education: 
Personal services 
Student, member and inmate compensation 
State contnbutions to state teachers' retirement system 
State contributions to social security 
Contractual services 
Travel 

Fourteen Months Ended August 31, 2012 

$ 

Appropriations 
(Net After 
Transfers) 

18,625,600 
1,424,900 
9,678,600 

210,000 
808,100 

14,400 
22,800 

6,409,200 
8,361,500 

215,800 
760,700 

6,682,400 
337,400 
376,400 

3,000,000 
56,927,800 

13,356,400 
10,000 
2,800 

954,300 
6,297,100 

7,500 

$ 

Expenditures 
Through 

June 30, 2012 

17,656,369 
1,346,133 
7,488,828 

145,888 
317,170 

10,193 
3,084 

4,240,508 
2,126,452 

180,036 
48,220 

5,887,759 
262,646 
224,477 

1,101,776 
41,039,539 

12,114,098 
5,684 
1,903 

830,563 
4,864,922 

3,760 

Approximate 
Lapse Period 
Expenditures 

July 1, 2012 to 
August 31, 2012 

$ 865,703 
65,058 

2,069,038 
43,715 

432,008 
1,195 

16,966 
793,183 

6,123,795 
27,676 

505 

(66) 
74,621 
62,343 

1,620,026 
12,195,766 

609,794 
2,373 

101 
41,649 

885,482 
2,274 

$ 

Approximate 
Total 

Expenditures 

18,522,072 
1,411,191 
9,557,866 

189,603 
749,178 

11,388 
20,050 

5,033,691 
8,250,247 

207,712 
48,725 

5,887,693 
337,267 
286,820 

2,721,802 
53,235,305 

12,723,892 
8,057 
2,004 

872,212 
5,750,404 

6,034 

$ 

Schedule 1 

Approximate 
Balances 
Lapsed 

103,528 
13,709 

120,734 
20,397 
58,922 

3,012 
2,750 

1,375,509 
111,253 

8,088 
711,975 

794,707 
133 

89,580 

278,198 
3,692,495 

632,508 
1,943 

796 
82,088 

546,696 
1,466 
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Public Acts 97-0053; 97-0065; 97-0642 

GENERAL REVENUE FUND-0001 (continued) 
Adult Education (continued): 

Commodities 
Printing 

Telecommunications services 

Operation of automotive equipment 

Field Services: 
Personal services 
Student, member and inmate compensation 
State contributions to social security 
Contractual services 
Travel 
Travel and allowance for prisoners 
Commodities 
Printing 
Equipment 
Telecommunications services 
Operation of automotive equipment 
Operation Ceasefire 

Correctional Centers - Consolidated: 
Personal services 
Student, member and inmate compensation 
State contributions to social security 
Contractual services 
Travel 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED BALANCES 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2012 

Fourteen Months Ended August 31,2012 

$ 

Appropriations 
(Net After 
Transfers) 

152,200 
29,000 

5,500 
5,000 

20,819,800 

54,508,400 
80,200 

4,142,300 
38,640,400 

190,000 
34,100 

282,500 
5,300 

147,300 
6,758,500 
3,085,000 
4,861,600 

1 12,735,600 

695,725,500 
7,441,000 

52,537,300 
192,894,500 

646,500 

$ 

Expenditures 
Through 

June 30, 2012 

47,225 
13,631 

4,392 
2,463 

17,888,641 

52,120,453 
63,000 

3,884,985 
30,737,382 

149,556 
27,157 

159,460 
3;662 

46,441 
5,849,080 
2,652,101 
3,509,055 

99,202,332 

654,278,881 
6,536,115 

48,382,919 
172,279,408 

412,546 

Approximate 
Lapse Period 
Expenditures 

July 1, 2012 to 
August 31,2012 

$ 66,185 
10,920 

460 

334 
1,619,572 

2,384,235 
10,994 

178,095 
6,868,675 

20,073 
1,286 

52,947 
512 

50,577 
755,187 
355,806 

-
10,678,387 

37,504,483 
641,138 

2,804,161 
17,079,431 

131,947 

$ 

Approximate 
Total 

Expenditures 

113,410 
24,551 

4,852 

2,797 
19,508,213 

54,504,688 
73,994 

4,063,080 
37,606,057 

169,629 
28,443 

212,407 
4,174 

97,018 
6,604,267 
3,007,907 
3,509,055 

109,880,719 

691,783,364 
7,177,253 

51;187,080 
189,358,839 

544,493 

$ 

Schedule 1 

Approximate 
Balances 
Lapsed 

38,790 
4,449 

648 
2,203 

1,311,587 

3,712 
6,206 

79,220 
1,034,343 

20,371 
5,657 

70,093 
1,126 

50,282 
154,233 
77,093 

1,352,545 
2,854,881 

3,942,136 
263,747 

1,350,220 
3,535,661 

102,007 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMf:Nt OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRJATIONS; EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED BALANCES 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2012 

Fourteen Months Ended August 31, 2012 

Public Acts 97-0053; 97-0065; 97-0642 

GENERAL REVENUE FUND-0001 (continued) 
Correctional Centers - Consolidated (continued): 

Travel and allowance for prisoners 
Commodities 
Printing 
Equipment 
Telecommunications services 
Operation of automotive equipment 

Total General Revenue Fund 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS REIMBURSEMENT FUND- 0523 
General Office: 

School district programs 
Federal programs 
Miscellaneous programs 

Total Department of Corrections Reimbursement Fund 

TOTAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS 

$ 

$ 

Appropriations 
(Net After 
Transfers) 

655,400 
71,277,100 

538,000 
3,603,400 
2,308,600 
4,314,200 

1,031,941 ,500 

1 ,222,424, 700 

5,000,000 
5,000,000 

23,000,000 
33,000,000 

1,255,424,700 

$ 

Expenditures 
Tirrough 

June 30,2012 

524,943 
62,669,516 

452,722 
269,189 

1,761,907 
3,581,930 

951,150,076 

1,109,280,588 

1,958,234 
953,510 

13,291,406 
16,203,150 

$ 1,125,483,738 

Approximate 
Lapse Period 
Expenditures 

July 1, 2012 to 
August 31, 2012 

$ 46,574 
6,635,582 

41,907 
3,100,933 

335,006 
482,108 

68,803,270 

93,296,995 

75,311 
115,400 

5,951,733 
6,142,444 

$ 99,439,439 

$ 

$ 

Approximate 
Total 

Expenditures 

571,517 
69,305,098 

494,629 
3,370,122 
2,096,913 
4,064,038 

1,019,953,346 

1,202,577,583 

2,033,545 
1,068;910 

19,243,139 
22,345,594 

1 ,224,923,177 

$ 

-

$ 

Schedule 1 

Approximate 
Balances 
Lapsed 

83,883 
1,972,002 

43,371 
233,278 
211,687 
250,162 

11,988,154 

19,847,117 

2,966,455 
3,931,090 
3,756,861 

10,654,406 

30,501,523 

Notes: All data in this schedule bas been obtained from Department records and reconciled to those of the State Comptroller. No balances were reappropriated as of July 1, 2012. 
Expenditure an1ounts are vouchers approved for payment by the Department and submitted to the State Comptroller for payment to the vendor. Approximate lapse period 
expenditures do not include interest payments approved for payment by the Department and submitted to the Comptroller for payment after August. 

i 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURES AND LAPSED BALANCES 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2011 

Eighteen Months Ended December 31, 2011 

Lapse Period 
Appropriations Expenditures Expenditures 

(Net After Through July 1, 2011 to 
Public Act 96-0956 Transfers) June 30, 201 1 December 31, 201 1 

GENERAL REVENUE FUND - 0001 
General Office: 

Operation expenses, awards, grants, and permanent improvements $ 14,968,000 $ 14,129,883 $ 549,342 
Operation expenses 1,099,911,600 1,053,911,429 41,492,327 

1,114,879,600 1,068,041,312 42,041,669 

Governor's Discretionary Appropriations: 
Governor's Discretionary Appropriations 95,000,000 39,403,967 55,593,624 

95,000,000 39,403,967 55,593,624 

Total General Revenue Fund 1,209,879,600 1,107,445,279 97,635,293 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS REIMBURSEMENT FUND - 0523 

General Office: 
School district programs 15,000,000 1,981,368 432,936 
Federal programs 27,000,000 918,710 76,128 
Miscellaneous programs 23,000,000 16,024,532 1,836,080 

65,000,000 18,924,610 2,345,144 
Federal Stimulus - ARRA 

Federal Recovery- ARRA 5,000,000 416,339 

Total Department of Corrections Reimbursement Fund 70,000,000 19,340,949 2,345,144 

TOTAL APPROPRIATED FUNDS $ 1,279,879,600 $ 1 '] 26,786,228 $ 99,980,437 

Total 
Expenditures 

$ 14,679,225 
1 ,095,403, 756 
1 '11 0,082,981 

94,997,591 
94,997,591 

1,205,080,572 

2,414,304 
994,838 

17,860,612 
21,269,754 

416,339 

21,686,093 

$ 1 ,226, 766,665 

Notes: All data in this schedule has been obtained from Department records and reconciled to those of the State Comptroller. No balances were reappropriated as of July 1, 2011. 

Expenditure amounts are vouchers approved for payment by the Department and submitted to the State Comptroller for payment to the vendor. 

Schedule 2 

Balances 
Lapsed 

$ 288,775 
4,507,844 
4,796,619 

2,409 
2,409 

4,799,028 

12,585,696 
26,005,162 

5,139,388 
43,730,246 

4,583,661 

48,313,907 

$ 53,112,935 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Schedule 3 

CO:MP ARA TIVE SCHEDULE OF NET APPROPRIATIONS, EXPENDITURES 
AND LAPSED BALANCES BY OBJECT- ALL FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 

Fiscal Year 
2012 2011 

P .A. 97-0053, P.A. 
97-0065 & 97-0642 96-0956 

ALL FUNDS 

A:g:gro:griations (Net after Transfers) $ I ,255,424, 700 $ 1,279,879,600 

Ex:genditures 
Personal services 789,193,283 781,395,226 

Retirement 1,147,250 1,120,326 

Social security 57,798,640 57,212,717 

Group insurance 781,892 879,697 

Contractual services 261,184,212 275,373,402 

Travel I ,010,948 1,042,545 
Travel and allowances for committed, paroled, and 

discharge prisoners 761,102 604,580 

Commodities 70,895,652 64,959,682 

Equipment 5,685,822 4,790,032 

Electronic data processing 33,275 2,066,591 

Telecommunications services 16,955,240 10,858,629 
Operation of automotive equipment 7,272,110 6,901,401 

Lump sums and other purposes 1,123,417 4,773,801 

A wards and grants 11,071,559 14,592,778 
Permanent improvements 4,653 185,352 

Refunds 4,122 9,906 
Total Expenditures 1,224,923,177 (l) 1,226,766,665 

Lapsed Balances $ 30,501,523 (!) $ 53,112,935 

2010 

P.A. 96-0042, 
96-0046 & 96-0890 

$ 1,261,772,700 

757,200,344 
1,368,847 

55,454,828 
983,201 

265,274,852 
1,030,011 

639,850 
62,676,730 

3,888,965 
471,229 

11,152,254 
6,468,397 
3,267,673 

12,389,836 
115,711 

14,067 
1,182,396,795 

$ 79,375,905 

Notes: (I) Approximate lapse period expenditures do not include interest payments by the Department and submitted to the Comptroller for 
payment after August. 

The comparative schedule of net appropriations, expenditures and lapsed balances by object code does not include State Officers' 
salaries paid by the Office of the Comptroller. For the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, State Officers' salaries were as 

follows: 

Director $ 

Assistant Director 

$ 

155 

2012 
150,228 
127,739 

277,967 

$ 

$ 

2011 
143,383 
46,686 

190,069 

$ 

$ 

2010 
150,228 
121,294 

271,522 

(l) 

(l) 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

Schedule 4 

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY CORRECTIONAL CENTER- ALL FUNDS 

CORRECTIONAL CENTER: 
Big Muddy River 
Centralia 
Danville 
Decatur 
Dixon 
Dwight 
EastMo1ine 
Graham 
Hill 
Illinois River 
J acksonyille 
Lawrence 
Lincoln 
Logan 
Menard 
Pinckneyville 
Pontiac 
Robinson 
Shawnee 
Sheridan 
Southwestern Illinois 
Stateville 
Tamms 
Taylorville 
Thomson 
Vandalia 
Vienna 
Western Illinois 

Total 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

2012 

P.A. 97-0053, 
97-0065 & 97-0642 

$ 31,453,838 
31,491,120 
29,803,305 
19,831,612 
56,236,499 
36,674,469 
26,213,201 
39,402,294 
30,169,071 
33,763,102 
35,965,088 
38,722,311 
22,306,829 
31,680,950 
74,009,618 
42,907,923 
54,356,136 
23,972,792 
33,420,446 
45,293,082 
27,061,306 

106,156,686 
25,174,877 
23,666,141 

31,299,181 
33,564,450 
35,357,019 

$ 1,019,953,346 

156 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 
2011 

P.A. 
96-0956 

30,367,937 
31,326,909 
28,836,956 
19,607,304 
55,828,832 
37,281,081 
25,502,587 
39,698,370 
30,042,587 
32,572,120 
35,499,831 
38,897,246 
22,500,060 
31,483,402 
70,832,885 
42,475,003 
53,229,869 
23,468,881 
32,950,954 
46,719,842 
28,325,532 

104,178,447 
26,116,520 
23,749,686 

31,886,020 
32,132,712 
34,424,178 

1,009,935,751 

2010 

P .A. 96-0042, 
96-0046 & 96-0890 

$ 29,632,997 
31,023,470 
28,222,596 
17,668,436 
52,001,871 
38,003,424 
23,278,575 
36,546,881 
28,942,925 
32,042,049 
35,434,651 
37,363,535 
21,985,208 
30,662,323 
68,920,579 
41,342,393 
49,628,595 
23,075,664 
32,602,724 
43,952,772 
27,635,802 

103,379,320 
25,309,841 
22,835,136 

5,611,319 
28,288,770 
28,763,242 
33,161,926 

$ 977,317,024 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEP AR1MENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN STATE PROPERTY 
Schedule 5 

'. 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 3 0, 20 II and 2012 

Land and Land Site Capital Lease 
EguiEment Im12rovements Buildings Im_erovcments Egui:ement Total 

Balance at July I, 2010 $ 151,873,471 $ 68,446,346 $ 1,497,683,372 $ 87,011,518 $ 2,084,841 (I) $ 1,807,099,548 

Additions 3,314,857 - 664,385 - 92,336 4,071,578 

Deletions 264,784 - 1,640,051 27,052 1,183,754 3,115,641 

Net Transfers (4,466,538) - 5,736,499 - {858,7982 411,163 

Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 150,457,006 $ 68,446,346 $ 1 ,502,444,205 $ 86,984,466 $ 134,625 $ 1 ,808,466,648 

Balance at July 1, 2011 $ 150,457,006 $ 68,446,346 $ 1,502,444,205 $ 86,984,466 $ 134,625 $ 1,808,466,648 

Additions 5,389,552 - 59,437 190 - 5,449,179 

Deletions 1,536,366 - 30,832 - - 1,567,198 

Net Transfers (4,996,050) - 10,445,394 - - 5,449,344 -

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 149,314,142 $ 68,446,346 $ 1,512,918,204 $ 86,984,656 $ 134,625 $ 1,817,797,973 

Note: (1) This balance agrees to the June 30, 2010 compliance examination report. The Department did not accurately carryforward these balances to the first quarter fiscal 
year 2011 Fonn C-15. The Department reported the beginning balance in this category as $131,414 and could not provide the auditors with an explanation for the 
difference. The Department corrected the e1ror in the first quarter of fiscal year 2011. The June 30, 2011 and 2012 balances of this schedule agree to the Fonn C-
15s submitted by the Department. 

Note: (2) As indicated in Finding 12-02, the Department could not provide the auditors with summmy worksheets for the first 3 quarters of fiscal year 2011 Fonn C-15 
submissions. Due to this lack of detailed reports, auditors were unable to test the composition of the transactions reported on the Fonn C-15s in fiscal year 2011. 

Note: (3) Totals on this schedule do not agree to totals in the Department's financial statements due to timing differences and differences in capitalizing fixed assets for 
financial statement purposes. 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS 

For Fiscal Years End~d June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

2012 

Fund 0001 -General Revenue Fund 
General Office: 

Jury duty $ $ 
Concession and vending revenue 10,676 
Prior year refunds 279,103 
Miscellaneous 78 

Adult Field Services: 
Dormant trust accounts 249 
Jury duty 4,185 

Correctional Centers: 
Jury duty 4,615 
Dormant trust accounts 1,400 
Copy fees, subpoena fees, and contraband 3,373 
Rent, jury duty, phone calls, palletts, and recycling 25,820 
Witness fees 11,220 
Replacement badges 
Involuntary whhho1ding collection 48,518 
Inmate commissary sales 
Miscellaneous 19,071 

Total - Fund 0001 408,308 

Fund 0523 - De:gartment of Corrections Reimbursement Fund 
Court ordered reimbursement 97,282 
Inmate maintenance work release 1,786,257 
Illinois Department of Public Health 228,997 
Library reimbursement 100,419 
Inmate reimbursement- miscellaneous 802,136 
Recovered workers' compensation 10,263 
U.S. Department of Justice 6,599,245 
National Institute of Justice 95,887 
Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority 556,992 
Electronic device monitoring 
Illinois Department of Human Services 262,338 
Private organizations 278,151 
College tuition reimbursement 1,660 
U.S. Social Security Administration 298,400 
Illinois Community College Board 2,968,299 
Telephone commissions 4,858,326 
Illinois Emergency Management Agency 97,998 

158 

Schedule 6 

2011 2010 

$ 1,175 
8,727 6,095 

59,998 114,658 
6,413 

327 375 
899 463 

5,391 10,520 
7,954 9,983 
7,608 3,746 
6,691 4,114 
5,604 169 

921 3,264 
1,702 11,279 

625 
36,548 . . 14,338 

142,995 186,592 

29,443 9,876 
1,433,710 1,137,748 

206,721 179,783 
83,878 73,682 

676,901 645,109 
8,684 11,053 

5,518,559 7,243,633 
727,866 628,139 
713,622 909,593 

5,286 5,760 
171,405 242,853 
271,899 341,067 

1,470 3,830 
312,200 353,400 
949,772 1,856,665 

4,858,326 5,299,992 
16,975 114,762 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012,2011 and 2010 

2012 

Fund 0523 - DeQartment of Corrections Reimbursement Fund (continued) 
Inmate commissary sales profit $ 8,945,691 $ 
University of Illinois 93,679 
Miscellaneous 
Federal Stimulus Package 
Reimbursements 228,125 
Prior year refunds 1,144 

Total - Fund 0523 28,311,289 

Total All Funds $ 28,719,597 $ 

159 

Schedule 6 

2011 2010 

7,132,670 $ 6,149,926 
74,836 
78,078 146,845 

390,000 4,588,434 

27,061 

23,662,301 29,969,211 

23,805,296 $ 30,155,803 



Schedule 7 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS TO DEPOSITS 
RE:MITTED TO THE STATE COMPTROLLER 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Fund 0001 Fund 0523 
General Department of 
Revenue Corrections 

Fund Reimbursement Fund Total 
Fiscal Year 2012 

Receipts per Department records $ 408,308 $ 28,311,289 $ 28,719,597 

Deposits in-transit to the State Comptroller: 

Beginning of year (11,206) (441,601) (452,807) 

End ofyear 17,125 11,449 28,574 

Adjustments due to differences in treatment 11,206 441,601 452,807 

Deposits recorded by the State Comptroller $ 425,433 $ 28,322,738 $ 28,748,171 

Fiscal Year 2011 

Receipts per Department records $ 142,995 $ 23,662,301 $ 23,805,296 

Deposits in-transit to the State Comptroller: 

Beginning of year 

End ofyear 11,206 441,601 452,807. 

Deposits recorded by the State Comptroller $ 154,201 $ 24,103,902 $ 24,258,103 

160 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS IN EXPENDITURES 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Schedule 8 

The Departlnent of Corrections' (Department) explanations for significant fluctuations in 
expenditures greater than 25% of total expenditures for that category and $250,000 as presented 
in the Comparative Schedule of Net Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances by 
Object- All Funds are detailed below. Other fluctuations were also included that fell outside of 
that threshold because they were thought to be qualitatively significant by the auditors. 

Personal Services 

Personal services expenditures increased in fiscal year 2011 from 2010 as a result of required 
bargaining agree1nent raises. 

Contractual Services 

Expenditures for contractual services increased in fiscal year 2011 from 2010 due to increases in 
the medical contract and other professional services contracts. More "placements", or inmates 
requiring medical services, occurred in fiscal year 2011 than in fiscal year 2010. Contractual 
services expenditures decreased fro1n fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012 as a result of a 
reduction in rent for the General Office and in utilities. Additionally, medical expenditures 
decreased by nearly $3 million and pharmaceutical costs were reduced due to the new hepatitis C 
contract with the University of Illinois-Chicago. 

Electronic Data Processing 

Expenditures for electronic data processing increased in fiscal year 2011 fro1n fiscal year 2010 
due to additional computers and associated peripherals purchased during the year. Expenditures 
decreased in fiscal year 2012 because the majority of the Departlnent's IT Departlnent 1noved to 
the Departlnent of Central Management Services in fiscal year 2012, thereby reducing 
expenditures for this object code. 

Teleconununications Services 

Teleco1nmunications services expenditures increased fro1n fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012 
due to the purchase of Star-co1n radios and associated equipment for the Stateville and Pontiac 
Correctional Centers. This equipment was purchased in conjunction with the 1nandate for 
narrow-banded radios. 

Luntp Sums and Other Pwposes 

Lump su1n expenditures increased in fiscal year 2011 frmn fiscal year 2010 due to a co1nbination 
of reduced ARRA spending and increased Ceasefire and Statewide Hospitalization expenditures. 
Expenditures decreased from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012 as a result of a decrease of $3 .2 
1nillion in pro1npt paytnent interest charges. 

161 



Awards and Grants 

Expenditures for awards and grants decreased in fiscal year 2012 from 2011 due to the decrease 
in Statewide Hospitalization costs of$3.6 million from fiscal year 2011. 

Permanent Improvements 

Permanent improvements expenditures decreased in fiscal year 2012 from 2011 because of the 
additional spending that occurred in fiscal year 2011 related to water service repairs for the 
Department's forensic lab in the Joliet Correctional Center did not occur in fiscal year 2012. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT V ARlATIONS IN RECEIPTS 1 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011 

Schedule 9 

The Department of Corrections' (Department) explanations for significant fluctuations greater 
than 25o/o of total receipts for that category and $250,000 as presented in the Comparative 
Schedule of Cash Receipts are detailed below. Other fluctuations were also included that fell 
outside of that threshold because they were thought to be qualitatively significant by the auditors. 

Department of Corrections Reimbursement Fund- 0523 

Receipts for Inmate Maintenance Work Release increased from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 
2012 due to the timing of when receipts were received between the end of fiscal year 2011 and 
the beginning of fiscal year 2012. 

Receipts for the U.S. Department of Justice decreased from fiscal year 2010 to fiscal year 2011 
as a result of a reduction of Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) funding and Justice 
Assistance Grants. 

Receipts for the National Institute of Justice decreased in fiscal year 2012 from fiscal year 2011. 
The Department received money for the Working and Community Transition for Incarcerated 
Youth Offenders through the Youthful Offender Grant. The grant ended in September 2011. 
The program was funded for a full year during fiscal year 2011 and only three months of fiscal 
year 2012. 

Receipts for the Illinois Community College Board decreased from fiscal year 2010 to fisca1 year 
2011 due to the payment for the fiscal year 2011 Career to Education Initiative (CTEI) Adult 
Grant of $894,450 not being received until fiscal year 2012. Because the amount spent in the 
Adult Education and Family Literacy (AEFL) Grant decreased, the amount of the grant 
decreased. During fiscal year 2012, funding increased from fiscal year 2011 as a result of the 
fiscal year 2011 CTEI.Adult Grant payment being received in fiscal year 2012. $204,500 
additional AEFL Grant funds were received during fiscal year 2012 than in fiscal year 2011. 

Receipts for the Inmate Commissary Sales Profit increased from fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 
2012 due to an increase in the inmate population which resulted in increased commissary 
revenues. 

In fiscal year 2011, Federal Stimulus Package receipts decreased because the Department 
received the majority of its $5.0 million awarded federal stimulus ARRA funds during fiscal year 
2010. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT LAPSE PERIOD SPENDING 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Schedule 10 

The Depart1nent of Corrections' (Deparhnent) explanations for significant lapse period spending 
greater than 25% of total expenditures for that category and $100,000 as presented in the 
Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures and Lapsed Balances for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 
are detailed below. Other fluctuations were also included that fell outside of that threshold 
because they were thought to be qualitatively significant by the auditors. 

General Revenue Fund - 0001 

Governor's Discretiona1y Appropriations 

Late fiscal year 2011 payrolls were paid frmn this appropriation. Additionally, the June 2011 
invoices for the imnate health services contract were paid fro1n tllis appropriation. Pa)'lnents for 
both of these ite1ns did not occur until the lapse period of fiscal year 2011. 

General Office - Conunodities 

The majority of the fiscal year 2012lapse period spending was for armnunition vouchered at the 
end of June and August 2012. Arrununition is typically delivered late in the fiscal year. 

General Office -Equipment 

The 1najority of fiscal year 2012lapse period expenditures for tllis appropriation were for office 
furniture purchased from illinois Correctional Industries. The invoice for this purchase was not 
received until August 2012. 

General Office- Teleconununication Services 

The Departrnent purchased nearly $5 million of Star-com radios for Pontiac and Stateville 
Correctional Centers. These radios are part of the narrow-band radio purchase the Department 
was required to 1nake to comply with FCC regulations. The radios were not delivered until late 
in fiscal year 2012 and invoices were not received until August 2012. 

General Office - Repairs, Maintenance, and Other Capital Improven1ents 

Approxi1nately $1.4 1nillion of tl1e invoices for repairs and 1naintenance were received at the end 
of June 2012 or later. As a result, the 1najority of these payments were vouchered during the 
lapse period for fiscal year 2012. 

Field Services -Equipment 

The 1najority of the fiscal year 2012lapse period spending was for one voucher for annored vests 
for nearly $40,000. 
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Correctional Centers -Equipment 

Over $3 million was for vehicle invoices that were not received until late June 2012. Therefore, 
they were not paid until the fiscal year 2012 lapse period. Invoices for vehicles are typically 
delivered in late June of the fiscal year in which they were ordered due to the procure1nent 
process for vehicles. 

Department of Corrections Rei1nbursement Fund - 0523 

General Office- Miscellaneous Programs 

Significant expenditures that contributed to this amount included four months, or $2,590,021, of 
the University of Illinois - Chicago hepatitis C contract that were paid during the fiscal year 
2012lapse period based on the end of year reconciliation process. The invoice for the 
Department's Certificates of Participation, amounting to $2,613,747, was received in late June 
2012 and paid during the lapse period. Additionally, $1,000,000 was paid to the Cook County 
Boot Camp for an invoice received in July 2012. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

(Unaudited) 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Schedule 11 

Accounts receivable for the Department consist prilnarily of receivables fro1n federal and State 
grant reilnburse1nents and fonnula paYJ.nents due from grantor agencies and payments for the 
purchases of goods and services. The principal grantor agencies are other State agencies; 
therefore, the Deparhnent's receivables are all considered fully collectible. 

Weaknesses were noted concerning the Department's controls over accounts receivable and its 
collection efforts over farm leases. Details related to these weaknesses are contained in Findings 
12-06 and 12-07. The auditors expressed a qualified opinion o-n the Depart1nent's basic financial 
statements based upon the conditions noted in these two findings concerning the Deparhnent' s 
accounts receivable within the Working Capital Revolving Fund (Correctional Industries). 
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Mission Statement 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS 

AGENCY FUNCTIONS AND PLANNING PROGRAM 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The mission of the Department of Corrections (Department) is to protect the public from 
criminal offenders through a system of incarceration and supervision which securely segregates 
offenders from society, assures offenders of their constitutional rights and maintains programs to 
enhance the success of offenders' reentry into society. 

Organization 

The Department was established in 1970 and operates under the powers and duties established by 
the Unified Code of Corrections (730 ILCS 5). Effective June 1, 2006, Public Act 94-0696 
established the Department of Juvenile Justice. This Act transferred certain rights, powers, 
duties, and functions that were exercised by the Juvenile Division of the Department of 
Corrections. Effective July 1, 2006 the Department of Corrections' school district was 
transferred to the Department of Juvenile Justice. The Department of Corrections' retained the 
Adult Education and Vocational Services area which provides the services to the adult 
population. 

Michael P. Randle was the Department Director until he resigned on September 18, 201 0. 
After that time, Gladyse Taylor was appointed Acting Director. She served in this capacity until 
May 1, 2011. Salvador A·. Godinez was appointed Director effective May 2, 2011. The 
Director's office is located at the Concordia Complex, 1301 Concordia Court, P.O. Box 19277, 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9277. 

As of the report date, the Department operates the following adult correctional centers, which are 
listed by security level: 

Security Level Center Name 
Maximum Menard; Pontiac; Stateville 
Medium Big Muddy River; Centralia; Danville 

Dixon; Graham; Hill; Illinois River; Lawrence 
Lincoln; Logan; Pinckneyville; Shawnee 
Sheridan; Western Illinois 

Minhnum Decatur; East Moline; Jacksonville; Robinson 
Southwestern Illinois; Taylorville 
Vandalia; Vienna 
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Security Level Center Name 
\Vork Camp East Moline 

Jacksonville (Greene County & Pittsfield) 
Shawnee (Hardin County) 
Southwestern 
Western illinois (Clayton) 

Medium Security Unit Menard; Pontiac 
Minimum Security Unit Stateville 
hnpact Incarceration Pro gram Pinckneyville (DuQuoin) 

Vienna (Dixon Springs) 
Transitional Crossroads Adult Transition Center 

Fox Valley Adult Transition Center 
North Lawndale Adult Transition Center 
Peoria Adult Transition Center 

Mental Health Unit Pontiac 
Psychiatric Unit Dixon 
Special Treatment Center Dixon 

During the audit period, the Department also operated Tamms Correctional Center (1naximum 
and work crunp), Dwight Correctional Center (maximum), Decatur Adult Transition Center, 
Southern illinois Adult Transition Center (ATC), and West Side Adult Transition Center. 
Taffilns Correctional Center closed on January 4, 2013, Dwight Correctional Center closed on 
March 26, 2013, and Decatur, Southern Illinois and West Side ATCs closed on January 4, 2013. 

Internal Organization 

The function of the General Office is to provide support services to all of the Department's 
facilities and divisions. This includes establishing and 1nonitoring budget activities, capital 
planning, accoun~ing services and data processing. The General Office performs other functions 
necessary to meet the provisions of the Code and provides administrative services to the 
Department of Juvenile Justice as detailed in an interagency agree1nent. 

The function of Adult Education is to provide acade1nic and vocational training progrruns in the 
adult institutions and other functions necessary to 1neet the provisions of the Code. The mission 
of the Adult Education Division is to enhance the quality and scope of education for inmates 
within the Department of Corrections so that they will be better 1notivated and better equipped to 
restore the1nselves to constructive law-abiding lives in the co1nmunity. 

The function of the Adult Transition Centers (Field Services) is to provide basic needs, custody, 
and progrrun opportunities for adults sentenced by the illinois courts. The Adult Transition 
Centers provide acade1nic and vocational programs, work experience, and participation in public 
service projects for residents who are 1naking the transition from prison to free society. 
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Strategic Planning and Priorities 

The Department had four major programs: 

1. Bureau of Operations 
2. Adult h1stitutions/ Adult Transition Centers 
3. Parole 
4. Progrmn Services 

Nearly 80-85% of the Department's efforts relate to the Bureau of Operations and Adult 
Institutions/Adult Transition Centers progrmns. The Bureau of Operations includes intelligence, 
investigations, and the central office functions. Included within Program Services is Women and 
Family Services. 

The Departlnent establishes, reviews and updates its goals on a regular basis. Departlnent goals 
are developed through continuing sources of infonnation derived through operations, changes in 
legislation, census statistics, innovations in progrmns, imnate population makeup, and 
availability of resources. Senior 1nanage1nent of the various divisions consolidate the 
infonnation. The Planning and Research Unit assists to formalize statements and plans, which 
detail the goals of the Depart1nent. 

The Adult Education Division subtnits annual vocational and special education reports to the 
Illinois State Board of Education. Long range planning goals are submitted to the Progrmn 
Services Unit as well as the School Board. Short range goals are detennined at weekly 
management tneetings and relayed during Education Facility meetings. Annual in-services plans 
are also developed. 

When new progratns, policies, and procedures are developed, they are formalized through the 
development of the Department's Administrative Rules and Directives. These rules and 
directives are subject to audits by Internal Audit and institution staff. An annual review of 
programs, performed by program staff, is also reported at the end of each fiscal year. 

The Depart1nent utilizes its Annual Report to depict its progress toward the above objectives. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The following table, prepared from Department records, presents the average number of 
employees by the divisions and the Correctional Centers (excluding Illinois Correctional 
Industries) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. 

Fiscal Year 
Division 2012 2011 

General Office 

Education Services 

Statewide and Field Services 

Correctional Centers 

Big Muddy River 

Centralia 

Danville 

Decatur 

Dixon 

Dwight 

East Moline 

Southwestern Illinois 

Graham 

Illinois River 

Hill 

Jacksonville 

Lawrence 

Lincoln 

Logan 

Menard 

Pinckneyville 

Pontiac 

Robinson 

Shawnee 

Sheridan 

Tamms 

170 

241 

214 

657 

300 

347 

271 

207 

531 

327 

263 

225 

388 

300 

280 

399 

362 

213 

327 

784 

435 

583 

243 

333 

329 

287 

265 

237 

688 

300 

348 

277 

206 

536 

346 

270 

220 

411 

312 

288 

398 

383 

221 

331 

787 

433 

597 

240 

331 

351 
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Fiscal Year 
Correctional Centers 2012 2011 

Stateville 1,031 1,046 

Taylorville 226 235 

Vandalia 326 328 
Vienna 325 330 

Western Illinois 348 353 

Total average full-time employees 11.102 11.362 

The following table, prepared from Department records, presents the average number of 
correctional officers for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Correctional officers are 
included in the total average full time employees presented above. 

Fiscal Year 
Correctional Centers 2012 2011 

Big Muddy River 229 230 

Centralia 275 280 

Danville 212 215 

Decatur 134 136 

Dixon 406 406 

Dwight 259 275 

East Moline 185 185 

Southwestern Illinois 178 168 

Graham 297 316 

Illinois River 230 238 

Hill 218 229 

Jacksonville 307 308 

Lawrence 288 299 

Lincoln 162 170 

Logan 252 255 

Menard 597 610 

Pinckneyville 332 336 

Pontiac 482 493 

Robinson 188 182 

Shawnee 259 256 

Sheridan 252 272 

Tamms 214 217 

Stateville 814 825 
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Fiscal Year 
Correctional Centers 2012 2011 

Taylorville 169 179 
Vandalia 240 241 
Vienna 240 242 
Western Illinois 270 276 

Total average correctional officers 7 689 7 839 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

STATE HOUSING BENEFITS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The Depa111nent houses etnployees on the grounds of tnany of its correctional facilities in guard 
dormitories or ·warden's houses. Currently there are approximately 13 employees living in 
dormitory rooms and approximately 44 employees living in houses. This total decreased from 
approximately 200 at June 30,2010 because the Departm.ent closed the etnployee donns at 
Stateville and Pontiac during the audit period. The Deparhnent has established rates for the 
housing dependent upon costs for utilities and the appraised value of the property. While the 
Departlnent initially pays for the utilities and tnaintenance, the employees pay a monthly fee that 
includes utility charges. Additionally, in accordance with Internal Revenue Service Regulations, 
the appraised value of the property is added to the employees' cotnpensation as a taxable fringe 
benefit. The policies for housing are docmnented in the Departm.ent' s Administrative Directives. 
The Departtnent does not provide housing to non-employees and does not require employees to 
pay security deposits. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF EMPLOYEE OVERTIME 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Certain employees are eligible for overtime if the hours worked during the day exceed the 
employees standard work hours. Correctional Officers receive a 114-hour of overtime for each 
day they stand for roll call. The roll call overtime is paid at straight time for all but Correctional 
Lieutenants who receive 1 Y2 times normal pay. 

Overtime is to be distributed as equally as possible among employees \Vho normally perform the 
work in the position in which the overtime is needed. An employee's supervisor must approve 
any overtime. In most cases, except for roll call, employees are compensated at 1 1h times their 
normal hourly rate for overtime hours worked. Employees have the opportunity to be 
compensated either in pay for the overtime or receive compensatory time off. 

The following tables, prepared from Department records, present the paid overtime and used 
compensatory time incurred during fiscal years 2012 and 2011. 
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Overtime 
Division Hours Paid 
General Office 9,278 
Adult Education 99 
Field Services 33,008 
Big Muddy River 9,903 
Centralia 18,579 
Danville 19,350 
Decatur 11,553 
Dixon 49,004 
Dwight 71,914 
East Moline 13,255 
Graham 19,223 
Hill 20,357 
Illinois River 17,413 
Jacksonville 13,975 
Lawrence 43,763 
Lincoln 20,940 
Logan 20,801 
Menard 54,929 
Pinckneyville 19,220 
Pontiac 34,645 
Robinson 9,018 

Shawnee 17,890 
Sheridan 52,576 
Southwestern Illinois 4,199 
Stateville 133,182 
Tamms 2,734 

Taylorviiie 15,447 

Vandalia 22,956 

Vienna 39,613 
Western Illinois 13,021 
Correctional Industries 12,492 

TOTAL 824,337 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF EMPLOYEE OVERTIME 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 

(Unaudited) 

$Value of $Value of 
Overtime Compensatory Compensatory 

Hours Paid Hours Used Hours Used 
$ 402,028 $ 

3,711 
1,728,438 . 8,252 304,575 

466,854 13,683 398,932 
797,858 14,285 417,052 
878,096 20,015 620,599 
561,335 13,302 415,609 

2,202,549 42,051 1,262,940 
3,068,432 16,081 458,582 

589,759 26,361 774,755 
873,051 21,486 638,191 

.953,596 18,302 553,112 
785,116 29,078 868,538 
672,532 19,761 616,977 

1,947,995 23,719 696,192 
893,213 6,141 168,750 
941,437 13,672 395,845 

2,500,323 48,540 1,455,561 
857,595 24,596 730,514 

1,617,298 25,793 744,781 
396,487 14,020 420,704 
812,844 15,795 451,122 

2,297,115 24,994 732,465 
197,529 9,965 301,891 

6,067,965 103,689 3,156,209 
124,450 9,462 294,425 
711,875 11,805 354,622 

1,045,523 27,436 813,443 
1,818,460 27,853 840,125 

631,505 22,270 696,067 
589,217 

$ 37,434,186 652,407 $ 19,582,578 
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Total Total $ Value of 
Overtime & Overtime & 

Compensatory Compensatory 
Hours Hours 

9;278 $ 402,028 
99 3,711 

41,260 2,033,013 
23,586 865,786 
32,864 1,214,910 
39,365 1,498,695 
24,855 976,944 
91,055 3,465,489 
87,995 3,527,014 
39,616 1,364,514 
40,709 1,511,242 
38,659 1,506,708 
46,491 1,653,654 
33,736 1,289,509 
67,482 2,644,187 
27,081 1,061,963 
34,473 1,337,282 

103,469 3,955,884 
43,816 1,588,109 
60,438 2,362,079 
23,038 817,191 
33,685 1,263,966 
77,570 3,029,580 
14,164 499,420 

236,871 9,224,174 
12,196 418,875 
27,252 1,066,497 
50,392 1,858,966 
67,466 2,658,585 
35,291 1,327,572 
12,492 589,217 

1,476,744 $ 57,016,764 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANALYSIS OF EMPLOYEE OVERTIME 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Total Total$ Value of 
$Value of $Value of Overtime & Overtime & 

Overtime Overtime Compensatory Compensatory Compensatory Compensatory 
Division Hours Paid Hours Paid Hours Used Hours Used Hours Hours 
General Office 6,105 $ 3 72,212 $ 6,105 $ 372,212 
Adult Education 389 13,075 123 3,379 512 16,454 
Field Services 35,084 1,737,614 7,677 282,506 42,761 2,020,120 
Big Muddy River 14,541 648,510 16,655 479,636 31 '196 1 ,128,146 
Centralia 20,336 868,925 13,925 404,574 34,261 1,273,499 
Danville 11,447 536,808 17,137 540,491 28,584 1,077,299 
Decatur 10,864 532,775 14,315 450,669 25,179 983,444 
Dixon 46,999 2,063,304 34,960 1,066,192 81,959 3,129,496 
Dwight 64,678 2,777,829 13,763 397,853 78,441 3,175,682 
East Moline 12,030 533,355 23,503 695,516 35,533 1,228,871 
Graham 10,853 488,902 19,906 585,979 30,759 1,074,881 
Hill 19,475 882,905 14,100 434,114 33,575 1,317,019 
Illinois River 12,981 589,822 24,298 724,687 37,279 1,314,509 
Jacksonville 15,896 . 746,210 23,161 737,704 39,057 1,483,914 
Lawrence 33,133 1,444,737 24,794 730,052 57,927 2,174,789 
Lincoln 24,103 1,053,029 6,478 184,263 30,581 1,237,292 
Logan 17,480 831,237 15,340 470,979 32,820 1,302,216 
Menard 40,310 1,866,630 44,196 1,350,249 84,506 3,216,879 
Pinckneyvil I e 22,999 1,020,037 28,115 833,342 51,114 1,853,379 
Pontiac 34,271 1,585,385 24,198 710,718 58,469 2,296,103 
Robinson 11,532 503,545 15,418 470,862 26,950 974,407 
Shawnee 21,037 957,345 18,871 540,457 39,908 1,497,802 
Sheridan 32,156 1,432,052 21,108 619,905 53,264 2,051,957 
Southwestern Illinois 7,669 340,818 16,201 493,660 23,870 834,478 
Stateville 132,049 5,859,040 103,664 3,158,768 235,713 9,017,808 
Tamms 4,376 193,23 7 10,113 308,615 14,489 501,852 
Taylorville 10,241 - 459,851 10,557 318,389 20,798 778,240 
Vandalia 41,283 1,859,710 34,140 1,036,566 75,423 2,896,276 
Vienna 25,385 1,234,858 22,296 692,954 47,681 1,927,812 
Western Illinois 15,786 721,575 26,516 834,704 42,302 1,556,279 
Correctional Industries 11,459 529,694 11,459 529,694 
TOTAL 766,947 $ 34,685,026 645,528 $ 19,557,783 1,412,475 $ 54,242,809 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANNUAL COST STATISTICS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

2012 2011 
Rated Capacity Average Daily Average Yearly Rated Capacity Average Daily Average Yearly 

June 30, 2012 Po£ulation Cost Eer Resident (I) June 30, 2011 PoQUlation Cost per Resident (I) 

Adult Institutions: 
Maximum Security 

Dwight 684 986 $ 37,761 684 1,078 $ 34,578 
Menard 3,098 3,609 20,478. 3,098 3,573 19,775 
Pontiac 1,800 1,722 31,545 1,800 1,700 31,276 
Stateville 3,162 3,631 29,203 3,162 3,609 28,857 
Tatums 700 388 66,965 700 403 64,782 

Total -Maximum Security 9;444 10,336 28,781 9,444 10,363 28,114 

>---'- Medium Security 
-.....] 
-.....] Big Muddy River 952 1,903 15,572 952 1,905 17,128 

Centralia 950 1,540 20,533 950 1,542 20,316 
Danville 896 1,816 16,368 896 1,824 15,790 
Dixon 1,430 2,350 23,900 1,430 2,259 24,642 
Graham 1,174 1,873 21,313 1,174 1,915 20,726 
Hill 896 1,820 16,920 896 1,825 16,461 
Illinois River 1,011 2,067 16,264 1,011 2,069 15,731 
Lawrence 2,257 2,304 16,781 2,257 2,332 16,668 
Lincoln 500 1,000 22,422 500 999 22,515 
Logan 1,074 1,970 16,043 1,074 1,957 16,084 
Pinckneyville 2,434 2,447 17,525 2,434 2,439 17,413 
Shawnee 1,046 2,021 16,537 1,046 2,026 16,240 
Sheridan 1,304 1,628 27,773 1,304 1,586 29,454 
Western Illinois 1,102 2,060 17,249 1,102 2,080 16,548 

Total - Medium Security 17,026 26,799 18,790 17,026 26,758 18,603 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANNUAL COST STATISTICS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

2012 2011 
Rated Capacity Average Daily Average Yearly Rated Capacity Average Daily Average Yearly 

June 30, 2012 Po2ulation Cost 2er Resident (1) June 30, 2011 Population Cost per Resident (I) 

Minimum Security 
Decatur 500 686 $ 28,885 500 658 $ 29,793 
East Moline 688 1,261 20,716 688 1,214 20,984 
Jacksonville 1,100 1,580 22,820 1,100 1,600 22,170 
Robinson 600 1,205 19,967 600 1,207 19,429 
Southwestern Illinois 600 696 38,854 600 686 41,284 
Taylorville 600 1,198 19,742 600 1,200 19,767 
Vandalia 1,100 1,691 18,511 1,100 1,711 18,623 
Vienna 925 1,897 17,638 925 1,815 17,703 

I--' Total - Minimum Security 6,113 10,214 21,687 6,113 10,091 21,805 
--....) 
00 

Adult Transition Centers (ATC) 
State-operated 

Decatur 80 108 21,556 80 109 22,304 
Fox Valley 100 125 17,219 100 125 15,309 
Peoria 200 217 17,000 200 193 18,728 
Southern Illinois 60 62 25,028 60 62 25,028 
West Side 190 187 26,352 190 180 27,377 

Total- ATC State-operated 630 699 20,957 630 669 23,862 



,........ 
-.......) 
\0 

Contractual 
Crossroads 
North Lawndale 

Total - ATC Contractual 

Total 

(Under)/over capacity 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

ANNUAL COST STATISTICS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Rated Capacity 

June 30; 2012 

250 
200 
450 

33,663 

(Unaudited) 

2012 
Average Daily Average Yearly 

Population Cost per Resident (l) 

327 $ 21,737 
198 24,663 
525 22,840 

48,573 

14,910 

Rated Capacity 

June 30, 2011 

250 
200 
450 

33,663 

2011 
Average Daily Average Yearly 

Population Cost per Resident (l) 

326 
197 
523 

48,404 

14,741 

21,138 
24,797 
22,516 

(1) Net Expenditures/Average Daily Population. Net Expenditures for Correctional Centers equals expenditures from funds appropriated to each center less 

equipment expenditures. Net Expenditures do not include any allocations from the General Office, Adult Education or Field Services divisions. 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

NOTES TO ANNUAL COST STATISTICS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The average daily population of adult institutions (maximum, 1nedium and minimum security) 
has increased from 47,212 for fiscal year 2011 to 47,349 for fiscal year 2012. This represents an 
increase of 137 inmates for fiscal year 2012. The rated capacity of adult institutions at June 30, 
2012 was 32,583. 

The average yearly cost per resident is su1nmarized as follows for fiscal years 2012 and 2011: 

2012 2011 

Adult Institution $ 21,596 $ 21,375 
Adult Transition Centers 20,957 23,862 

(excludes Crossroads and North Lawndale) 

The Department also maintains work camps and ilnpact incarceration camps ("Boot Camps") at 
the following locations: 

Work Camps 

East Moline 
Jacksonville (Greene County & Pittsfield) 
Shawnee (Hardin County) 
Southwestern 
Western illinois (Clayton) 

Boot Cmnps 

Pinckneyville (DuQuoin) 
Vielll1a (Dixon Springs) 

Adult Transition Centers: Approximately 1,200 imnates were housed during the engage1nent 
period in seven adult transition centers (ATCs) throughout the State. Inmates who are nearing 
the conclusion of their sentences and have made a satisfactory adjustinent while confined to a 
prison may be eligible for participation in the work release progrmn. Imnates housed in an ATC 
are expected to become employed or participate in so1ne other worthwhile endeavor such as 
attending school. Participation in the work release program is considered a privilege and those 
imnates who do not abide by the strict rules and regulations enforced at the A TCs are transferred 
back to prison. 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

PARTICIPATING EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS 

For the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The Departtnent provided post-secondary academic and vocational training programs to enrolled 
imnates at educational facilities through contractual agree1nents with the following colleges during 
the audit period: 

Educational Institution 

Danville Area Cotnmunity College 

Kaskaskia College 

Lake Land Cotmnunity College 

Richland Cotnmunity College 

Southwestern Illinois College 
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Educational Facilities Served 

Danville 

Centralia 

Big Muddy River, Danville, Dixon, Dwight, 
East Moline, Graham, Hill, Illinois River, 
Jacksonville, Lawrence~ Pinckneyville, 
Robinson, Shawnee, Sheridan, Southwestern 
Illinois, Taylorville, Vandalia, Vienna and 
Western Illinois 

Decatur, Lincoln, Logan and Pontiac 

Menard 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

EMERGENCY PURCHASES 

(Unaudited) 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2012 

The Depart1nent reported the following emergency purchases to the Office of the Auditor General 
during fiscal years 2011 and 2012: 

Description 

Fiscal Year 2011 

Three month extension of a contract in order to allow tilne for a procurement 
of the renewal contract to prevent loss of direct services to incarcerated and 
paroled youth. 

Replace1nent of the emergency generator for the boiler house which provides 
hot water and heat to the imnate housing units in the event of a power outage. 

Emergency purchase ofMcMee \Veb Gateway Appliance and Software. 

Due to problems with a 1naster contract vendor through the Department of 
Central Management Services (DCMS), the Department of Corrections will 
need additional time to perform background checks and drug tests on the new 
security guard vendor's employees before utilizing the master contract. 
Failure to provide security at the Concordia Complex will result in an 
increase in vandalism and threatens the safety of staff working after hours. 

Repair box production machinery at the Danville Correctional Industries box 
factory. 

Replacement of high voltage power poles, transformers, concrete pads for the 
transfom1ers, and parts at the Vandalia Correctional Center. 

To purchase coal in order to maintain a fully functional facility, without it 
Vienna Correctional Center would have to shut down. Coal provides the 
energy source to produce hot water as well as air circulation. 

E1nergency purchase of 40 Lenovo ThinkPad laptops for new Parole Agents. 

Replacement of an air conditioning chiller compressor within the Dietary 
Building and General Stores area of East Moline Correctional Center. 
The high temperatures inside the buildings are causing additional equip1nent 
failures to printing equip1nent and refrigerated coolers and freezers. 

182 

Estimated. 
Amount 

$ 60,013 

50,000 

31,000 

55,000 

60,000 

55,680 

40,000 

$ 

Actual 
Amount 

44,001 

37,786 

51,806 

32,875 

47,100 

60,321 

63,250 

39,508 



Description 

Continue to provide case management services to incarcerated and paroled 
men for the grant-funded Adult Male Reentry Program at the West Side Adult 
Transition Center. 

Continue to provide substance abuse services to incarcerated and paroled 
men for the grant-funded Adult Male Reentry Program at the West Side Adult 
Transition Center. 

An extension to the current progranunatic contract to avoid disruption in 
substance abuse screenings and assessments for imnates during intake at 
Stateville, Menard, Dwight, and Grahmn Correctional Centers. An extension 
would allow tilne for a competitive selection process for the replace1nent of 
the current contract. 

A three month extension to the current contract at Dwight Correctional 
Center is requested to avoid disruption in the dual diagnosis treatment 
program. An extension would allow tilne for the application 1naterials to be 
approved by the Illinois Crinlinal Justice Infonnation Authority (ICJIA) and 
for the competitive selection process to replace the current contract. 

A three month extension to the current job prep contract at Sheridan 
Correctional Center is requested to avoid the interruption of services at the 
Center and with Center parolees in the community seeking employment. An 
extension would allow tilne for a competitive selection process for the 
replace1nent of the current contract. 

Replace1nent of the van to transport handicapped imnates to and from court 
appearances and 1nedical furloughs. The Dixon Correctional Center is the 
Reception and Classification Facility for Northern Region Wheelchair 
inmates and has an average of 20 wheelchair inmates. 

Continue to provide janitorial services through the end of the fiscal year at the 
Concordia Complex in accordance with a newly executed lease until the 
services can be contracted to a service provider. 

Necessary replacement of the domestic hot water line to maintain the 
domestic hot water supply. 

Replace1nent of roof to prevent further leaking and growth of 1nold in several 
classrooms and cmnputer labs 

Water control replacement with water softener upgrade and fire pump 
replace1nent. 
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Estilnated 
Amount 

$ 51,218 

62,242 

103,550 

50,092 

800,000 

34,143 

$ 

Actual 
Amount 

39,172 

54,510 

97,572 

45,387 

763,894 

34,143 

45,654 

10,783 

235,656 

227,207 



Description 

Replacement of all out-dated piping located in the utility tunnel to minimize 
frequent breaks which interrupt the hot water supply. 

Replacement of unreliable dietary boiler and piping which provides various 
food services to over 1,800 inmates at the Danville Correctional Center. 

Replacement of water heater coil pack at the Dwight Correctional Center to 
prevent future leaks. 

Replacement of two leaking water heaters. 

Replacement of refrigeration units engineered for today's gases for both 
freezers and coolers in Dietary. 

Purchase of cmnpartment fomn trays for the Menard Correctional Center as a 
result of a depletion in the supply of trays due to the master contract vendor 
being on non-delivery status. 

An extension to the current programmatic contract to avoid disruption in 
substance abuse screenings and assessments for iri.ri:lates during intake at 
Stateville, Menard, Dwight, and Graham Correctional Centers. An extension 
would allow ti1ne for a cmnpetitive selection process for the replacement of 
the current contract. 

Due to contract issues, illinois Correctional Industries does not have 
cardboard for several lines of the box operation at the Danville Correctional 
Industries box factory which is at a stand still. 

A three month extension to the current community re-entry program contract 
is requested to allow for restructuring in order to cmnpetitively bid in the 
future. The project provides job preparedness training and job placement 
services to reduce recidivis1n and create prison bed space for 1nore violent 
offenders. 

Replacement of sliding windows in 5 guard towers to prevent safety issues 
during e1nergencies. 

Purchase of material for sheets and pillowcases which are cut at the gannent 
shop located at Sheridan Correctional Center and sewn at Dwight 
Correctional Industries. 

Replace1nent of roof and related 1nechanical equipment in order to make the 
space inhabitable. 
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Estimated · 
Alnount 

$ 

38,952 

98,000 

50,000 

133,900 

35,000 

57,000· 

200,000 

Actual 
Alnount 

$ 187,817 

359,522 

22,520 

12,050 

55,400 

36,045 

77,481 

25,893 

89,977 

24,934 

57,000 



Description 

Due to problems with a master contract vendor through DCMS, the 
Departlnent of Corrections is requesting purchase of 50 Lenovo ThinkPad 
laptops for new parole agents to be able to cmnplete their job. 

Due to issues with the contracted vendor, the ship1nent ofNFDM Grade A 
powder has ceased leading to the depletion of inventory. ICI must have 
NFDM Grade A powder to reconstitute and process for the Department of 
Corrections and Depart1nent of Human Services. 

Replacement of two Brocade Switches which are old, obsolete and no longer 
supported by Brocade. 

Purchase of material for boxer shorts which are cut at the gannent shop 
located at Sheridan Correctional Center and sewn at Dwight Correctional 

Due to problems with a 1naster contract vendor through DCMS, the 
Depart1nent of Corrections is requesting for the purchase of canned goods to 
eliminate the possibility of running out of food to feed approxhnately 1,650 
imnates. 

Due to prob1eins with a 1naster contract vendor through DCMS, the 
Department of Corrections is requesting for the purchase of equipment for 
parole agent cadets for their new positions. 

Purchase of vegan burger mix in order to fulfill the Illinois Correctional 
Industries commitment to current and future orders with the Depamnent of 
Corrections throughout the State of Illinois. 

Replace1nent of the R-3 cell house building transformer, additional generator 
to supply electricity, and fuel for the generator. 

Continue to provide substance abuse treatment services. The required 
documentation has been submitted, however, approval for posting to 
competitive selection has not been attained. 

Due to problems with a 1naster contract vendor through DCMS, the 
Depart1nent of Corrections ammunition supply, which is used for training, 
parole agents, and at all facilities, has been depleted. 

Stateville Correctional Center1s food warmer carts were infested by pests 
leaving 1nany food wanners no longer usable. Due to sanitary issues, the 
Center is required to serve food at certain te1nperatures, which require food 
wanners to 1naintain the temperature. 
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Estilnated 
Amount 

$ 

183,800 

34,294 

40,000 

$ 

Actual 
Amount 

63,250 

499,800 

39,131 

182,339 

62,066 

86,105 

44,400 

42,159 

64,839 

519,805 

69,184 



Description 

Due to issues with the contracted vendor, the shipment of lenses to the 
Department has ceased leading to the depletion of inventory. These lenses 
are needed to ensure th,e safety and health of recipients of State Aid. 

Replacement of inoperable dish washing machine in order to properly wash 
trays and other related food utensils. 

This is the second emergency filed for the purchase of compartment foam 
trays for the Menard Correctional Center as a result of an inoperable dish 
washing 1nachine. 

The Dietary Building is without a dish/tray machine to properly sanitize 
utensils, cups, dishes, and trays used by inmates and staff. This is a health and 
safety issue. 

The purchase of various collagen casings and cookbags due to the expiration 
of the State contract. These bags and casings are used in the production of 
various rneat products. 

Due to issues with the contracted vendor, the shipment ofNFDM Grade A 
powder has ceased leading to the depletion of inventory. ICI must have 
NFDM Grade A powder to reconstitute and process for the Department of 
Corrections' and Department ofHu1nan Services. Original contract still tied 
up in"legal. A public hearing was held of 12-30-10 and an extension of 120 
days was granted by the Chief Procurement Officer. 

Due to issues with the contracted vendor refusing delivery, Illinois 
Correctional Industries does not have cardboard. Without access to 
cardboard sheeting, the 1neat and eyeglasses production will be at a standstill 
along with boxes provided to various State agencies. 

Replacernent of rnake-up air handling units and hot water supply and return 
lines in Building BC0138. 

For Vienna Correctional Center to be in compliance with EPA standards and 
regulations, repairs to the Sewer Plant are mandated. Th~s includes replacing 
the secondary clarifier, the aerator, and five submersible pumps. 

Purchase of blue twill for pants and coats which are cut at the garment shop 
located at Sheridan Correctional Center and sewn at Dwight Correctional 
Industries. 

Continue to provide substance abuse treatment services at Big Muddy 
Correctional Center. The required documentation has been submitted, 
however, approval for posting to competitive selection has not been attained. 
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Estimated 
Amount 

$ 

109,013 

725,000 

103,000 

38,689 

53,750 

Actual 
Amount 

$ 143,723 

94,226 

38,934 

109,013 

59,574 

53,314 

39,209 

64,839 



Description 

Selection of vendors for the "Career Teclmologies" course progratn in 
correlation with the standardized curriculum approved by the Illinois 
Cmmnunity College Board. Reimbursetnents are generated for each offender 
completing the course and every day the program remains inactive, the 
Department is losing reimbursement. 

Purchase of juice concentrate at Hill Correctional Industries. A shortage in 
supply could affect the security and safety of imnates incarcerated at 
Correctional Centers throughout the State of illinois. 

Purchase of soy products for Western Illinois Correctional Industries due to 
the vendor refusing to deliver based upon lack of payment. Without the soy 
products it will cause a major disruption in State services. 

Purchase of orange and grapefruit juice concentrate at Hill Correctional 
Industries due to the vendor refusing to deliver at the contracted price. A 
shortage in supply could affect the security and safety of inmates incarcerated 
at Correctional Centers throughout the State of Illinois. 

The purchase of various callogen casings and cookbags due to the expiration 
of the state contract. These bags and casing are used in the product of 
various meat products. 

Purchase of two - 60 pan revolving tray ovens at Menard Correctional Center. 
Currently the facility has 3 ovens. Only 1 oven is operable at this time and is 
used to prepare 3 meals a day for approximately 3,100 inmates. 

Due to serious mechanical breakdown at the Danville Correctional Industries 
box factory, production has halted. Without boxes, the Correctional 
Industries Food Division will not be able to continue production and provide 
the 1neat and bakery items. 

An extension to the current program1natic contract to avoid disruption in 
substance abuse screenings and assesstnents for imnates during intake at 
Stateville, Menard, Dwight, and Grahatn Correctional Centers. An extension 
would allow time for a competitive selection process for the replacement of 
the current contract. 

Failure of the air cooled condensing units at Sfateville Correctional Center 
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Estimated 
Amount 

$ 178,000 

111,345 

49,470 

140,000 

Actual 
Amount 

$ 174,642 

86,136 

168,358 

149,854 

43,331 

70,349 

120,398 



Description 

A three 1nonth extension to the current job prep contract at Sheridan 
Correctional Center is requested to avoid the interruption of services at the 

Center and with Center parolees in the cmnmunity seeking employment. An 
extension would allow time for a competitive selection process for the 
replacement of the current contract. 

Due to proble1ns with a master contract vendor through DCMS, the 

Department of Corrections supply of gasohol at Menard Correctional Center, 

which is used for its vehicles, is extre1nely low. 

Due to contracting issues, the current purchase of care contract is set to expire 

on 6/27/11. A three n1onth extension will allow time for procurement ofthe 
new contract, including the competitive selection process. In addition to 
preventing the loss of direct services to incarcerated and paroled juvenile 

1nales. 

E1nergency purchase is for continuation of Job Prep contractual services at 

the Sheridan and Southwestern Correctional Centers. Contract lapses at the 
end of June 2011, this will allow time for a new contract to be bid. 

Total Fiscal Year 2011 

Fiscal.Year 2012 

Due to serious mechanical breakdown at the Danville Correctional Industries 
box factory, production has halted. Without boxes, the Correctional 

Industries Food Division will not be able to continue production and provide 

the 1neat and bakery ite1ns. 

Purchase of three c01npartlnent fomn trays for the Menard Correctional 
Center as a result of a depletion in the supply of trays due to the 1naster 

contract vendor being on non-delivery status. 

Purchase of 12/1 sock yarn and rubber thread used for the production of 
issued socks for Department of Corrections inmates; navy blue acrylic yard 

used for the production of sock hats. 

Correctional Center. This unit supplies the cooling capabilities to the housing 
unit which is considered a closed enviromnent since all the windows are 

completely sealed. 
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Estilnated 

Amount 

$ 

51,706 

51,216 

1,377,309 

$ 5,312,382 

$ 

34,000 

Actual 

Amount 

$ 806,258 

51,706 

39,551 

$ 6,865,757 

$ 46,352 

40,284 

73,170 

45,501 



Description 

Repair of the blast freezers at Hill Correctional Industries. Failure to initiate 
the repair may cause quality issues in as all of the food products produced are 
perishable, proper refrigeration and freezer temperatures are a must. 

To purchase yeast in order to meet Correctional Industries needs. Yeast is a 
needed raw Inaterial for the production of bread, buns, and other food staples 
required to provide 1neals to other State agencies. 

Due to contract bidding issues, illinois Correctional Industries' supply of 
orange and grapefruit juice concentrate is in danger of a serious shortage. 
This shortage could affect the security and safety of imnates incarcerated at 
Correctional Centers throughout the State. 

Due to issues with the contracted vendor, Illinois Correctional Industries is in 
need of1naterials for insulated coats provided to the Department of 
Corrections and Department of Transportation. These items are cut at the cut 
at the gannent shop located at Sheridan Correctional Center and Decatur 
Sewing Shop. 

This contract is due to expire 9/30/11 and the facility is in the process of 
preparing a Request for Proposal to bid this out. This emergency extension is 
necessary to prevent an interruption of critical State services to offenders 
housed at Grahmn Correctional Center. 

Purchase of 20,000 yards of blue poplin material to be sewn into imnate 
shirts. 

A three month extension to thecunent substance abuse program contract is 
requested to avoid disruption in services. An extension would allow time for 
a competitive selection process for the replacement of the current contract. 

A three month extension to the current substance abuse education contract at 
Taylorville Correctional Center is requested to avoid disruption in services. 
An extension would allow time for a request for professionals services to be 
finalized. 

Centers need special made classification folders in order to be in compliance 
with the Depart1nent's Ad1ninistrative Directive. 

Purchase of fleece by illinois Correctional Industries to produce sweatshirts 
and sweatpants for Depart1nent of Corrections inmates. 
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Estimated 
Amount 

$ 40,000 

128,700 

151,000 

52,500 

51,624 

87,000 

36,720 

108,460 

$ 

Actual 
Amount 

42,578 

124,256 

311,070 



Description 

Purchase of approximately 13,000 lbs. of boneless turkey roast to serve the 
inmate population as well as staff for Thanksgiving and Christmas. 

A three month extension to the current vending contract is requested in order 
to allow time for a Memorandum of Understanding to be drafted with the 
Department of Human Services in accordance with the Blind Vendors Act. 

A four month extension to the current substance abuse program contract has 
been approved to avoid disruption in services. An extension would allow 
ti1ne for the procure1nent process to be completed for the replacement of the 
current contract. 

This contract is due to expire 12/29/11 and the facility is in the process of 
preparing a Request for Proposal to bid this out. This emergency extension is 
necessary to prevent an interruption of critical State services to offenders 
housed at Graha1n Correctional Center. 

Purchase of75,000 yards of dark blue twill to produce imnate pants and 
coats. 

Due to delays in presenting paperwork to the General Office, an extension of 
the substance abuse counseling services contract is requested to avoid a 
disruption in services. 

Replace1nent of a lens generator machine used in the production of eye 
glasses at Dixon Correctional Industries. Currently there are approxilnately 
30,000 jobs in house and there are proble1ns in keeping up with production 
demands. 

A three 1nonth extension to the current substance and drug abuse prograrns 
contract at Decatur Correctional Center is requested to avoid disruption in 
services. An extension would allow time for the competitive selection 
process to be finalized. 

Replace1nent of a lens generator machine used in the production of eye 
glasses at Dixon Correctional Industries. · 

Purchase of eyeglass frarne kits for Dixon Correctional Industries is requested 
to avoid serious disruption to State services. 

Purchase of optical lenses used in the production of eye glasses. 

An additional six month extension is requested in order to utilize the Blind 
Vendors Act as 1nandated by ILCS 242111. An emergency 90 day extension 
to the Cmnpass Group was previously approved for vending services for the 
period 11/16/11-02/13/12. 
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Estimated 
Amount 

$ 51,350 

66,519 

68,833 

201,300 

163,688 

93,073 

70,000 

93,073 

70,000 

70,000 

170,000 

133,038 

$ 

Actual 
Amount 



Description 

Replacement of 4 of the 6 facilities housing unit water heaters at Robinson 
Correctional Center. These provide hot water for showers and laundry for 200 
inmates on a daily basis. 

Purchase of a new dishwasher at Sheridan Correctional Center to replace one 
that is 20 years old. There are chronic problems with the unit and it needs to 
be replaced. The facility serves 1,650 imnates and 400 staff. 

Purchase of styrofoa1n trays for Stateville Correctional Center due to issues 
with the contracted vendor refusing to deliver. 

Replace of hot water heater and backup hot water heaters at Tamms 
Correctional Center. These units are leaking and have caused violations from 
the State Fire Marshal's Office. 

A four 1nonth extension to the current substance abuse education contract at 
Taylorville Correctional Center is requested to avoid disruption in services .. 
An extension will allow for a new contract to be finalized. 

Purchase of raw materials for sock production at Illinois Correctional 
Industries. 

Due to the announced closing of the Dwight Correctional Center and the 
transfer of male offenders from the Logan Correctional Center to the Sheridan 
Correctional Center, installation of 38 toilets in Building C-8 is needed to 
accommodate transfer of Logan population to Sheridan. 

Replacement of plastic plumbing valve bodies with new brass Air-Trol valve 
bodies at Big Muddy Correctional Center. 

Replacement of a compressor unit in Housing Unit 4 at Robinson 
Correctional Center. This unit supplies the cooling capabilities to the housing 
unit which is considered a closed environment since all the windows are 
completely sealed. 

Replace1nent of dietary kitchen equip1nent in order to provide 1neals to 
approximately 600 imnates at the Pittsfield Work Camp and Greene County 
WorkCmnp. 

Total Fiscal Year 2012 
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Estimated 
Amount 

$ 

100,000 

52,200 

116,000 

34,650 

47,500 

64,000 

$ 2,355,228 

Actual 
Amount 

$ 129,406 

39,550 

48,267 

56,299 

$ 956,733 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2012 and 2011 
(Unaudited) 

Description of Memorandum Requirements 
I 

i 

This is a single-year Memorandum ofUnderstaodiog for the renovation ofHolding Area for use at Cook County Jail Compkx between I 
Cook County and the Department of Corrections. Cook County will lead the project and be responsible for procuring, supervising, and 
coordinating _all aspects ofthe project The Department of_S::orrections will fiQ?.llce the project __ _ __ ___ _ 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

INMATE ASSAULTS ON STAFF 
AT ADULT CORRECTIONAL CENTERS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 20i2 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Security Level Fiscal Year 2012 Fiscal Year 2011 
Levell - M~ximum 

Dwight 21 
Menard 36 
Pontiac 98 
Stateville 57 
Tamms 7 

Level 2 - Secure Medium 
Hill 5 
Lawrence 23 
Pinckri eyvill e 23 
Western Illinois 10 

Level 3 ;. High Medium 
Big Muddy River 24 
Danville.· 4 
Dixon 51 
Illinois River 2 
Shawnee 12 

Level 4 :-Medium 
Centralia 2 
Decatur 0 
Graham 4 
Lincolil 11 
Logan 11 
Sheridan 7 

Level 5 -High Minimum· 
Jacksonville 3 
Robinson 2 
Taylorville 1 

Level 6- Minimum 
East Moline 3 
Southwestern Illinois 3 
Vandalia 5 
Vienna 6 

Totals 431 
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23 
21 

122 
95 
21 

5 
26 
22 
23 

10 
4 

56 
14 
18 

3 
2 
8 
3 
7 

17 

2 
2 
0 

1 
4 
8 
0 

517 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SERVICE EFFORTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

l\1ission and Organization 

The Illinois Department of Corrections (Department) is responsible for providing care, custody, 
treatlnent, and rehabilitation for adult offenders cormnitted by the courts. During the 
engagement period the Department maintained and administered 27 correctional centers and 
tnanaged a parole system for formerly incarcerated persons in the cotnmunity. There is also an 
Adult Advisory Board and a Subcormnittee on Women Offenders to provide guidance to the 
Department. 

ACHIEVEl\1ENTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Inzplenzented an Enzployee Cost-Savings Suggestion Progranz- This program is designed to 
save millions ·of dollars through reduced spending. The progratn, which was impletnented in July 
2009, is featured on the Depamnent website where etnployees are encouraged to identify 
opportunities to cut costs. Thus far, approximately $2.5 tnillion in cost-saving measures have 
been implemented. 

Reduced overtilne costs- The overtime costs decreased in fiscal year 2011 from fiscal year 
2010. 

Continued coi1l11lUllity based re-entry pro grants foJ~ bunates released back into society - These 
programs are designed to provide a wide array of services required by the parolee population to 
increase the likelihood of a successful reintegration into the co1nmunity. Working in conjunction 
with the re-entry programs are the Transitional Jobs Program and the Statewide Job Preparation 
Program. These progratns are designed to place parolees into everyday job programs atld provide 
them the necessary skills to find employment. 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES AND PRIORITIES 

Continue to reduce overtbne expenses - The Department will continue the initiative, started in 
fiscal year 2010, to increase the frontline staff of the Department as part of an effort to reduce 
overtilne payroll costs, address the effects of attrition, and to improve the safety of Depart1nent 
facilities. The Depart1nent will continue to reduce overti1ne expenditures over the next several 
fiscal years. 
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Intplentent Adult Redeploy Illinois (ARI) - The Department is working in conjunction with 
various other State agencies to obtain grant funding to implement the ARI program. The purpose 
of this initiative is to treat offenders in the cmnmunity instead of sending the1n to State prisons. 
In exchange for reducing the nu1nber of people they send to the Department, grants are provided 
to counties or groups of counties/judicial circuits to increase programming in their areas. The 
ARI progrmn is an example of a national best practice called performance incentive funding, 
which other states are adopting in different ways. 

Overhaul the agency,s infonnation technology infrastructure, partnering with IT experts in sister 
agencies, as part of an ongoing multi-year process to 1nodernize all hardware and software 
systems. Modernizing IT resources is a key cmnponent of a new emphasis on prioritizing 
expenditures on the basis of measurable outco1nes. The Deparunent will adopt unifonn standards 
of data collection in facilities manage1nent, parole and progrmnmatic expenditures. This will 
enable the Depart1nent to mandate and ensure accountability on the basis of numeric 1neasures of 
performance. 
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Department of Corrections 

lVIission Statement: The mission of the Department of Corrections is to protect the public from criminal offenders 
through a system of incarceration and supervision which securely segregates offenders from 
society, assures offenders of their constitutional rights and maintains programs to enhance the 
success of offenders' reentry into society. 

Program Goals: 1. The Department is responsible for providing care, custody, treatment, and rehabilitation 
for adult offenders committed by the courts. 

Objectives: a. Reduce recidivism, the number of people who return to prison within three years of 
release 

b. Continually improve staff and offender safety and security 

Source of Funds: General Revenue Fund Statutory Authority: 730 ILCS 5 
Working Capital Revolving Fund 
Department of Corrections Reimbursement 

Fund 

Fiscal Year 
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 2012 Target 
2010 Actual 2011 Actual /Projected 

Input Indicators 

• Total expenditures- all sources $1,227,735.7 $1,270,998.2 $1,299,983.3 
(in thousands) 

• Total expenditures- state $1,227,735.7 $1,270,998.2 $1,299,983.3 
appropriated funds (in thousands) 

• Average monthly full-time 11.174.0 11,741.0 11,741.0 
equivalents 

Output Indicators 

• Percentage of adults reincarcerated 47.8% 47.0% 47.0% 
within 3 years of release 

• Number of parolees returned to 45.2% 47.5% 46.5% 
prison each month as a percent of 
average daily parole population 

• Number of offenders transferred to 1.9 1.6 1.8 
a lower security level due to good 
behavior (per 1,000 offenders per 
month) 

• Number of offenders whose security 2.8 2.9 2.6 
level was increased due to discipline 
for problem behavior (per 1,000 offenders 
per month) 

• Number of contraband confiscations 30.0 31.0 28.0 
(per 1,000 offenders per month) 

• Number of offender-on-staff assaults 3.1 3.6 3.3 
(per 1,000 staff per month) 

• Number of offender on offender 3.1 3.1 2.8 
assaults (per 1,000 offenders per month) 
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Fiscal Year 
Fiscal Year 2013 Target 
2012 Actual /Projected 

$1,281,903.9 $1,174,975.5 

$ 1,281,903.9 $ 1,174,975.5 

11,233.0 10,906.0 

47.1% 45.1% 

40.8% 39.8% 

1.8 1.9 

2.8 2.5 

29.0 26.0 

3.2 2.9 

3.1 2.8 




